
!"#$%&!'
%&'()*'"%!)('
+%"*,(%#&

!"#!$%&'((#)*+,-%*.(/#0(#+((#
(1(-2#$%2#%+#%*#3443-",*5"2#"3#
6337#"3#"8(#9,",-(/#"3#:-30#%*$/#
&3+"# 5&43-"%*"62/# "3# ;(""(-#
"8(#651(+#39#"83+(#0(#5*+,-(<

!+#3*(#39#"8(#6(%$5*:#5*+,-%*.(#
.3&4%*5(+#5*#=%75+"%*/#0(#"%7(#
5"#,43*#3,-+(61(+#"3#.3*"5*,%662#
+("#"8(#;(*.8&%-7+#39#5*+,-%*.(#
(>.(66(*.(<#?3&;5*5*:#(>4(-5(*.(#
05"8# (>4(-"5+(/# -(65%;565"2# 05"8#
5*"(:-5"2# @# 0(A-(# &315*:#
93-0%-$# 3*# "8(# -5:8"# 4%"8#
"30%-$+#4-3:-(++<

!**,%6#B(43-"#
CD!"





,#&(*&(-

!"
!#
!$
!%
!&
'!
'#
'&
(!
('
()
(#
(%

)'
)&
)*
"'
")
""

'!&
'!*
''!
'&'
'&#

E5*%*.5%6#F5:865:8"+

G"%"(&(*"#39#H%6,(#!$$5"53*

H5+53*

?3-(#H%6,(+

?3&4%*2#)*93-&%"53*

I3"5.(#39#"8(#JK-$#!**,%6#L(*(-%6#M(("5*:

N3%-$#39#O5-(."3-+

M%*%:(&(*"#P(%&

?QRA+#M(++%:(

S,%65"2#=365.2

?3-43-%"(#G3.5%6#B(+43*+5;565"2

G5>#T(%-+#%"#%#L6%*.(

O5-(."3-+A#B(43-"#"3#"8(#M(&;(-+#3*#
U*.3*+365$%"($#E5*%*.5%6#G"%"(&(*"+

B(15(0#B(43-"#"3#"8(#M(&;(-+#3*#
G"%"(&(*"#39#?3&465%*.(

G"%"(&(*"#39#?3&465%*.(#05"8#"8(
?3$(#39#?3-43-%"(#L31(-*%*.(

G"%"(&(*"#U*$(-#G(."53*#VW#XWY#
39#"8(#)*+,-%*.(#R-$5*%*.(/#CDDD

!,$5"3-+A#B(43-"#"3#"8(#M(&;(-+#3*#
U*.3*+365$%"($#E5*%*.5%6#G"%"(&(*"+

U*.3*+365$%"($#E5*%*.5%6#G"%"(&(*"

O5-(."3-+A#B(43-"#3*#?3*+365$%"($
E5*%*.5%6#G"%"(&(*"+

!,$5"3-+A#B(43-"#"3#"8(#M(&;(-+#3*#
?3*+365$%"($#E5*%*.5%6#G"%"(&(*"+

?3*+365$%"($#E5*%*.5%6#G"%"(&(*"+

=%""(-*#39#"8(#G8%-(836$5*:

=-3>2#E3-&



,.(*!#"%*-'#/'-)."*)#0+*"-'
.&+'/%&.&,%.0')%!)0%!)(-'

!"#$%&'($)*&+*),"'$,&-.$')* ****/01234*56*)78439* * ):8;3*<=>

O5-(."3-+# CKZ/[JC## # D<DW\#

Q>(.,"51(+#]#Q>(.,"51(+^#G43,+(+# JC/DCV## # D<D[J#

N%*7+/#OE)+#!*$#INE)+# Z/K[V/VC\## # C<WW[#

R"8(-+# CZ/[[\/DJ\## # \<KCD#
# KJD/DDD/DDD## # [DD<DDD#

O5-(."3-+

Q>(.,"51(+#]#Q>(.,"51(+A#G43,+(+

!++3.5%"($#?3&4%*5(+/#U*$(-"%75*:+#_#B(6%"($#=%-"5(+

N%*7+/#OE)+#!*$#INE)+

)*+,-%*.(#?3&4%*5(+

M3$%-%;%#%*$#M,",%6#E,*$+

L(*(-%6#=,;65.

R"8(-+

.&&1.0'"*2#"('345647



-(.(*8*&('#/'9.01*'.++%(%#&'
.&+'%(-'+%-("%:1(%#&

?@AB

XB,4((+#5*#^DDD^Y# #######`

?@A?

XB,4((+#5*#^DDD^Y# #######`

#"$

%!&$
"'$

()!"

P3#(&4632((+#%*$#:31(-*&(*"

P3#+8%-(836$(-+

!!$

')$

'*$

()!(

P3#(&4632((+#%*$#:31(-*&(*"

P3#+8%-(836$(-+

C$"-#,*%$/$'"#$.

)*1(+"&(*"#%*$#3"8(-#5*.3&(# C/J[D/KCK## # [/VZW/\CC## #

# K/CWJ/\VJ## [DD<DD## [/WC[/ZZ\## [DD<DD#
# # # # #

#C$"-#,*.()#'(DE#$.

P3#+8%-(836$(-+# # # # #

# N3*,+#+8%-(+# C/CWC/ZJJ## #WZ<CZ## #@## #@#

# # # # #

B("%5*($#5*#;,+5*(++

# XJJC/WKZY# X[W<ZCY# WVC/\CV## KZ<WK#
# K/CWJ/\VJ## [DD<DD## [/WC[/ZZ\## [DD<DD#
# # # # #
# # # # #

4;



#<='>?@@ABC'A@'DB'>=BEAFG'HG?FG=@IA>'
DB'DIG'AC@<=?CJG'ACF<@D=KL

#<='MAHH'A@'DB'GN>HB=GO'



%CDGP=ADK'' ' '

)<QAHADK

/<C'?D'DIG'$B=R>H?JG''

,B=>B=?DG'-BJA?H'"G@>BC@ASAHADK



,#82.&T'%&/#"8.(%#&

D&"'.*&+*.('$!#&')#
U&(-#M%*+8%# ?8%5-&%*
!8&($#Q;-%85&#F%+8%&# O5-(."3-
!65#M,*5-# O5-(."3-
E-($-57#?3(*-%-$#$(#N((-# O5-(."3-
a%&-%*#B%+336# O5-(."3-
);-%85&#G8%&+5# O5-(."3-
)&-%*#M%b;336# O5-(."3-
M,8%&&%$#U&%-#H5-7# O5-(."3-
G8%85$#M%657# O5-(."3-
G8%578#M,8%&&%$#c%0($# O5-(."3-
M,8%&&%$#!65#d(;# M%*%:5*:#O5-(."3-#_#?QR
#
".F()&'#
M5%*#M,8%&&%$#M%*+8%#
#
"E.(#*!&GG(##$$#
G8%578#M,8%&&%$#c%0($# ?8%5-&%*
!8&($#Q;-%85&#F%+8%&# M(&;(-
!65#M,*5-# M(&;(-
);-%85&#G8%&+5# M(&;(-
U&(-#M%*+8%# M(&;(-
#
,EG"/*'$)&E'!$*"/.*'$GE/$'"#(&/*!&GG(##$$#
U&(-#M%*+8%# ?8%5-&%*
);-%85&#G8%&+5# M(&;(-
a%&-%*#B%+336# M(&;(-
M,8%&&%$#!65#d(;# M(&;(-
#
E/.$'C'(#(/%*!&GG(##$$#
U&(-#M%*+8%# ?8%5-&%*
E-($-57#?3(*-%-$#$(#N((-# M(&;(-
M,8%&&%$#!65#d(;# M(&;(-
F(%$#39#P(.8*5.%6# M(&;(-
#
!-"(G*)$##-$G$/#*!&GG(##$$#
G8%578#M,8%&&%$#c%0($# ?8%5-&%*
!8&($#Q;-%85&#F%+8%&# M(&;(-
M,8%&&%$#!65#d(;# M(&;(-
F(%$#39#?6%5&+# M(&;(-
#
'$H(/)E'"/!$*!&GG(##$$*"/.*!&H(/)E'"/!$*

!65#M,*5-# ?8%5-&%*
M,8%&&$#U&%-#H5-7# M(&;(-
M,8%&&%$#!65#d(;# M(&;(-
F(%$#39#B(@)*+,-%*.(# M(&;(-

.&&1.0'"*2#"('34564U



!&GI"/J*)$!'$#"'J#
P%&((e@,6@F%b,(#
E<?<!<#
#
!,($+*+(/"/!("-*&++(!$'#
B(8%*#!8&%$#a8%*#
E<?<!</#!<?<M<!<#
#
$K$!E#(F$*G"/"%$G$/#*#$"G#
!$*%*#!8&%$#?8%,$8-2#
!&5-#!<#F%&5$#
!+59#c%;;%-#
M,8%&&%$#!65#d(;#
M,8%&&%$#G%65&#)b;%6#
I%'5;#I%+5-#G2($#
B(8%*#!8&%$#a8%*#
#
"E.(#&')#
M]+#B5%e#!8&%$#_#?3&4%*2#
?8%-"(-($#!..3,*"%*"+#
[D\#@[DZ/#[+"#E633-/#=%-7#!1(*,(/#
N63.7@W/#=<Q<?<F<G</#G8%8-%8@(@E%5+%6/#

#
),"'$)*'$%()#'"'#
P(.8*363:2#P-%$(#X=1"<Y#f5&5"($#
O%:5%#F3,+(/#CV[@?/#N63.7@C/#=<Q<?<F<G</#

E%>g#XZC@C[Y#KVKZ[K[\#
#

D"/L$')#
!+7%-5#N%*7#f5&5"($#
N%*7#!69%6%8#f5&5"($#
N%*7#!6@F%;5;#f5&5"($#
?5"5;%*7#I<!<#
F%;5;#N%*7#f5&5"($#
FGN?#N%*7#R&%*#G<!<R<L<#
FGN?#N%*7#M5$$6(#Q%+"#f5&5"($#
)*$,+"-5%6#O(1(634&(*"#N%*7#39#=%75+"%*#

M?N#N%*7#f5&5"($#
I%"53*%6#N%*7#39#=%75+"%*#
I)N#N%*7#f5&5"($#
G3*(-5#N%*7#f5&5"($#
G"%*$%-$#?8%-"(-($#N%*7#X=%75+"%*Y#f5&5"($#

P8(#=,*'%;#=-315*.5%6#?334(-%"51(#N%*7#f5&5"($#
U*5"($#N%*7#f5&5"($#

d%-%5#P%-%b5%"5#N%*7#f5&5"($
#
'$%()#$'$.*&++(!$

M<M<#!6%&#B3%$/#L,6;(-:@)))/
f%83-(#@#JVDDD/#=%75+"%*

Q&%56g#5*93h%$%&'((5*+,-%*.(<.3&
i(;+5"(g#000<%$%&'((5*+,-%*.(<.3&

4V



&#(%,*'#/'()*';6"+'.&&1.0
!*&*".0'8**(%&!
IRP)?Q#5+#8(-(;2#:51(*#"8%"#"8(#JK-$#!**,%6#L(*(-%6#M(("5*:#X!LMY#39#!$%&'((#)*+,-%*.(#?3&4%*2#f5&5"($#X"8(#j?3&4%*2kY#0566#;(#8(6$#%"#"8(#
)*+"5","(#39#?8%-"(-($#!..3,*"%*"+#39#=%75+"%*/#P837(-#I5%e#N%5:/#B%505*$#B3%$/#f%83-(#3*#M3*$%2/#!4-56#C\/#CD[V#%"#[[#%<&<#"3#"-%*+%."#"8(#9366305*:#
;,+5*(++g

&'.(/"'JM

[<# P3# -(.(51(/# .3*+5$(-#%*$#%$34"# "8(#!,$5"($#!**,%6#G(4%-%"(#%*$#?3*+365$%"($#E5*%*.5%6#G"%"(&(*"+#39# "8(#?3&4%*2# 93-# "8(#2(%-#(*$($#
O(.(&;(-#K[/#CD[K#%*$#"8(#O5-(."3-+A#%*$#!,$5"3-+A#-(43-"+#"8(-(3*<#

# !#&(&;(-#8%+#:51(*#*3"5.(#,*$(-#G(."53*#CJK#39#"8(#?3&4%*5(+#R-$5*%*.(/#[Z\V#93-#%4435*"5*:#a=ML#P%+((-#F%$5#_#?3&4%*2/#?8%-"(-($#
!..3,*"%*"+#%+#%,$5"3-+#39#"8(#?3&4%*2#93-#"8(#*(>"#"(-&#5*#46%.(#39#-("5-5*:#%,$5"3-+#M]+#B5%e#!8&($#_#?3&4%*2/#?8%-"(-($#!..3,*"%*"+<#
!,$5"#?3&&5""((#%*$#"8(#N3%-$#39#O5-(."3-+#8%1(#%6+3#-(.3&&(*$($#"8(5-#%4435*"&(*"#93-#.3*+5$(-%"53*#;2#"8(#&(&;(-+<

#
)I$!("-M

V<## P3#.3*+5$(-#%*$#%44-31(#(b,5"2#5*1(+"&(*"#39#,4#"3#=aB#JDD#&56653*#5*#I5+8%"#F3"(6+#%*$#=-34(-"5(+#f"$</#%*#%++3.5%"($#.3&4%*2#%*$#4%++#"8(#

$(6("53*X+Yg

# # BQGRfHQO#PF!P#j4,-+,%*"#"3#"8(#-(b,5-(&(*"+#39#G(."53*#CD\#39#"8(#?3&4%*5(+#R-$5*%*.(/#[Z\V/#!$%&'((#)*+,-%*.(#?3&4%*2#f5&5"($#

3*62Y#;2#0%2#39#%.b,5+5"53*#39#JD#&56653*#+8%-(+#39#I5+8%"#F3"(6+#%*$#=-34(-"5(+#f5&5"($/#%*#%++3.5%"($#.3&4%*2k<

G(.-("%-2#39#"8(#?3&4%*2#;(#%*$#%-(#8(-(;2#+5*:62#(&430(-($#%*$#%,"83-5e($#"3#,*$(-"%7(#"8(#$(.5+53*#39#+%5$#5*1(+"&(*"#39#+8%-(+#%+#
%*$#08(*#$((&($#%44-34-5%"(#%*$#*(.(++%-2#5*#"8(#;(+"#5*"(-(+"#39#"8(#?3&4%*2#%*$#5"+#+8%-(836$(-+#%*$#"3#"%7(#%66#+"(4+#%*$#%."53*+#
*(.(++%-2/#5*.5$(*"%6#%*$#%*.566%-2#93-#"8(#%.b,5+5"53*#39#+8%-(+#39#I5+8%"#F3"(6+#%*$#=-34(-"5(+#f5&5"($#5*.6,$5*:#(>(.,"53*#39#%*2#%*$#%66#
$3.,&(*"+#%*$#%:-((&(*"+#%+#&%2#;(#-(b,5-($# 5*#"85+#-(:%-$#%*$#"3#$3#%66#%."+/#&%""(-+/#$(($+#%*$#"85*:+#%+#&%2#;(#*(.(++%-2#3-#

?3&4%*2#;(#%*$#%-(#8(-(;2#%,"83-5e($#+5*:62#"3#$5+43+(#39/#"8-3,:8#%*2#&3$(/#%#4%-"#3-#%66#39#(b,5"2#5*1(+"&(*"+#&%$(#;2#"8(#?3&4%*2#
9-3&#"5&(#"3#"5&(#%+#%*$#08(*#$((&($#%44-34-5%"(#%*$#*(.(++%-2#5*#"8(#;(+"#5*"(-(+"#39#"8(#?3&4%*2k<

# # #######################################################################################P%&((e@,6@F%b,(##############
# # G(.-("%-2

&#(*-
[Y# P8(#+8%-(#"-%*+9(-#;337+#39#"8(#?3&4%*2#0566#-(&%5*#.63+($#9-3&#!4-56#CC/#CD[V#"3#!4-56#C\/#CD[V#X;3"8#$%2+#5*.6,+51(Y#"3#$("(-&5*(#"8(#

.63+(#39#;,+5*(++#3*#!4-56#C[/#CD[V#0566#;(#"-(%"($#5*#"5&(<#
CY# !#&(&;(-#(*"5"6($#"3#%""(*$#%*$#13"(#%"#"8(#!**,%6#L(*(-%6#M(("5*:#5+#(*"5"6($#"3#%4435*"#%*3"8(-#&(&;(-#%+#4-3>2#"3#%""(*$#%*$#13"(#

5*+"(%$#39#85&#]#8(-<#!#4-3>2#&,+"#;(#%#&(&;(-#39#"8(#?3&4%*2<#!#.3-43-%"53*#3-#%#.3&4%*2#;(5*:#%#&(&;(-#39#"8(#?3&4%*2#&%2#%4435*"#%*2#

93-#"8(#M(("5*:<#!#&(&;(-#+8%66#*3"#;(#(*"5"6($#"3#%4435*"#&3-(#"8%*#3*(#4-3>2<#)9#%#&(&;(-#%4435*"+#&3-(#"8%*#3*(#4-3>2#%*$#&3-(#"8%*#3*(#
5*+"-,&(*"+#39#4-3>2#%-(#$(43+5"($#;2#%#&(&;(-#05"8#"8(#?3&4%*2/#%66#+,.8#5*+"-,&(*"+#39#4-3>2#+8%66#;(#-(*$(-($#5*1%65$<#)*#.%+(#39#.3-43-%"(#
(*"5"2/#"8(#N3%-$#39#O5-(."3-+A#-(+36,"53*#]#430(-#39#%""3-*(2#05"8#+4(.5&(*#+5:*%",-(#39#*3&5*((#+8%66#;(#+,;&5""($#05"85*#"8(#%;31(#"5&(#65&5"<

VY# M(&;(-+#083#8%1(#$(43+5"($#"8(5-#+8%-(+#5*#"8(#?(*"-%6#O(43+5"3-2#G2+"(&#39#"8(#?(*"-%6#O(43+5"3-2#?3&4%*2#39#=%75+"%*#f5&5"($#0566#8%1(#
"3#936630#"8(#,*$(-#&(*"53*($#:,5$(65*(+#%+#6%5$#$30*#;2#G(.,-5"5(+#%*$#Q>.8%*:(#?3&&5++53*#39#=%75+"%*g

.&&1.0'"*2#"('345654



"N**+54*"::3OPQOR*:73*G33:QOR

%<# )*#.%+(#39#5*$515$,%6+/#"8(#%..3,*"#836$(-#%*$#]#3-#+,;@%..3,*"#836$(-#083+(#-(:5+"-%"53*#$("%56+#%-(#,463%$($#%+#4(-#"8(#?O?#B(:,6%@
"53*+/#+8%66#%,"8(*"5.%"(#85+#]#8(-#5$(*"5"2#;2#+8305*:#85+#]#8(-#3-5:5*%6#?I)?#3-#3-5:5*%6#=%++43-"#%63*:#05"8#=%-"5.54%*"#)O#*,&;(-#%*$#
"8(#!..3,*"#*,&;(-#%"#"8(#"5&(#39#%""(*$5*:#"8(#M(("5*:<

;<# )*#.%+(#39#.3-43-%"(#(*"5"2/#"8(#N3%-$A+#-(+36,"53*#]#430(-#39#%""3-*(2#05"8#+4(.5&(*#+5:*%",-(#39#"8(#*3&5*((#+8%66#;(#4-3$,.($#
X,*6(++#5"#8%+#;((*#4-315$($#(%-65(-Y#%"#"8(#"5&(#39#"8(#M(("5*:<

DN* +54*"SS5QO:QOR*I45TQ39

%<# )*#.%+(#39#5*$515$,%6+/#"8(#%..3,*"#836$(-#%*$#]#3-#+,;@%..3,*"#836$(-#083+(#-(:5+"-%"53*#$("%56+#%-(#,463%$($#%+#4(-#"8(#?O?#B(:,6%@
"53*+/#+8%66#+,;&5"#"8(#4-3>2#93-&#%+#4(-#%;31(#-(b,5-(&(*"+<

;<# P8(#4-3>2#93-&#+8%66#;(#05"*(++($#;2#"03#4(-+3*+/#083+(#*%&(+/#%$$-(++(+#%*$#?I)?#*,&;(-+#+8%66#;(#&(*"53*($#3*#"8(#93-&<
.<#
$<# P8(#4-3>2#+8%66#4-3$,.(#85+#3-5:5*%6#?I)?#3-#3-5:5*%6#4%++43-"#%"#"8(#"5&(#39#"8(#M(("5*:<
(<# )*#.%+(#39#.3-43-%"(#(*"5"2/#"8(#N3%-$A+#-(+36,"53*#]#430(-#39#%""3-*(2#05"8#+4(.5&(*#+5:*%",-(#+8%66#;(#9,-*5+8($#X,*6(++#5"#8%+#;((*#

4-315$($#(%-65(-Y#%63*:#05"8#4-3>2#93-&#"3#"8(#?3&4%*2<

UN*** /&#(!$*:5*)784375VP349*W75*78X3*O5:*S45XQP3P*!/(!*

# P8(#$5-(."51(#39#"8(#G(.,-5"5(+#%*$#Q>.8%*:(#?3&&5++53*#39#=%75+"%*#.3*"%5*($#5*#G<B<R<#\K[#X)Y#]#CD[C#$%"($#DJ#c,62/#CD[C#-(b,5-(+#"8%"#"8(#
$515$(*$#0%--%*"+#+83,6$#;(%-#"8(#?3&4,"(-5e($#I%"53*%6#)$(*"5"2#?%-$#I,&;(-+#X?I)?Y#39#"8(#-(:5+"(-($#+8%-(836$(-+#3-#"8(#%,"83-5e($#
4(-+3*#(>.(4"#5*#"8(#.%+(#39#&5*3-X+Y#%*$#.3-43-%"(#+8%-(836$(-+<

# ?I)?#*,&;(-+#39#"8(#+8%-(836$(-+#%-(/#"8(-(93-(/#&%*$%"3-2#93-#"8(#5++,%*.(#39#9,",-(#$515$(*$#0%--%*"+#%*$#5*#"8(#%;+(*.(#39#+,.8#5*93-&%@
"53*/#4%2&(*"#39#$515$(*$#&%2#;(#05"88(6$#5*#"(-&#39#GQ?=A+#%;31(#&(*"53*($#$5-(."51(<#P8(-(93-(/#"8(#+8%-(836$(-+#083#8%1(#*3"#2("#
4-315$($#"8(5-#?I)?+#%-(#3*.(#%:%5*#%$15+($#"3#4-315$(#"8(#%""(+"($#.345(+#39#"8(5-#?I)?+#X59#*3"#%6-(%$2#4-315$($Y#$5-(."62#"3#3,-#)*$(4(*$(*"#

a%-%.85#05"83,"#%*2#9,-"8(-#$(6%2<

YN* G8OP8:3*654*$H.(F(.$/.)*+&'*),"'$,&-.$')

#
%&3,*"#39#"8(#$515$(*$#.-($5"($#5*"3#"8(5-#-(+4(."51(#;%*7#%..3,*"+#(6(."-3*5.%662#05"83,"#%*2#$(6%2<#)*#"85+#0%2/#$515$(*$+#&%2#;(#5*+"%*"62#
.-($5"($#"3#-(+4(."51(#;%*7#%..3,*"+#%*$#"8(-(#%-(#*3#.8%*.(+#39#$515$(*$#0%--%*"+#:(""5*:#63+"#5*#"8(#43+"/#,*$(651(-($#3-#$(651(-($#"3#"8(#
0-3*:#%$$-(++/#(".<#P8(#G(.,-5"5(+#%*$#Q>.8%*:(#?3&&5++53*#39#=%75+"%*#XGQ?=Y#"8-3,:8#I3"5.(#I3<#\XVY#GM]?O?#CDD\#$%"($#!4-56#DJ/#CD[K#

):8:313O:*0OP34*)3Z:Q5O*AY@*<A>*<2>*56*:73*!51S8OQ39*&4PQO8OZ3[*A\]^N

P85+#+"%"(&(*"#+("+#3,"#"8(#&%"(-5%6#9%."+#4(-"%5*5*:#"3#"8(#+4(.5%6#;,+5*(++#"3#;(#"-%*+%."($#%"#"8(#!**,%6#L(*(-%6#M(("5*:#39#"8(#?3&4%*2#"3#;(#
8(6$#3*#!4-56#C\/#CD[V<#

(OX39:13O:*QO*/Q978:*,5:3V9*8OP*I45S34:Q39*-Q1Q:3P*

+8%-(#.%45"%6#39#"8(#?3&4%*2#5+#B+<#J/JDD#&56653*<#P8(#&%5*#3;'(."#39#IF=f#5+#"3#(+"%;65+8#83"(6+#%*$#83+45"%65"2#;,+5*(++#5*#=%75+"%*<#IF=f#8%+#
,*$(-"%7(*#"8(#4-3'(."#39#%#83"(6#%*$#%#4-5&(#+83445*:#&%66#05"8#*%&(#39#jQ&43-5,&#M%66k<#P8(#4-3'(."#5+#(+"5&%"($#"3#;(#.3&46("($#5*#"8-((#2(%-+A#
"5&(#05"8# (+"5&%"($# .3+"# 39# %-3,*$# B+<# [W# ;56653*<# P8(# $(1(634&(*"# .3*+5+"+# 39# %# 85:8# b,%65"2# +"%"(@39@"8(@%-"# +83445*:#&%66# 39# 5*"(-*%"53*%6#
+"%*$%-$#%+#0(66#%+#%#83"(6#%*$#%#6%-:(#;%*b,("#8%66<#

!$%&'((# )*+,-%*.(# ?3&4%*2# f5&5"($# X!)?fY# 5+# 46%**5*:# "3#&%7(# %*# (b,5"2# 5*1(+"&(*"# ,4# "3# B+<# JDD#&56653*# 5*# IF=f<# )"# 5+# (>4(."($# "8%"# "85+#

P8(#O5-(."3-+#8%1(#.%--5($#3,"#"8(5-#$,(#$565:(*.(#93-#"8(#4-343+($#5*1(+"&(*"#%*$#$,62#+5:*($#-(.3&&(*$%"53*#39#$,(#$565:(*.(#-(43-"#+8%66#;(#
%1%56%;6(#93-#5*+4(."53*#39#&(&;(-+#5*#"8(#:(*(-%6#&(("5*:#%63*:#05"8#6%"(+"#%,$5"($#%..3,*"+#39#"8(#%++3.5%"($#.3&4%*2<#

55



(O65418:Q5O*0OP34*!V8093*<8>*56*902H43R0V8:Q5O*<A>*56*43R0V8:Q5O*B*56*<(OX39:13O:*QO*"995ZQ8:3P*!51S8OQ39*54*

"995ZQ8:3P*EOP34:8;QOR9>*!51S8OQ39*'3R0V8:Q5O9[*?@A?N

.&&1.0'"*2#"('345653

*
'36N*/5N##'3_0Q4313O:*# (O65418:Q5O

# #5## I%&(#39#%++3.5%"($#.3&4%*2## I5+8%"#F3"(6+#%*$#=-34(-"5(+#f5&5"($#
# # ?-5"(-5%#39#%++3.5%"($#-(6%"53*+854## ?3&&3*#$5-(."3-+854
## 55## =,-43+(## P3#4%-"5.54%"(#5*#"8(#:-305*:#83"(6#;,+5*(++#39## #
# # # "8(#.3,*"-2#"8-3,:8#(b,5"2#5*1(+"&(*"#

# # # 5*1(+"&(*"#5*#%++3.5%"($#.3&4%*2#%*$#.%45"%6#%44-(.5%"53*#
# # =(-53$#39#5*1(+"&(*"## G"-%"(:5.#63*:@"(-&#5*1(+"&(*"
# #555## M%>5&,&#%&3,*"#39#5*1(+"&(*"## B+<#JDD#&56653*#XB,4((+#E51(#F,*$-($#M56653*#R*62Y
# #51## M%>5&,&#4-5.(#]#+8%-(## P8(#4-5.(#"3#;(#4%5$#93-#"8(#(b,5"2#5*1(+"&(*"#0566## #
# # # ;(#4%-#1%6,(#39#B+<#[D]@#4(-#+8%-(#+5*.(#"8(#4-3'(."#5+#%#:-((*##

## 1## M%>5&,&#*,&;(-#39#+8%-(+#"3#;(#%.b,5-($## JD#&56653*#+8%-(+#
# 15## G8%-(836$5*:#;(93-(#5*1(+"&(*"## I3<#39#+8%-(+g#I)f#
# # # G8%-(836$5*:#4(-.(*"%:(g#I)f#

# # # G8%-(836$5*:#4(-.(*"%:(g#Z<DZ`
# 155## B(b,5-(&(*"#5*#.%+(#39#5*1(+"&(*"#5*#65+"($#%++3.5%"($#.3&4%*2# I3"#!4465.%;6(#%+#I5+8%"#F3"(6+#%*$#=-34(-"5(+#f5&5"($#
# # ## 5+#%*#,*65+"($#.3&4%*2
## 1555## E%5-#&%-7("#1%6,(#39#+8%-(+## P8(#9%5-#1%6,(#39#"8(#+8%-(#$("(-&5*($#5*#"(-&+#39#B(:,6%"53*##
# # # WX[Y#5+#B+<#JK<WC#4(-#+8%-(
# 5>## N-(%7@,4#1%6,(#39#+8%-(+## B+<#[D<DV#4(-#+8%-(#%+#%"#KD#c,*(/#CD[K

# >5## G3,-.(+#39#9,*$#9-3&#085.8#+8%-(+#0566#;(#%.b,5-($## R0*#9,*$+#39#"8(#?3&4%*2
## >55## B(b,5-(&(*"+#59#+8%-(+#%-(#5*"(*$($#"3#;(#%.b,5-($#,+5*:#;3--30($#9,*$+## I3"#%4465.%;6(

# #>51## O5-(."#]##)*$5-(."#5*"(-(+"#39#O5-(."3-+#5*#"8(#%++3.5%"($#.3&4%*2## R*(#$5-(."3-#39#!$%&'((#)*+,-%*.(#?3<#f"$/#U&(-#M%*+8%##
# # # .,--(*"62#836$+#CZ<JW`#+8%-(+#5*#I5+8%"#F3"(6+#%*$#=-34(-"5(+##
# # # f5&5"($<#P8(#;-3"8(-+#39#U&(-#M%*+8%/#F%++%*#M%*+8%#_##
# # # B%e%#M%*+8%/#%6+3#(%.8#836$#CZ<JW`#+8%-(+#5*#I5+8%"#F3"(6+##
# # # %*$#=-34(-"5(+#f5&5"($<#P8-((#$5-(."3-+#39#"8(#%++3.5%"($##
# # # .3&4%*2#%-(#5*"(-(+"($#5*#"8(#5*1(+"5*:#.3&4%*2#"3#"8(#(>"(*"##

# # # 4%5$@,4#+8%-(#.%45"%6#39#"8(#?3&4%*2<#I3#3"8(-#+8%-(836$(-#39##
# # # "8(#?3&4%*2#8%+#%*2#+8%-(836$5*:#5*#IF=f<
## >1# !*2#3"8(-#5&43-"%*"#$("%56## I3*(
## >15## O(+.-54"53*#39#"8(#4-3'(."## P8-((#"3#93,-#+"%-#8,*$-($#-33&#83"(6/#;%*b,("#8%66+/#+83445*:##
# # # &%66/#.5*(46(>/#(".<#
# # G"%-"5*:#$%"(#39#03-7## [J#M%-.8/#CD[K#
# # ?3&46("53*#39#03-7## [V#G(4"(&;(-/#CD[J#
# # ?3&&(-.5%6#34(-%"53*+#$%"(## [J#G(4"(&;(-/#CD[J#
# # Q>4(."($#"5&(#;2#085.8#"8(#4-3'(."#+8%66#+"%-"#4%25*:#-(",-*#3*#5*1(+"&(*"# E5*%*.5%6#2(%-#CD[J#@[W



)#"#E)*&+*I$/.(/%*(/F$)#G$/#*.$!()(&/)M#
P8(#$(.5+53*#"3#&%7(#5*1(+"&(*"#5*#M?N#N%*7#f5&5"($#,*$(-#"8(#%,"83-5"2#39#%#+4(.5%6#-(+36,"53*#4%++($#3*#c,62#\/#CDD\#4,-+,%*"#"3#4-315+53*#39#
G(."53*#CD\#39#"8(#?3&4%*5(+#R-$5*%*.(/#[Z\V#0%+#4%-"5%662#5&46(&(*"($<

##P3"%6#5*1(+"&(*"#%44-31($# # # B+<#W#;56653*

##!&3,*"#39#5*1(+"&(*"#&%$(#,4#O(.(&;(-#K[/#CD[K# B+<#C<VZ#;56653*

'3895O*654*O5:*78XQOR*18P3*Z51SV3:3*QOX39:13O:*95*684M

=-53-#"3#5++,(#39#P8(#?3&4%*5(+#X)*1(+"&(*"#5*#!++3.5%"($#?3&4%*5(+#3-#!++3.5%"($#U*$(-"%75*:+Y#B(:,6%"53*+#CD[C#XjB(:,6%"53*+/#CD[CkY#"8(-(#0%+#
*3#"5&(#65&5"#39#&%75*:#5*1(+"&(*"+#,*$(-#"8(#%,"83-5"2#39#%#+4(.5%6#-(+36,"53*<

P3#&(("#"8(#-(b,5-(&(*"#39#B(:,6%"53*#\#39#"8(#B(:,6%"53*+/#CD[C/#"8(#&(&;(-+#5*#"8(#(>"-%3-$5*%-2#:(*(-%6#&(("5*:#8(6$##3*#M%2#K[/#CD[C#8%1(#
%44-31($#"8(#-(&%5*5*:#%&3,*"#"3#;(#5*1(+"($#05"85*#%#4(-53$#39#"8-((#2(%-+#5<(<#,4#"3#M%2#K[/#CD[J<#P8(#-(&%5*5*:#%&3,*"#0566#;(#5*1(+"($#08(*#
31(-%66#(.3*3&5.#+5",%"53*#5&4-31(+#%*$#$(4(*$5*:#,43*#"8(#&%-7("#4-5.(#39#+8%-(<

%Y# N-(%7,4#1%6,(g

# CD[K# B+<#ZW<[K

;Y# Q=G###

# CD[K# B+<#C[<CV

56





!"

#$%&'($)('*&+,-$&.

!"#$%&'()*'
!"#$%&#'

+*"#,%-.$'*/"%0')*'"
($%)*+,%

+1/%&2(/$
($%)*+,%-

.&)%- /#'0"#- "#0- 1))'- +")-

!"$)2- 34)*5+$6)- #'7- !"#$%&#'-

,2- 8$0"#+- /$990- :+7;- 0$'*)-

<)=+)&1)%>- ?@@A;- B)- $0- #-

($%)*+,%-,2-/!C-C#'D-:+7;-#'7-

#90,-+")-!"#$%&#'-,2- +")-E$0D-

/#'#F)&)'+- G- H,%+2,9$,-

E)6$)I- !,&&$++))- #'7- #-

&)&1)%- ,2- +")- C50$')00-

<+%#+)FJ- G- ()6)9,=&)'+-

!,&&$++))- #'7- H"J0$*#9-

H9#''$'F- #'7- !,'+$'F)'*J-

K%%#'F)&)'+0-,2-+")-C#'D;-/%;-

.&)%- /#'0"#- *,&=9)+)7- "$0-

)75*#+$,'- 2%,&- C#10,'-

!,99)F)>-C,0+,'>-.<K;-B)-#90,-

0)%6)0-#0-#-($%)*+,%-,2-8$0"#+-

(#$%J- LH6+;M- :+7;>- 8$0"#+-

()6)9,=)%0- LH6+;M- :+7;>-

K7#&N))- :$2)- K005%#'*)-

!,&=#'J-:+7;>-8$0"#+-KF%$*59O

+5%)- P#%&$'F- LH6+;M- :+7;- #'7-

8$0"#+- B,+)90- G- H%,=)%+$)0-

:+7;--

K"&)7-31%#"$&-B#0"#&-$0-+")-

/)"%#'- <5F#%- /$990- I"$*"- ")-

N,$')7-$'-?@@@;-B)-$0-#-F%#75#+)-

$'- Q'+)%'#+$,'#9- E)9#+$,'0- LQEM-

.'$6)%0$+J>-.<K;-B)-$0-#'-#*+$6)-

*,'+%$15+,%-+,I#%70-<,*$#9-#'7-

K*#7)&$*- <)%6$*)0;- B)- $0- #-

&)&1)%- ,'- +")- C,#%7- ,2-

H#D$0+#'- /,9#00)0- !,&=#'J-

:$&$+)7>- .'$*,9- :$&$+)7>-

/)"%#'- <5F#%- /$990- #'7-

B#0"#&-LH6+;M-:+7;-Q'-#77$+$,'>-

")- $0- #90,- #- &)&1)%- ,2- +")-

34)*5+$6)- !,&&$++))- ,2- +")-

H#D$0+#'- <5F#%- /$990-----------------

K00,*$#+$,';

K9$- /5'$%- "#0- ,6)%- R@- J)#%0S-

)4=)%$)'*)-#'7-$0-=%)0)'+9J-+")-

<)'$,%-34)*5+$6)-T$*)-H%)0$7)'+-

#'7- U%,5=- B)#7- <+%#+)F$*-

H9#''$'F- G- Q'6)0+&)'+0- #+-

/!C- C#'D- :$&$+)7;- B)- N,$')7-

/!C- $'-VWWW-#'7-"$0- %)0=,'0$O

1$9$+$)0- "#6)- $'*957)7- $'2,%&#O

+$,'- +)*"',9,FJ>- ,=)%#+$,'0>-

O

H%)6$,509J>- ")- "#0- 0)%6)7- $'-

0)'$,%- =,0$+$,'0- #+- !$+$1#'D>-

<#57$-K&)%$*#'-C#'D-#'7-B#1$1-

C#'D-:+7;-/%;-/5'$%-$0-#-:#IJ)%-

#'7-!"#%+)%)7-K**,5'+#'+-2%,&-

3'F9#'7;-B)-"#0-#-C;K;-()F%))-

2%,&- U,6)%'&)'+- !,99)F)>-

:#",%)-#'7-#-XXP:-()F%))-2%,&-

+")- .'$6)%0$+J- ,2- H5'N#1>-

:#",%);- B)- I#0- #I#%7)7- +")-

/5YY#2#%- /)&,%$#9- /)7#9- 1J-

+")- <+#+)- C#'D- ,2- H#D$0+#'- $'-

?@@Z- 2,%- *,'+%$15+$,'0- +,- +")-

1#'D$'F-$'750+%J-$'-H#D$0+#';-K9$-

0)%6)0- #0- #- ($%)*+,%- #+- B51-

H,I)%-!,;-:+7;>-/83X-<)%6$*)0-

LH6+;M- :+7>- /!C- 3&=9,J))0-

<)*5%$+J- <J0+)&- G- <)%6$*)0-

LH6+;M- :+7;- #'7- /!C- :)#0$'F-

!,&=#'J-![<!;-B)-$0-#-/)&1)%-

,2- +")- Q'0+$+5+)- ,2- !"#%+)%)7-

K**,5'+#'+0- $'- 3'F9#'7- #'7-

\#9)0>-#0-I)99-#0-+")-Q'0+$+5+)-

,2- !"#%+)%)7- K**,5'+#'+0- ,2-

H#D$0+#';- B)- I#0- #90,- +")-

!"#$%&#'- ,2- +")-<CH-!,&&$+O

+))-2,%-KF%$*59+5%#9-P$'#'*);

3$#,$/4%56#($'$,%,#%7##$
($%)*+,%-

P%)7%$D- 0+#%+)7- "$0- I,%D$'F-

*#%))%-#+-!#=)-X,I'-#'7-9#+)%-

+%#'02)%%)7- +,- +")- 8,%+")%'-

=#%+- ,2- <,5+"- K2%$*#>- H%)+,%$#>-

,')- ,2- +")- *#=$+#90- ,2- <,5+"-

K2%$*#;- B)- ",970- =%,2)00$,'#9-

E#'7- K2%$D##'0- .'$6)%0$+J-

LB5&#'- E)0,5%*)- ()6)9,=O

0+57$)0- $'*957)- "$0- /#0+)%]0-

2%,&- !5&1%$#- .'$6)%0$+J- $'-

^5%$*";- B)- 0+#%+)7- "$0-

$'05%#'*)- *#%))%- $'- VW_`- #'7-

#++)'7)7- 6#%$,50- <)'$,%-

/#'#F)&)'+- ()6)9,=&)'+-

=%,F%#&0- I$+"- a97- /5+5#9-

L!(!-b-/(!-Q-G-QQM-#'7-$'750+%J-

%)9#+)7- +%#$'$'F- $'0+$+5+)0;- B)-

I#0- #I#%7)7- +")- =%)0+$F$,50-

cC)0+- :)#7)%- ,2- +")- d)#%c-

#I#%7-1J-a97-/5+5#9;-B)-#*+)7-

$'- +")- *#=#*$+J- ,2- ($%)*+,%-

75%$'F-"$0-&#'#F)&)'+-*#%))%-

$'-<,5+"-K2%$*#-I$+"-/(C!<>-#0-

I)99- #0- $'+)%'#+$,'#99J- 75%$'F-

"$0- *#%))%- $'- +")- .K3;- B)- $0-

*5%%)'+9J-+")-!3a-,2-K7#&N))-

:$2)- K005%#'*)- !,&=#'J-

:$&$+)7;



!"#$"%&'"())*
!"#$%&'#

+,$"-.#&/-"#(.&
!"#$%&'#

+#$"%&0"1,))*
!"#$%&'#(

)*+#*,(-*.''/(0'",$1(&2$(3"4"/(
5$#4"%$( '6( 7*8".&*,( ",( 9:;<(

=,>/".2(?"&$#*&@#$(6#'+(7@,0*A(
B,"4$#."&CD( E,( 9:;FG( 2$(
'A&*",$1( *( 7'.&>#*1@*&$(
!"H/'+*( ",( !$4$/'H+$,&(
I1+",".&#*&"',(6#'+(J*,%2$.K
&$#(B,"4$#."&CG(B)D(L$(.$#4$1(",(

*HH'",&+$,&.( ",( 7@,0*AG(
M2$#$(2$(M*.(*HH'",&$1(32"$6(
5$%#$&*#C( ",( <NNOD( =*#/"$#G( 2$(
.$#4$1( *.( 32*"#+*,G( P*,8( '6(
7@,0*A( 6'#( *( H$#"'1( '6( *A'@&(
',$( C$*#D( L$( .$#4$1( *.(
5$%#$&*#C( ",(4*#"'@.(J",".&#"$.(
'6(&2$(Q$1$#*/(R'4&DG( ",%/@1",>(
3*A",$&( 5$%#$&*#CG( !$6$,%$(
5$%#$&*#C( *,1( #$&"#$1( ",( <NNFD(
)*+#*,(".(%@##$,&/C(.$#4",>(*.(
R#'@H(L$*1G(5$%@#"&C(*,1(35-(
",(J3P(P*,8(?&1D(L$(".(',(&2$(
P'*#1( '6( !"#$%&'#.( '6( 7*8>$,(
7'M$#( ?&1DG( 7I553SG( J3P(
=+H/'C$$.(5$%@#"&C(5C.&$+(T(
5$#4"%$.( U74&DV( ?&1D( *,1( ?*/H"#(
7'M$#(?&1D(

EA#*2"+( 52*+."( ".( &2$( 32"$6(
=W$%@&"4$( '6( I/*1",( X*&$#( T(
I+@.$+$,&(7*#8G()*#*%2"(*,1(
Y'C/*,1G( ?*2'#$( *,1( ".( */.'(
&2$( 32*"#+*,( '6( 3'&&',( X$A(
U74&DV( ?&1D( L$( ".( ",4'/4$1( ",(
.'%"*/( .$#4"%$.( *.( &#@.&$$( '6(
Y*+"*&K$KZ*/$$+(@/([@#*,(*,1(
2*.( .$#4$1( ',( &2$( $1"&'#"*/(
A'*#1( '6( %'//$>$(T( @,"4$#."&C(
H@A/"%*&"',.D( EA#*2"+( $*#,$1(
2".( JPI( 6#'+( &2$( ?*2'#$(
B,"4$#."&C( '6( J*,*>$+$,&(
5%"$,%$.D( L$( .$#4$.( *.( &2$(
!"#$%&'#('6(Y'C/*,1(U74&DV(?&1DG(
!@H*8( !$4$/'H$#.( 7*8".&*,(
U74&DV( ?&1DG( 5"11"\.',.( ?&1DG(
5"11"\.',.(Z",(7/*&$(?&1DG(IDID(
Y'C/*,1( U74&DV(?&1D(*,1(!@H*8(
Z*+$$#(?&1D

E+#*,(J*\A''/(2'/1.(*,(JPI(
!$>#$$(6#'+(EPIG()*#*%2"(*,1(*(
J5(",(J*,*>$+$,&(6#'+(5/'*,(
5%2''/( '6( J*,*>$+$,&G( JEZG(
B5ID( L$( .&*#&$1( 2".( %*#$$#(
6#'+( P*,8( '6( I+$#"%*G( M2$#$(
2$(M'#8$1(*&(4*#"'@.(H'."&"',.(
",( -$/*&"',.2"H( J*,*>$+$,&G(
3'#H'#*&$( *,1( E,4$.&+$,&(
P*,8",>( '4$#( *( H$#"'1( '6( 9](
C$*#.D(?*&$#G(2$(0'",$1(3"&"A*,8G(
?*2'#$( *.( -$>"',*/( J*,*>$#(
6'#(*(H$#"'1('6(<(C$*#.D(L$(2*.(
A$$,(*(H*#&('6(J3P(6'#('4$#(9N(
C$*#.D( !@#",>( &2".( H$#"'1G( 2$(
M'#8$1( *.( 3'#H'#*&$( L$*1(
A$6'#$(+'4",>( &'( 3'/'+A'( *.(
3'@,&#C( L$*1( '6( J3P^.( 5#"(
?*,8*(SH$#*&"',.D(E,(7*8".&*,G(
2$(2$*1$1(&2$(E./*+"%(P*,8",>(
*,1( 5H$%"*/( I..$&.( J*,*>$K
+$,&( R#'@HD( L$( M*.( R#'@H(
L$*1( 3'++$#%"*/( P*,8",>G(
J3P(P*,8(?&1D(A$6'#$(A$%'+K
",>( 7#$."1$,&( *,1( 3=S( '6( &2$(
P*,8D( 7#"'#( &'( 0'",",>( &2$(
A*,8",>(",1@.&#CG(E+#*,(.$#4$1(
*(A#"$6(.&",&(M"&2(=WW',(32$+"K
%*/( ?&1DG( J@/&*,D( L$( */.'(
.$#4$.( *.( !"#$%&'#( ",( J3P(
Q",*,%"*/( 5$#4"%$.( *,1( J_=Z(
5$#4"%$.(U74&DV(?&1D

02-"##"3&4#"$&5.$6
!"#$%&'#(

J@2*++*1( B+*#( `"#8( ".( &2$(
32*"#+*,( '6( L"#*( Z$W&"/$(J"//.(

.$*.',$1( H#'6$.."',*/( M"&2(
'4$#( <]( C$*#.a( $WH$#"$,%$( ",(
&$W&"/$( &#*1$( *,1( ",1@.&#CD(
B+*#( 6'@,1$1( L"#*( Z$W&"/$(
J"//.( ",( 9::]( AC( *%\@"#",>( *(
.H",,",>( @,"&( ,$*#( ?*2'#$D( L$(
.@%%$..6@//C( &@#,$1( *#'@,1(
&2$( @,"&( AC( .8"//6@/( $WH*,."',(
*,1( @H>#*1*&"',D( J#D( J@2*+K
+*1(B+*#(`"#8(1"1(2".(>#*1@*K
&"',( ",( Z$W&"/$( =,>",$$#",>( ",(
9:;bD( L$( .$#4$.( *.( &2$(
!"#$%&'#( '6( L"#*( Z$W&"/$( J"//.(
?&1D(T(L"#*(Z$##C(J"//.(?&1D

!""#!$%&'()&*%+,-.-/



!"#"$%&'#($)
!"#$%&'#

!"#$)"&'*"#++#%&,#-.%
!"#$%&'#(

'*"#++#%&/($&0.1
)*+*,"+,(!"#$%&'#(-(./0

12*2"3( )*4"5( 6'"+$3( &2$(
7*5"8&*+( 9'#$",+( 1$#:"%$( "+(
;<=>?(!@#"+,(2"8(8$#:"%$(&$+@#$(
'A( ':$#( BC( D$*#8E( 2$( 2*8( 2$43(
F#'G"+$+&( F'8"&"'+8( "+(
7*5"8&*+( )"88"'+8( *H#'*3(
"+%4@3"+,( I'5D'E( J'G$E(
K*82"+,&'+E( L$M( !$42"( *+3(
0&&*M*?( N$( *48'( 8$#:$3( *8(
N",2( .'GG"88"'+$#( 'A(
7*5"8&*+( &'( .*+*3*( M"&2(
%'+%@##$+&( *%%#$3"&*&"'+( *8(
OGH*88*3'#(&'(P$+$Q@$4*(*+3(
N",2(.'GG"88"'+$#(&'(R@D*+*E(
I#"+"3*3( *+3( I'H*,'E( *+3( *8(
N",2( .'GG"88"'+$#( 'A(
7*5"8&*+( &'( S+3"*( A#'G( >TT=( U(
>T;>?( 12*2"3( 2*8( F*#&"%"F*&$3(
"+(:*#"'@8("+&$#+*&"'+*4(%'+A$#U
$+%$8( '+( 8&#*&$,"%( "88@$8E(
"+%4@3"+,( &2$( VL( R$+$#*4(
O88$GH4DE( LO)E( $&%?( N$( 2*8(
H$$+( *( #$,@4*#( 8F$*5$#( *&(
:*#"'@8( "+&$#+*&"'+*4( A'#@G8(

U
&"'+*4( 8$%@#"&D?( N$( "8( '+( &2$(
W'*#3( 'A( !"#$%&'#8( 'A( ).W(
X$*8"+,( .'GF*+D( .Y1.E(
L"82*&( .2@+"*+( 7'M$#( X&3?E(
L"82*&( .2@+"*+( X&3?( *+3(
7*5,$+(7'M$#(X&3?

12*"52( )@2*GG*3( Y*M$3(
M*8( &2$( !"#$%&'#( 'A( !"+(
X$*&2$#( Z7:&?[( X&3?( *+3( 2*8( *(
:*8&( $\F$#"$+%$( "+( #@++"+,( *(
G'8&(G'3$#+( &*++$#D?( !@$( &'(
2"8( &$%2+"%*4( $\F$#&"8$E( !"+(
X$*&2$#( 2*8( #$%$":$3( 8$:$#*4(
$\F'#&( F$#A'#G*+%$( *M*#38E(
G$#"&8( *8(M$44( *8( H$8&( $\F'#&(
F$#A'#G*+%$( &#'F2"$8( A'#( &2$(
$\F'#&( 'A( 9"+"82$3( X$*&2$#(
A#'G( 7*5"8&*+( *+3( &2$(
.'GF*+D]8( %'+&#"H@&"'+( "8(
$*#+"+,( :*4@*H4$( A'#$",+(
$\%2*+,$(A'#(&2$(%'@+&#D?(!@$(
&'( $\%$44$+%$( "+( ^@*4"&D( *+3(
8@FF4DE(&2$(.'GF*+D(2*8(*48'(
#$%$":$3( *( R'43( )$3*44"'+(
OM*#3( A#'G( &2$( S+&$#+*&"'+*4(
/\F'#&(O88'%"*&"'+E(V_?(N$(2*8(
&$%2+"%*4($3@%*&"'+("+(X$*&2$#(
I$%2+'4',D( A#'G( X$*&2$#(
1$44$#8( .'44$,$E( V_?( N$( *48'(
8$#:$8( *8( *( !"#$%&'#( 'A(
O3*G6$$( X"A$( O88@#*+%$(
.'GF*+D(X&3?(

)@2*GG*3( O4"( `$H( 2*8( ':$#(
;a( D$*#8( 'A( $\F$#"$+%$( "+(
)*+@A*%&@#"+,E( 9"+*+%"*4( *+3(
S+8@#*+%$( 8$%&'#8?( O4"( "8( *(
9$44'M(G$GH$#('A(S+8&"&@&$('A(
.2*#&$#$3( O%%'@+&*+&8( 'A(
7*5"8&*+( *+3( M*8( *M*#3$3( *(
,'43(G$3*4("+(.'8&(O%%'@+&"+,?(
N$( 8&*#&$3( 2"8( F#'A$88"'+*4(
%*#$$#( "+(;<<C(*&(L"82*&()"448E(
M2$#$(2$( #'8$( &'( &2$(F'8"&"'+(
'A(9"+*+%"*4(.'+&#'44$#?(N$(&2$+(
6'"+$3( O3*G6$$( S+8@#*+%$( *8(

*+3( 4*&$#( H$%*G$( &2$(
/\$%@&":$(!"#$%&'#E(9"+*+%$?(N$(
M*8(*FF'"+&$3(.2"$A(/\$%@&":$(

)*#%2E(>T;;?(N$(&2$+(8$#:$3(*&(
."&D(1%2''4(Z7:&?[(X&3?(*8(.2"$A(

OF#"4E( >T;B?( N$( #$6'"+$3(
O3*G6$$( S+8@#*+%$( "+( )*DE(
>T;B?( N$( "8( '+( &2$( W'*#3( 'A(
!"#$%&'#8( 'A( ).W( W*+5( X&3?(
*+3( O3*G6$$( X"A$( O88@#*+%$(
.'?(X&3?

!"



!"#$#%!&'$"%(&$)"&*+
!"#$%&'(#)*'+#$&,+)
-,..#+$'/0

,-&$#%!&'$"%.&$#%
!"#$%&'(#)*'+#$&,+)
1'2/2$#

/)&$''$"%!01%2-3
3/2/4'24)*'+#$&,+)5

672/2) 68./7) -8/%78+9) 8/:)
,(#+);<)9#/+:),=)#">#+'#2$#) '2)
!24'2##+'24?)3/2%=/$&%+'24)5)
@2:%+/2$#) :#$&,+:A) B#) :&/+&#7)
8':) $/+##+) '2)CDDE) =+,.)6+7#2)
!24'2##+'24) 5) 6%&,./&',2)

6FGHI3) '2) CDDJA) B#) &8#2)
K,'2#7) 60) B/::/2) L+,%>) ,=)
-,.>/2'#:?)I./2)/:)3/2/4#+)
6M%) *8/M') N+/2$8) '2) CDDDA) @2)
;<<<?) 8#) K,'2#7) OGN) P%.>:)
-,.>/29) F'.'&#7) /:) N+/2$8)
B#/7A)B#)K,'2#7)-0/::'$)Q##7:)
P/R':&/2) SP(&AT) F&7A) /:) /2)
!"#$%&'(#) *'+#$&,+) '2) ;<<EA)
672/2) K,'2#7) 67/.K##)
@2:%+/2$#) '2) ;<<U) /:) B#/7) ,=)
3,&,+) *#>/+&.#2&?) M#$/.#)
L#2#+/0)3/2/4#+)I>#+/&',2:)'2)
;<C<)/27)':)$%++#2&09):#+('24)/:)
!"#$%&'(#)*'+#$&,+)-,..#+$'/0A

!"#"$%!%#&'&%"!

!415%6$33$*
!"#$%&'(#)*'+#$&,+)
H#$82'$/0

6:'=) 8/:) ,(#+) ;<) 9#/+:) ,=)
'2:%+/2$#) #">#+'#2$#) '2) &8#)
/+#/:),=)H#$82'$/0?)I>#+/&',2:)
/27) G/0#:) =%2$&',2:A) B#)
:&/+&#7)8':)$/+##+)'2)CDDE)V'&8)
67/.K##) @2:%+/2$#) -,.>/29)
F'.'&#7)/27)V,+R#7)=,+)/0.,:&)

/&) .'7) /27) :#2',+) 0#(#0)
>,:'&',2:A)B#)/0:,)V,+R#7)V'&8)
3/+:8) P/R':&/2) /:) -8'#=)

;<C;) &'00) W%09?) ;<CEA) G'2$#)
6%4%:&?) ;<CE) 8#) ':) :#+('24) '2)
67/.K##) @2:%+/2$#) /:)
!"#$%&'(#)*'+#$&,+)H#$82'$/0A)
)
6:'=)':)/)-8/+&#+#7)@2:%+#+)/27)
6::,$'/&#) ,=) -8/+&#+#7)
@2:%+/2$#) @2:&'&%&#?) F,27,2A)
B#) ':) /) -8/+&#+#7) 3#.M#+) ,=)
@2:&'&%&#) ,=) F,4':&'$:) /27)
H+/2:>,+&?) F,27,2) /27)
3#.M#+) ,=) -0/'.:) 1/$%0&9) ,=)
-8/+&#+#7) @2:%+/2$#) @2:&'&%&#?)
F,27,2A) 6:'=) ':) /) .#.M#+) ,=)
&8#)O/+/$8')@2:%+/2$#)@2:&'&%&#)
/:)V#00A

3%8/../7) 60') X#M) 8/:) ,(#+)

#">#+'#2$#) '2)&8#)3/2%=/$&%+Y
'24?) 1'2/2$'/0) /27) @2:%+/2$#)
:#$&,+:A)B#):&/+&#7)8':)>+,=#:Y
:',2/0) $/+##+) '2) CDDZ) =+,.)
Q':8/&)3'00:)V8#+#)8#) +,:#) &,)
&8#) >,:'&',2) ,=) 1'2/2$'/0)
-,2&+,00#+A) @2) ;<<Z?) 8#) K,'2#7)
67/.K##) @2:%+/2$#) /:) -8'#=)

>+,.,&#7) &,) !"#$%&'(#)
*'+#$&,+) 1'2/2$#A) @2) ;<<U?) 8#)
V/:) />>,'2&#7) /:) -8'#=)

,2) &8':) >,:'&',2) &'00) 3/+$8?)
;<CCA) B#) &8#2) :#+(#7) /&) -'&9)
G$8,,0) SP(&AT) F&7A) /:) -8'#=)

6>+'0?) ;<CEA) B#) +#K,'2#7)
67/.K##) @2:%+/2$#) '2) 3/9?)
;<CEA

60') ':)/)1#00,V).#.M#+),=)&8#)
@2:&'&%&#) ,=) -8/+&#+#7)
6$$,%2&/2&:) ,=) P/R':&/2) /27)
V/:)/V/+7#7)/)4,07).#7/0) '2)
-,:&)6$$,%2&'24A

[#8/2) 68./7) O8/2) 8/:) ,(#+)
;C) 9#/+:) ,=) #">#+'#2$#) '2)
B#/0&8?)1'2/2$'/0?)N/2R'24)/27)
@2:%+/2$#):#$&,+:A

[#8/2) :&/+&#7) 8':) $/+##+) '2)
CDD;) =+,.)3\:)F/&'=)3#.,+'/0)

3\:) G'7/&) B97#+) 3,+:8#7)
6::,$'/&#:) /:) 3/2/4#.#2&)
-,2:%0&/2&) '2) CDDJA) B#) &8#2)
K,'2#7) 3\:) -+#/&'(#) L+,%>) /:)

=+,.)V8#+#)8#).,(#7)&,)G/%7')
P/R) -,..#+$'/0) N/2R) /:)
[#4',2/0) B#/7) 6%7'&) '2) ;<<<A)

B#/7),=)-,.>0'/2$#)/27)K,'2#7)
67/.K##)@2:%+/2$#)'2);<<])/:)
L#2#+/0) 3/2/4#+) @2&#+2/0)
6%7'&A) B#) ':) $%++#2&09) :#+('24)
/:)!"#$%&'(#)*'+#$&,+)1'2/2$#A
)
[#8/2) ':) /)1#00,V).#.M#+),=)
@2:&'&%&#) ,=) -8/+&#+#7)
6$$,%2&/2&:),=)P/R':&/2A

"##(")'*%+,*&'-./0/1



!"#$%!&%'("#)
!"#$%&'(#)*'+#$&,+)
-%./0)1#2,%+$#2

3.'+) 34) -/.'5) 6/2) ,(#+) 78)

,9) :,$/:) /05) '0&#+0/&',0/:)
./+;#&2) '0) &6#) <09,+./&',0)
=#$60,:,>?@)A/0;'0>)/05)B,,5)
C) A#(#+/>#) '05%2&+'#24) =6#)
'0'&'/:) 9,%+) ?#/+2) ,9) 6'2) $/+##+)
D#+#) '0) E%2&,.#+) F#+('$#2)
D'&6)<AG)/05)A/0;),9)3.#+'$/4)
-#) 2&/+&#5) 6'2) -1) $/+##+) '0)
7HHH)D'&6)A/0;),9)3.#+'$/)/2)
-1)G/0/>#+4)-#)I+,>+#22#5)'0)
6'2) $/+##+) /05) D,+;#5) D'&6)
J0',0) A/0;) K'.'&#5) /2)

G/0/>#+@)J0'&#5)A/0;)K'.'&#5)
/2)LM)-1)F#+('$#2)9,+)M/;'2&/0)
/05) <0&#+0/&',0/:) NI#+/&',02)
/05) D'&6) !.'+/&#2) O:,P/:)
<2:/.'$)A/0;)/2)-1)-#/54)-'2)
:/2&) /22'>0.#0&) D/2) D'&6)
M#I2'E,@)/2)E,.I#02/&',0)/05)

32'/)C)Q,+&6)32'/)/05)-#/5),9)
-1) 9,+) &6#'+) A#(#+/>#2) /05)
B,,52)P%2'0#22#2)'0)M/;'2&/04)
-#)'2)/22,$'/&#5)D'&6)35/.R##)
<02%+/0$#)2'0$#)G/?@)ST7U@)/2)
!"#$%&'(#)*'+#$&,+)-14)
)
3.'+) '2) /0) GA3) '0) -%./0)
1#2,%+$#2) /05) /) .#.P#+) ,9)
.%:&'I:#) -1) 9,+%.2) /05)
/22,$'/&',024)

*(+#,%*(-#$%./0)%
!"#$%&'(#)*'+#$&,+)
E,.I:'/0$#%C)E:/'.2

Q/R'P) Q/2'+) F?#5) 6/2) ,(#+) SV)
?#/+2) ,9) #"I#+'#0$#) '0)
<02%+/0$#) /05) A/0;'0>)
2#$&,+24) Q/R'P) 2&/+&#5) 6'2)
$/+##+) 9+,.) 35/.R##)
<02%+/0$#) '0) 7H8V4)-#) '2) /)JF)

9+,.)=6#)E,::#>#),9)<02%+/0$#@)
Q#D)W,+;4)

-#)6/2)/:2,)2#+(#5)&6#)E#0&+/:)
A/0;)XF&/&#)A/0;),9)M/;'2&/0Y)
/2) Z,'0&) *'+#$&,+) /05@) P#9,+#)
R,'0'0>) 35/.R##) <02%+/0$#) '0)
ST7S@)D/2)&6#)E6'#9)NI#+/&'0>)

-#)6/2)2#+(#5) '0) &6#)$/I/$'&?)
,9) O#0#+/:)G/0/>#+) =#$60'$/:)
'0) &6#) E,.I/0?) /05) '2)
$%++#0&:?)2#+('0>)/2)!"#$%&'(#)
*'+#$&,+) E,.I:'/0$#) /05)
E:/'.24
)
Q/R'P) Q/2'+) F?#5) D/2) /)
.#.P#+) ,9) &6#) !"#$%&'(#)
E,..'&&##) ,9) <3M)C) /:2,) &6#)
E6/'+./0),9)&6#)!0>'0##+'0>)C)
M+,I#+&?)E,..'&&##),9)<3M4

123(""()%.(4#"%56,(4
!"#$%&'(#)*'+#$&,+)
1#[<02%+/0$#

G%6/../5) F/:'.) <\P/:) 6/2)
,(#+) SV) ?#/+2) ,9) #"I#+'#0$#) '0)
&6#) <02%+/0$#) 2#$&,+4) F/:'.)
2&/+&#5)6'2)$/+##+)'0)7H8V)9+,.)
]/6'5'2) 322,$'/&#2) XM(&4Y) K&54)
-#) &6#0) R,'0#5) 35/.R##)
<02%+/0$#) '0) 7H8H) /2) *#I%&?)

R,'0#5) 3:[*6/9+/) <02%+/0$#)
E,.I/0?) '0) 7HH^) /2) G/0/>#+)
G/+'0#) 3('/&',0) /05)
1#['02%+/0$#4) F/:'.) &6#0)
R,'0#5) Q#D) Z%P':##) <02%+/0$#)
E,.I/0?)'0)STT^4)-#).,(#5),0)
&,)<O<)<02%+/0$#)K'.'&#5)'0)STTH)
/2) -#/5) ,9) J05#+D+'&'0>) /05)
+#R,'0#5) 35/.R##) <02%+/0$#) '0)
ST7T) /2) O#0#+/:) G/0/>#+)
=#$60'$/:4) F/:'.) '2) $%++#0&:?)
2#+('0>) /2) !"#$%&'(#) *'+#$&,+)
1#[<02%+/0$#4
)
G%6/../5) F/:'.) <\P/:) '2) /0)
322,$'/&#) G#.P#+) C) B#::,D)
.#.P#+),9)E6/+&#+#5)<02%+/0$#)
<02&'&%&#4) -#) '2) /) .#.P#+) ,9)
<3M_2)B'+#)F#$&',0)E,..'&&##)C)
!0>'0##+'0>) <02%+/0$#)
F%P[$,..'&&##4) -#) '2) /:2,) /)
.#.P#+) ,9) G/+'0#) =#$60'$/:)
E,..'&&##) ,9) !.'+/&#2)
<02%+/0$#)322,$'/&',04

!"



!"#$%&#'(#)"'#
*"+#)'$*,$-,)#(.#
/0)'(&"-#)"-1%/"#
"2/"33"*/"#
'4-(054#
"263(-%*5#$*,#
%**(1$'%*5#*"+#
6-(,0/')#.(-#(0-#
1$30",#
/0)'(&"-)#

7

7

8'# 89:;<# (0-# /(&&%'&"*'# '(# (0-#
)'$="4(3,"-)<#/0)'(&"-)#$*,#)0663%>
"-)#4$)#?""*#'4"#="@#'(#(0-#)0//"))A#
B0-#60-)0%'#(.#'4"#?")'#6-$/'%/")#4$)#
3",#0)#'(#*"+#3"1"3)#(.#6-(."))%(*$3>
%)&#$*,#'(5"'4"-<#+"#4$1"#&$*$5",#
'(#'0-*#/4$33"*5")#%*'(#(66(-'0*%'%")#
$*,#"2/"33",#$)#$#'"$&A

!"#?"3%"1"#(0-#40&$*#-")(0-/")#$-"#
(0-#'-0"#$))"')<#$*,#+%33#/(*'%*0"#'(#
%*1")'# %*#'4"&A#C4"%-#,",%/$'%(*#$*,#

)'-"*5'4#'(#)'-"*5'4A

!"# $%&# '(# )"'# *"+# )'$*,$-,)# (.#
/0)'(&"-#)"-1%/"#"2/"33"*/"#'4-(054#
"263(-%*5# $*,# %**(1$'%*5# *"+#
6-(,0/')# .(-# (0-# 1$30",# /0)'(&"-)<#
$*,#$-"#/(&&%''",#'(#&""'%*5#'4"%-#
"26"/'$'%(*)# '4-(054# (6"-$'%(*$3#
"2/"33"*/"# $*,# /0)'(&"-# )"-1%/"#
'4$'# +(-=)# '(# )'-"*5'4"*# -"3$'%(*>
)4%6)A

!"#$%&'"%%()"

*+ (,,-(.&/"0#/1&*+23

B*#?"4$3.#(.#'4"#D($-,#$*,#E$*$5">
&"*'# :(&&%''""<# 9# +(03,# 3%="# '(#
"26-"))#&@#)%*/"-"#5-$'%'0,"#.(-#'4"#
1$30",# )066(-'# 6-(1%,",# ?@# (0-#
"&63(@"")<#)0663%"-)#$*,#/0)'(&"-)#
%*# 4"36%*5# 0)# $/4%"1"# (0-# /(-6(-$'"#
5($3)A# !"# 4(6"# '4"# /(&%*5# @"$-#
)"")#(0-#-"3$'%(*)4%6)#)'-(*5"-#'4$*#
"1"-A

F%*/"-"3@<

!"#$%%$&'()*'+,-
E$*$5%*5#G%-"/'(-#H#:IB



!"#$%&'()*$%+'

!"#$%&'&(#%#')$&'*$#%+,-.##/$-0$1*&%2##$3'/45&'6#$*#%-'/)5&)#$6-%%7)%#')$)-$/&)7/0.7'($64/)-%#5$'##*/$8.$
%&'&(7'($57/9$&//#//%#')$7'$:#'#5&,$3'/45&'6#;

3'$&,7('%#')$<7)"$/&)7/0&6)7-'$-0$64/)-%#5$'##*/=$+5-6#//#/$&5#$#/)&8,7/"#*$)-$/4++-5)$)"#$>7/7-'$&'*$>&,4#/$-0$)"#$

/./)#%/;$

?#$ 5#(4,&5,.$ &//#//$ -45$ +5-6#//#/$ &'*$ +5&6)76#/$ )-$ 847,*$ -'$ -45$ 5#,&)7-'/"7+$ <7)"$ &,,$ -45$ /)&9#"-,*#5/$ 7'6,4*7'($
64/)-%#5/=$/"&5#"-,*#5/=$/)5&)#(76$+&5)'#5/$&'*$#%+,-.##/;

,-





!"#$%&'($)"*+,-

!"#$%&&'()*+,#)-&'./$0#)1'23$34&"'5!(.26''3*'#'7&)&,#8'3)*+,#)-&'73#)49'3)-/,0/,#4&"'#*'#':+;83-'23$34&"'./$0#)1'/)'
<&04&$;&,'=>9'?@ABC'!(.29'/)&'/D'4E&'8&#"3)7'3)*+,#)-&'-/$0#)3&*'3)':#F3*4#)9'E#*'#',&73/)#8'0,&*&)-&'3)'G)34&"'!,#;'
H$3,#4&*' 5G!H6'#)"'$#3)4#3)*' 34*' *4#)"3)7' 4E,/+7E'#)'+)I#J&,3)7' -/$$34$&)4' 4/' 34*' -/,0/,#4&'0E38/*/0E1C'!(.2K*'
-/$0&4343J&'-/$0&4&)-1'3*'#-E3&J&"';1'-/$;3)#43/)*'/D'J/8+$3)/+*'#**&4*9')/4#;8&'0#3"L+0'-#034#89'*3M#;8&',&*&,J&*9'
#'J#,3&"'0/,4D/83/'#)"'-/)*&N+&)4819',&$#,F#;8&'7,/I4E',#4&*C'!(.2'3*'83*4&"'I34E'#88'4E,&&'*4/-F'&O-E#)7&*'/D':#F3*4#)9'
&*4#;83*E3)7'34*'-,&"3;38341C'PE&'./$0#)1',&4#3)*'#'*4,/)7',&73/)#8'0,&*&)-&'3)'4E&'G!H'5Q+;#3'#)"'!;+'QE#;36C'

!"#$%&'"(')*+,-".%/,)0//"1022,)3

!(.2' #3$*' 4/' "&83J&,' 3))/J#43J&' -+*4/$&,' */8+43/)*9' /I3)7' 4/' 34*'I3"&L,#)73)7' 83)&' /D' 0,/"+-4*C' (4*' &$08/1&&*' #,&'
"&"3-#4&"'4/'0&,D/,$3)7'4E&3,';&*4'D/,'34*'J#8+&"'-+*4/$&,*9'4,#3)&"'I34E'#88'4E&'*F388*')&-&**#,1'D/,'#'4,+81'/+4*4#)"3)7'

4E&'0/4&)43#8'#J#38#;8&'3)'4E&'G!H'$#,F&4'#8/)7'I34E'4E&'-/)*/83"#43/)'/D';+*3)&**'3)'Q+;#3'R'!;+'QE#;3C'!(.2'-/88#;/L
,#4&"'I34E'S/88#,"'()4&,)#43/)#89';#*&"'3)'</+4E'!D,3-#9'4/'-/$$&)-&'23D&'!**+,#)-&'/0&,#43/)*'+)"&,'#'*&0#,#4&'&)4341'
)#$&9'4/"#1'F)/I)'#*'!"#$%&&'23D&'!**+,#)-&'./$0#)1'23$34&"C

(0&,40$,)3"5*&%0"26"7%/26+0$/

!(.2'3*';,/#"81'3)J/8J&"'3)'+)"&,I,343)7'4E&'D/88/I3)7'.8#**&*'/D'T+*3)&**U'

'

/D' !(.2K*' E37E' ,3*FLJ#8+&' 0,/%&-4*' 3)-8+"&' ,3*FL-/J&,#7&' 0,/J3*3/)' 4/' :&4,/-E&$3-#8' V#-4/,3&*' #)"' ()"+*4,3#8' W3*F'
0,/%&-4*C'!(.2'#8*/'*0&-3#83M&*' 3)' 3)*+,3)7'H)73)&&,3)7'#)"'P&8&-/$'-/)-&,)*C'!84&,)#43J&819'!(.2'*&,J&*':#F3*4#)K*'
0,3$#,1' 3)"+*4,1';1'0,/J3"3)7'-/J&,#7&'4/'4E&'P&O438&'#)"'<+7#,'*&-4/,*C'!*'#'03/)&&,' 3)'4E&'-/J&,#7&'/D'X38'R'Y#*'
5+0*4,&#$'R'$3"*4,&#$69'Z3)"'#)"'PE&,$#8'H)&,71'W3*F*9'!(.2'E#*'*+--&**D+881'#**+$&"' 4E&' ,/8&'/D' 4E&' 8&#"3)7'
08#1&,'3)':#F3*4#)K*'3)*+,#)-&'3)"+*4,1C'PE&'./$0#)1'E#*'#8*/'$#)#7&"'4/'*&-+,&';+*3)&**';&3)7';,/+7E4'3)';1'D/,&37)'
3)J&*4/,*'&)4&,3)7':#F3*4#)'4/'&O&-+4&'-/)*4,+-43/)'/,' 3)D,#*4,+-4+,&'"&J&8/0$&)4'0,/%&-4*C'!(.2'3*'0,/+"'4/';&'4E&'
0,&$3&,'3)*+,&,'/D'[3")#0'R'W#)*/$9':,/D&**3/)#8'()"&$)3419':,/"+-4'23#;38341'#)"'/4E&,'*0&-3#83M&"'83)&*'3)':#F3*4#)C

-/$0,&E&)*3J&'-+*4/$&,'*#43*D#-43/)'#)"'#'=\]^'"&"3-#4&"'-+*4/$&,'-#,&'-#88'-&)4&,'3*'#8I#1*'/)'-#88C''

!-8,040+0)2/"#8$6%38"280"90*$

./





!"#$%&&' ()*+,#)-&.*' /0,10,#2&'
30-4#5'6&*10)*4745428'9/36:';,0<,#$'
#4$*' 20' #"",&**' =&8' -0)-&,)*' 4)'
*0-4&28>' *+-?' #*' ?&#52?' #)"' &"+-#@
240)A'B?&'/0$1#)8'#5*0'*2,&**&*'0)'
,&#**+,4)<' 42*' -?4&C' *2#=&?05"&,*' 0C'
0D&,#55' *+*2#4)#745428' 2?,0+<?'
-0$154#)-&>' &2?4-*' #)"' -0,10,#2&'
-424E&)*?41A' B?&*&' &5&$&)2*'
-0$74)&">' C0,$' 2?&' 7#*4*' 0C' !(/F.*'
-0,10,#2&'1?450*01?8'#)"'/36A'

!(/F.*' /36' 4*' 1,4$#,458' C0-+*&"' 0)'
#-?4&D4)<' -0$154#)-&>' +1?05"4)<'
&2?4-#5' *2#)"#,"*>' #-24D&58' 1#,24-4@
1#24)<' 4)' -0,10,#2&' -424E&)*?41' #)"'
$#4)2#4)4)<' 0D&,#55' *+*2#4)#745428A'
!(/F' ?#*' +)"&,2#=&)' #)' #,,#8' 0C'
4)424#24D&*>' 4)-5+"4)<' 4$1,0D&"'
-0$$+)4-#240)' #)"' &G2&)*4D&'
2,#4)4)<>' 20' -+524D#2&' 2?&*&' #*1&-2*'
0C'42*'01&,#240)*A'

!"#$%&'()*+'(,+-./&)0
6&<+5#240)*' #,&' 7&-0$4)<' 4)-,&#*@
4)<58'-0$15&G' 4)' 54<?2'0C'?4<?'2,#)*@
1#,&)-8' 1,&,&H+4*42&*' 7&4)<'
&)C0,-&"'<507#558A'!(/F'?#*'-0)24)+@
#558' *2,4D&)' 20' "&D&501' 42*' -#1#7454@
24&*' +)245' 42' -#)' 7&' #2' 1#,' I42?'
4)2&,)#240)#5' 15#8&,*' 4)' 2?&' <507#5'
4)*+,#)-&' 4)"+*2,8>' $&&24)<' #55'
)&-&**#,8' *2#)"#,"*' #)"' -?&-=*A'
!(/F.*' &"<&' 4)' 2?&'$#,=&2' #2' ?0$&'

@
#)-&'0C'4)2&,)#240)#5'*2#)"#,"*A

!(/F'?#*'4)-&**#)258',&42&,#2&"'2?#2'
42*' /0$154#)-&';&,C0,$#)-&'32#)"@
#,"*' #,&' #1154&"' 20' #55' #,&#*' 0C'
7+*4)&**A'!(/F'&)*+,&*'20'4)-,&#*&

-0$154#)-&'#)"'&2?4-#5'+)"&,*2#)"4)<'
2?,0+<?0+2' 42*' $#)#<&$&)2' ?4&,#,@
-?8A' ()424#24D&*' 2#=&)' 4)-5+"&' 4)2&,)#5'

2,#4)4)<*' 4)'"&2#45&"' ,&<+5#20,8'#,&#*'

'
'
1*'%./2+3'4*.5+6+-(7&8"(#*(.'
J&#52?>' 3#C&28' #)"' K)D4,0)$&)2#5'
9J3K:' ,&*10)*4745424&*' -0)*242+2&' #)'
&**&)24#5'1#,2'0C'!"#$%&&'()*+,#)-&'
01&,#240)*A' B?&*&' 7&-0$&' 2?&' -0,&'
0C'2?&'/0$1#)8.*'#-24D424&*A'!"#$%&&'
$#)#<&$&)2' #)"' &$1508&&*' *?#,&'
2?&'7&54&C'2?#2'<00"'J3K'-0)2,47+2&*'
10*424D&58' #)"' 1,0"+-24D&58' 20'
7+*4)&**'"&D&501$&)2'#)"'*+--&**A'
(2' 4*' 2?4*' 7&54&C' 2?#2' 2?&)' +,<&*'
!"#$%&&'()*+,#)-&'20'4)-,&#*&'2&#$'

C0,' &$1508&&*>' -+*20$&,*' #)"'
)&4<?70+,*A' B?&' /0$1#)8' #5*0'
?01&*' 20' *#C&<+#,"'1&015&.*'?&#52?'
#)"' $4)4$4E&' 2?&' &)D4,0)$&)2#5'
4$1#-2' 0C' 2?&4,' %07*A' !(/F.*' J3K'
1054-8' 07*&,D&*' #55' &G4*24)<' 5#I*>'
,&<+5#240)*'#)"'#$&)"$&)2*A

!"##&..*,+."+-9)*%%*()*
()'#)'&,#'0C' 4)2&)*&'?&-24-'-0$1&24@

@
D&,4)<' -0$$42$&)2' 20' 01&,#240)#5'

+)1#,#55&5&"' ,&*+52*>' =&&14)<' 42*'

-+*20$&,*.')&&"*A

!"#$"#%&'
("!)%*
#'($"+(),)*)&-

' 6&54&C'L+)"

' B&-?)4-#5'()*242+2&'

' (B'F#70,#20,8''

:';"8+<"('.&"(0+
=7*8+./*+>*'8

./





!"#$%&'(!$')$'$*+',-&

./

!!"#$%&'("#)*********************************************+,-.************+,-+************+,--* +,-,* +,,/* +,,0
!

1232456*)7668*! ! ! ! ! !
"#$%&'(!)#($*#+!! !,-.//! !0-1,2! !0-1,2! !0-1,2!! !0-01.!! !0-/11!
34546745!! !0-88/! !0-881! !0-181! !0-098!! !0-0,2!! !0-/2:!
;<=$*>!! !0,-/82! !00-8:9! !0/-:,.! !00-///!! !0/-2:0!! !:-..?!
@A745*B4A*5!CDEEF!G#+=4H!! !00-,9/! !?-?8:! !?-8.1! !?-8/2!! !?-9.:!! !2-.22!
@A745*B4A*5!CI#6F4*!G#+=4H!! !0:-,?0! !0,-0:?! !?-..2! !0/-//,!! !0/-0.1!! !9-2,.!
J$K4%!L554*5!! !0-0?2! !0-00:! !0-/9,! !0-0/0!! !0-/./!! !?8/!
)#5M!N!D#AF!O4(E5$*5!! !1-.89! !1-./2! !1-,2?! !1-2/.!! !1-0.2!! !0-218!
P*M46!L554*5!! !01-/??! !00-/,8! !00-02,! !08-928!! !:-282!! !:-29,!
QE*#+!L554*5!! !12-1/1! !18-9/2! !18-/92! !12-::2!! !10-901!! !0?-//8!
QE*#+!R$#S$+$*$45!! !08-0..! !0,-010! !0,-1,1! !09-::2!! !0/-:,0!! !0/-888!
!
9:6;28<4=*>282!! ! ! ! ! !
T6E55!"64B$=B!! !0/-/22! !0/-/.?! !00-/98! !00-.98!! !0/-,10!! !0/-1/.!
U4*!"64B$=B!! !.-./2! !.-921! !9-?:,! !9-::,!! !9-:/2!! !2-8::!
U4*!)+#$B5!! !,-8:2! !8-08,! !8-919! !8-:9:!! !8-8.,!! !.-02,!
U4*!)EBB$55$EA!!! !,8:! !,.?! !829! !.0.!! !.//!! !280!
'A%46V6$*$AW!345=+*!! !0,2! !C801H! !099! !189!! !92?!! !,92!
'A%46V6$*$AW!;K(4A545!! !0-.,.! !0-.:,! !0-20.! !0-1..!! !0-02.!! !0-1/2!
T4AX!N!L%B$AX!!;K(4A545!! !88.! !800! !0-1/1! !9,.!! !211!! !.00!
J$A#AY$#+!)M#6W45!! !1! !9! !0.! !0?!! !&!!!! !&!!!
QE*#+!I#A#W4B4A*!;K(4A545!! !0-?:,! !1-///! !1-?,1! !0-?/?!! !0-:?2!! !0-20:!
@A745*B4A*!@AYEB4!! !1-,.2! !0-,,1! !:.1! !22?!! !1-82?!! !0-/?:!

!
)72;6*%4?@;A28<@4!! ! ! ! ! !
D64#F!'(!G#+=4!"46!ZM#64!C35XH!! !,2X,! !?1X:! !:2X9! !::X?!! !?.X?!! !:,X2!
UEX!P[!ZM#645!!! !,./! !01,X2! !01,X2! !01,X2!! !001X.!! !0/1X1!
ZM#64!"6$Y4!L*!;A%!C35XH!! !,2X8! !9:X0! !89X.! !:2X.!! !01,X,!! !0/0X:!
\$WM45*!ZM#64!"6$Y4!O=6$AW!]4#6!C35XH!! !0/9X8! !:0X9! !?9X8! !0,.X1!! !0,/X8!! !809X?!
REV45*!ZM#64!"6$Y4!O=6$AW!]4#6!C35XH!! !,2X/! !8.X/! !81X0! !9,X0! !80X9!! !0/0X:!
^Z;!0//!@A%4K!! !1.-1:8! !09-?/.! !00-,82! !01-/11!! !?-,:2!! !.-:9.!
I#6F4*!"6$Y4!QE!D64#F!'(!G#+=4!! !0X/! !/X2! !/X.! !0X/!! !0X,!! !0X1!
!
><B8;<CD8<@4*! ! ! ! ! !
C_HO$7$%4A%!"46!ZM#64!C35XH!! !,X.! !0X.! !1X.! !,X,!! !,X,!! !,X/!
C_HQE*#+!O$7$%4A%!&!LBE=A*!! !8,,X/! !0:.X9! !,/?X,! !8/8X?!! !,2,X1!! !,,2X8!
)#5M!O$7$%4A%!`!! !,.X/! !0.X/! !1.X/! !1,X9!! !18X0! !,/X/!
DEA=5!ZM#645!!`!! !0:1X?! !&! !&! !?X0! !?X0! !&!
QE*#+!O$7$%4A%!`!! !102X?! !0.X/! !1.X/! !,1X2!! !,,X1!! !,/X/!

#D:66B*<4*A<33<@4

 



!!"#$%&'("#)** +,-.* +,-+* +,--* +,-,* +,,/* +,,0
!
123435246*#47289** * * * * *

! ! ! ! ! !

"#$%%!&#'()*(!+,-!! !./01!! !203!! !+405-! !503!! !.60/!! !//06!

7'8!&#'()*(!+,-!! !540/!! !//09!! !+402-! !301!! !:90/!! !/603!

;$(<)='>!?@8)$!! !1306!! !/430:!! !1302!! !1205!! !1404!! !160/!
A@=@B'('=8!CDE'=%'%!F!
"#$%%!&#'()*(!+,-!! !/103!! !/101!! !.206!! !/206!! !/905!! !/209!
A@=@B'('=8!CDE'=%'%!F!
7'8!&#'()*(!+,-!! !:204!! !:60:!! !5.04!! !.303!! !.301!! !..01!
G=>'#H#)8)=B!?'%*I8!F!7'8!&#'()*(!+,-!! !.06!! !+30:-! !.05!! !:02!! !/404!! !501!
7'8!;I@)(%!F!7'8!&#'()*(!+,-!! !2:0:!! !3:04!! !220:!! !3403!! !2605!! !210/!
J=K'%8('=8!J=L$('!F!7'8!&#'()*(!+,-!! !5.09!! !.:06!! !/.0.!! !//0:!! !:205!! !/503!
!
#:7;<3*$8*)=4<:=86>:<9!! ! ! ! ! !
?'8*#=!M=!NK'#@B'!;@E)8@I!
C(EI$O'>!+,-!! !/204!! !602!! !/0.!! !505!! !.60.!! !/:02!
?'8*#=!M=!CP*)8O!Q!!&RS!+,-!! !/201!! !609!! !+405-! !501!! !.50/!! !/:03!
?'8*#=!M=!CP*)8O!Q!!&NS!+,-!! !/60/!! !606!! !/0.!! !505!! !..02!! !/.09!
C@#=)=B!&'#!TU@#'!+?%0-!! !602!! !60/!! !/0/!! !:01!! !./02!! !109!
&FC!?@8)$!! !203!! !/:05!! !5:02!! !..05!! !603!! !/405!
?'8*#=!M=!;@E)8@I!C(EI$O'>!+,-!! !/60/!! !606!! !/0.!! !505!! !..02!! !/.09!
V)K)>'=>!W)'I>!+,-!! !105!! !.0.!! !605!! !:09!! !.03!! !.01!
V)K)>'=>!&@O$*8!+,-!! !2.0:!! !.106!! !.:50:!! !950:!! !/60:!! !:403!
?'8*#=!M=!S$8@I!N%%'8%!+,-!! !30.!! !.02!! !406!! !/03!! !//0:!! !609!
!
(2?;2>27@*A*(:B:<4C:*! ! ! ! ! !
S$8@I!N%%'8%!S*#=$K'#!+S)('%-!! !405!! !405!! !406!! !405!! !406!! !406!
X)D'>!N%%'8%!S*#=$K'#!+S)('%-!! !905!! !104!! !/405!! !/406!! !109!! !/401!
S$8@I!Y)@<)I)8)'%!F!CP*)8O!+,-!! !/4906!! !//50.!! !/..0/!! !/6:06!! !/4406!! !/..04!
&@)>QGE!;@E)8@I!F!S$8@I!N%%'8%!+,-!! !/.01!! !604!! !60/!! !505!! !60.!! !605!
CP*)8O!F!S$8@I!N%%'8%!+,-!! !5904!! !5203!! !5604!! !:105!! !5101!! !5604!
! ! ! ! ! !
+Z-!J=LI*>)=B!R$=*%!V)K)>'=>

!""#!$%&'()&*%+,-.+/

#;D::9*23*E266283



!"#$%&'#()*#$+'#&!
"#!"$%!&%&'%()!#*!
+*,#*)#-./0"%/!

1.*0*,.0-!)"0"%&%*")





!"#$%&'#()*#$+'#&

!"# $%&'()# *)# +&%# ,*'-.# *)# /0-%1+*-23# 4# '5# 6(%'2%.# +*#
6-%2%"+# +&%# 78-.# 9"":'(# ;%6*-+# *)# <*:-# =*56'"<#

>
5%"+2#)*-#+&%#<%'-#%".%.#8?#/%1%5$%-3#@A?8B

!"#$#%&"'#(!)(&!*
C&%# <%'-# 2+'-+%.#D0+&# 2(:EE02&# %1*"*501# '1+0F0+<# 0"# +&%#
D'G%# *)# 6*D%-# '".# E'2# 2&*-+'E%2# '(*"E# D0+&# *+&%-#
0"+%-"'(# '".# %H+%-"'(# 1&'((%"E%2B# C&%# 10-1:('-# .%$+#
-%5'0"2# &0E&# .%260+%# *)# +%56*-'-<# '.I:2+5%"+2# $<#

*)# J:$(01# K%1+*-# L"+%-6-02%2# MJKL2N# '(2*# .%+%-0*-'+%.3#
-%2:(+0"E#0"#):-+&%-#$:-.%"#*"#+&%#%1*"*5<B#C&%#'.F%-2%#
056'1+# *)# +&%2%# 1&'((%"E%2# D%-%# 1*56*:".%.# $<# +&%#

+&%#%1*"*5<B#

-%2+*-'+0*"# *D0"E# +*# 25**+&# '".# 6%'1%):(# %(%1+0*"# '".#

2&*D2#20E"#*)#-%1*F%-<B#O021'(#<%'-#2+'-+%.#D0+&#+&%#20"E(%#

)*-%2%%'$(%#):+:-%B

C&%#%1*"*5<#&'2#-%1*-.%.#'#P/J#E-*D+&#*)#QBQR3#D&%-%#
2%-F01%# 2%1+*-# 1*"+0":%.# +*# $%# +&%#5'I*-# 1*"+-0$:+*-# 0"#
P/J#E-*D+&B

J'G02+'"S2#%T:0+<#5'-G%+#-%'1&%.#+&%#&0E&%2+#%F%-#5'-G3#
'2#UKL#?AA#0".%H#E'0"%.#QVBWR#*F%-#@A?@#0".%H3#+*#1(*2%#
'+#@73@XQB

C&%#0"2:-'"1%#2%1+*-#1*"+0":%.#+*#)'1%#1&'((%"E%2#.:%#+*#
2(*D# P/J# E-*D+&3# 2(*D# 5'":)'1+:-0"E# '1+0F0+<# 0"# +&%#
D'G%# *)# %"%-E<# 2&*-+'E%2# '".# .%1(0"0"E# 0"F%2+5%"+# 0"#

056-*F%.#*"#+&%#$'1G#*)#-%1*-.#$-%'G0"E#6%-)*-5'"1%#$<#

*6%-'+0*"2#056-*F%.#.:-0"E#+&%#<%'-B

"#%+,$-'+!).#)%,$"!')!(&!*
4"#+&%#<%'-#@A?83#-%.:1+0*"#0"#6-01%2#*)#0"2:-'"1%#6-*.:1+2#
1*"+0":%.# +*# 6*2%# 6-%22:-%# *"# +&%# -%F%":%Y# &*D%F%-#
=*56'"<#D'2#'$(%#+*#2:2+'0"#2050('-#(%F%(#*)#-%F%":%#'2#
2%%"#0"#@A?@B

4"# @A?83# +&%# E-*22# 6-%50:5# 0"1-%'2%.# $<# AB@R# +*# ;2B#
?A3AZZ#50((0*"#'2#1*56'-%.#+*#;2B#?A3A7V#50((0*"#0"#@A?@B#
C&%#"%+#6-%50:5#-%+%"+0*"#D'2#77R#'5*:"+0"E#;2B#737AZ#
50((0*"#*)#+*+'(#E-*22#6-%50:5#:".%-D-0++%"#'2#1*56'-%.#

+*#+&%#"%+#6-%50:5#-%+%"+0*"#*)#7WR#'5*:"+0"E#;2B#73WZ@#
50((0*"#0"#('2+#<%'-B

C&%# "%+# 1('05# -'+0*# &'2# .%1-%'2%.# $<# ?AR# +*# W8R#
1*56'-%.# +*#Z8R# ('2+#<%'-B#['"'E%5%"+#%H6%"2%2#'".#
"%+#1*550220*"#%H6%"2%2#%'1&#&'F%#-%.:1%.#$<#8R#*F%-#
+&%# 1*--%26*".0"E# <%'-B# C&%# :".%-D-0+0"E# -%2:(+2#

*)#;2B#Q?@#50((0*"#0"#+&%#6-%1%.0"E#<%'-B#

C&02# <%'-3# +&%# -%+:-"# *"# +&%# 0"F%2+5%"+# 6*-+)*(0*# &'2#

-%F%-2'(#*)#056'0-5%"+#*)#;2B#?V7#50((0*"#'2#1*56'-%.#+*#;2B#
?388@#50((0*"#('2+#<%'-B

C&%#E%"%-'(#'".#'.50"02+-'+0*"#%H6%"2%2#&'F%#0"1-%'2%.#+*#
;2B#QQ7#50((0*"#0"#@A?8#'2#1*56'-%.#+*#;2B#Q??#50((0*"#.:-0"E#
('2+#<%'-B#C&02#0"1-%'2%#*)#XR#0"#E%"%-'(#'".#'.50"02+-'+0F%#
%H6%"2%2# D'2# 6-05'-0(<# .:%# +*# 0"1-%'2%# 0"# 6-*F020*"# )*-#
D*-G%-2S#D%()'-%#):".#0"#+&%#1:--%"+#6%-0*.#$<#;2B#8@#50((0*"B##

,-



!"#$%"&'"()*)&+,',

%-./(0(!.12/.34
!"#$%&'(%)#*)$#+,%-.&//%*0%12/"'$//%-*'/+"+2+$/%345%*0%+6$%
+*+&.% )*#+0*."*7%82#"'9% +6$% ,$&#:% +6$% ;*<)&',% 6&/% 2'($#=
>#"++$'% &% 9#*//% )#$<"2<% *0% ?/7% 3:44@% <".."*'% ABC4BD% ?/7%
3:CC3%<".."*'E7% F6$% #&+"*% *0% '$+% -.&"</% +*% '$+% )#$<"2<% "/%
GG5%+6"/%,$&#%&/%-*<)&#$(%+*%H35%.&/+%,$&#7%F6$%;*<)&',%
"'-2##$(%&'%2'($#>#"+"'9%.*//%*0%?/7%@G%<".."*'%&/%-*<)&#$(%
+*%&'%2'($#>#"+"'9%.*//%*0%?/7%ICJ%<".."*'%"'%BC4B7%

56.-7/8()9-63-17(0($.67:21.3%
F6"/%-.&//%*0%12/"'$//%-*'/+"+2+$/%K5%*0%+6$%+*+&.%)*#+0*."*7%
F6$%;*<)&',%6&/%2'($#>#"++$'%&%9#*//%)#$<"2<%*0%?/7%K3J%
<".."*'%"'%-2##$'+%,$&#%&/%-*<)&#$(%+*%?/7%JIK%<".."*'%"'%+6$%
.&/+%,$&#7%F6$%'$+%-.&"</%#&+"*%"/%IK5%&/%&9&"'/+%3K5%.&/+%

<".."*'%&9&"'/+%?/7%GG%<".."*'%.&/+%,$&#7

5131.(
F6"/%-.&//%*0%12/"'$//%-*'/+"+2+$/%IB5%*0%+6$%+*+&.%)*#+0*=
."*7%82#"'9%+6$%,$&#:%+6$%;*<)&',%6&/%2'($#>#"++$'%&%L#*//%
M#$<"2<% *0% ?/7% I:BII% <".."*'% &/% -*<)&#$(% +*% ?/7% B:HJI%
<".."*'%"'%.&/+%,$&#7%F6$%#&+"*%*0%'$+%-.&"</%+*%'$+%)#$<"2<%

0*#%+6$%-2##$'+%,$&#% "/%G@5%&/%-*<)&#$(%+*%GG5%"'%BC4B7%
M#2($'+% <&'&9$<$'+% *0% <*+*#% -.&//% *0% 12/"'$//% 6&/%

-*<)&#$(%+*%&'%2'($#>#"+"'9%.*//%*0%?/7%3J%<".."*'%"'%BC4B7

5-:;/<<67/1=:%
F6$%<"/-$..&'$*2/% -.&//%*0% 12/"'$//% -*'/+"+2+$/%BC5%*0%
+6$%+*+&.%)*#+0*."*7%F6$%9#*//%)#$<"2<%/6*>$(%&%($-#$&/$%
*0%445%*N$#%.&/+%,$&#%>"+6%&%9#*//%)#$<"2<%>#"++$'%*0%?/7%
4:HJ4% <".."*'% ABC4BD% ?/7% B:BI@% <".."*'E7% F6$% #&+"*% *0% '$+%
-.&"</%+*%'$+%)#$<"2<%"/%KB5%&/%&9&"'/+%J35%.&/+%,$&#7%F6$%

-2##$'+%,$&#%&9&"'/+%&'%2'($#>#"+"'9%.*//%*0%?/7%4BB%<".."*'%
"'%.&/+%,$&#7%%

'*>?,$5?*$('*@"5?
82#"'9% +6$% ,$&#:% <&#O$+% -&)"+&."P&+"*'% &'(% +6$% +#&("'9%

-*<)&#$(%+*%)#$N"*2/%,$&#7%F6$%QRS=4CC% "'($T% "'-#$&/$(%
1,%3H7G5:%-.*/"'9%&+%B@:BJ3%"'%BC4I%&/%-*<)&#$(%+*%4G:HC@%
"'%BC4B7
U'-*<$%0#*<%"'N$/+<$'+/%"'-#$&/$(%0#*<%?/7%4:IIB%<".."*'%
+*% ?/7% B:I@K%<".."*'% "'% BC4I% "7$7% &'% "'-#$&/$% *0% KK5% *N$#%
)#$N"*2/%,$&#7

!""#!$%&'()&*%+,-..+



!"#$% #&'()*$)% +*$% ,*(-),.% /0)% 12% #&'()*$)% #&% /#3#/)&/%
#&'24)%*&/%2&%-*#&%)*(&)/%2&%$*,)%25% 6*3*#,*7,)852(8$*,)6%
#&3)$14)&1$9%

!")%(#$)%#&%:;<8=>>%#&/)?%12%1")%@AB@CD%4*(E%*1%1")%.)*(8
)&/%/*1)B%*$%*-*#&$1%=FBG>A%H2#&1$%2&%I=%J)')47)(B%@>=@B%
%12-)1")(%+#1"%21")(%5*'12($%+*((*&1)/%*%()3)($*,%25%#4H*#8
(4)&1 %#& %1") %#&3)$14)&1 %H2(152,#2 %"),/ %7. %1") %K24H*&. %25

8
)4)&1$%52(%@>=I

!")%7()*E80H%25%#&3)$14)&1%#&'24)%#$%*$%0&/)(L

% %

!"#$%&'()*%))+,)
!")%121*,%*$$)1$%25%1")%K24H*&.%*$%2&%I=%J)')47)(B%@>=I%
$122/%*1%M$9%@NB@>@%4#,,#2&%*-*#&$1%M$9%@DBF>N%4#,,#2&%,*$1%
.)*(%$"2+#&-%*&%#&'()*$)%25%==O%4*#&,.%/0)%12%#&'()*$)%#&%
1")%3*,0)%25%#&3)$14)&1$9%!")%121*,%'*$"%*&/%7*&E%7*,*&')%
*1%1")%)&/%25%.)*(%+*$%M$9%@BADF%4#,,#2&%*$%*-*#&$1%M$9%@BA>N%
4#,,#2&% ,*$1% .)*(B% *&% #&'()*$)% 25% @O9% !")% 4*&*-)4)&1%
)&$0()$%2H1#404%01#,#P*1#2&%25%50&/$%*&/%12%4*E)%0$)%25%
7)11)(%#&3)$14)&1%2HH2(10&#1#)$9

-.)/*#.,.0%,."&
Q&/)(+(#1#&-%(#$E%#&',0/)$%1")%(#$E$%25%#&*HH(2H(#*1)%0&/)(8
+(#1#&-% +"#'"% #&',0/)$% #&*/)R0*1)% H(#'#&-B% #&*HH(2H(#*1)%

8
4)&19% !2%4*&*-)% 1"#$% (#$EB% 1")% K24H*&.% H*.$% H*(1#'0,*(%
*11)&1#2&%12%1")%0&/)(+(#1#&-%'2&1(2,$%*&/%(#$E%$0(3).$9%

!")%0&/)(+(#1#&-%")*/$%25%)*'"%/)H*(14)&1%*()%()$H2&$#8
7,)% 52(%4*&*-#&-%*&/%'2&1(2,,#&-%1")%0&/)(+(#1#&-%2H)(*8
1#2&$% 0&/)(% 1")#(% ()$H)'1#3)% /24*#&$9% % Q&/)(+(#1#&-% #$%
'2&/0'1)/% #&% *''2(/*&')% +#1"% *% &047)(% 25% 1)'"&#'*,%

*01"2(#1#)$B%-0#/),#&)$%7.%',*$$%25%70$#&)$$B%(*1)%42&#12(8
#&-B% 0&/)(+(#1#&-% H))(% ()3#)+$% *&/% H(*'1#')% 52(% $))E#&-%
-0#/*&')% 2&% ,*(-)% *&/% #&1(#'*1)% (#$E$% 5(24% M<S% TM#$E%
<?H2$0()%S(20HU9%%!"#$%S(20H%#$%()H()$)&1)/%7.%<?)'01#3)%
J#()'12(%!)'"&#'*,B%<?)'01#3)%J#()'12(%K244)('#*,B%<?)'08
1#3)%J#()'12(%K,*#4$%*&/%K24H,#*&')%*&/%<?)'01#3)%J#()'12(%
M)8V&$0(*&')9% W.% 4*E#&-% 0$)% 25% K()$1*% X2&)$% *&/% S)2%
K2/#&-% 1")% K24H*&.% 42&#12($% 1")% (#$E% 25% *''040,*1#2&%
*(#$#&-%5(24%'*1*$1(2H"#'%)3)&1$9

!")%)?H2$0()%#$%H(21)'1)/%7.%*%'24H()")&$#3)%()8#&$0(*&')%

H2$$#7,)%'*1*$1(2H"#'%)3)&1$9%%

% 1234* 1231
****************************************************************5-67889*:;*<:==:>;?

J#3#/)&/%#&'24)% GIF% NGN
M)10(&%2&%!YK$% ==% =C
M)10(&%2&%!()*$0(.%7#,,$% F% =@
M)10(&%2&%ZVW$% ==% F

52(%$*,)[%#&3)$14)&1% =B=GC% =DI
% @B=F@% GNF
M)3)($*,%25%#4H*#(4)&1%% =GA% IAF
\)1%#&3)$14)&1%#&'24)%% 1@4AB* 3@441

!!



!"#$%&'()*+$),-&$")-$)$-#().)/#$0"+-12),$31-4$ 1*-(#25
/1&*$6#()./'#*/$7"12"$2)..1#-$&8/$)$,).9#$*8':#.$&;$"19"$
.1-4$ )*6$ ,).9#$ )*6$'#618'$ .1-4-$ -8.<#+-$ :#;&.#$ 8*6#.5
7.1/1*9$ /"#'=$ !"#$ -8.<#+-$ ).#$ 2&*682/#6$ :&/"$ &*$ -#/$
-2"#68,#-$)*6$&*$2)-#$/&$2)-#$:)-1-=$!"#$6#()./'#*/$:+$
;).$ 2)..1#-$ &8/$ /"#$ ,).9#-/$ *8':#.$ &;$ -8.<#+-$ 1*$ /"#$
').4#/$)*6$(.&<16#-$)*$1*-19"/$&;$/"#$.1-4$/&$/"#$8*6#.5
7.1/#.-$/"8-$)--1-/1*9$/"#'$1*$')41*9$.19"/$6#21-1&*-=

!"#$%&'()*"'+(
>/$>6)'?##$@*-8.)*2#$A@/B-$),,$):&8/$0#&(,#CD$)-$7#$/.8,+$
:#,1#<#$/")/$&8.$#'(,&+##-$).#$/"#$9.#)/#-/$-/.#*9/"$7#$
")<#=$!),#*/$E)*)9#'#*/$1-$)$2&*/1*8&8-$(.&2#--$)*6$7#$
#*-8.#$/")/$7#$"1.#$ .19"/$(#&(,#$&*$ .19"/$ ?&:-=$3#7).6-$
).#$ :)-#6$ &*$ (#.;&.')*2#$ 28,/8.#D$ 28,/8.#$ 1-$ #*9)91*9$
)*6$ :)-#6$ &*$ #/"12),$ <),8#-$ )*6$ )'(,#$ 2).##.$ 9.&7/"$
&((&./8*1/1#-$).#$(.&<16#6$/&$&8.$#'(,&+##-=$$!"#$%).##.$
F&.41*9$ G.&8(-$ ")<#$ ;&28-#6$ &*$ 1'(.&<1*9$ :#*2"5
-/.#*9/"$)/$'166,#$)*6$-#*1&.$')*)9#'#*/$,#<#,D$2.#)/5
/1*9 $&((&./8*1/1#- $;&. $"19" $(&/#*/1), $#'(,&+##-D $/".&89"
$6#<#,&('#*/$(.&9.)''#-

>-$)$.#-8,/D$),,$4#+$#'(,&+##-B$-)/1-;)2/1&*$1*612)/&.-$1=#=$
#'(,&+##$ (.&682/1<1/+D$ #*9)9#'#*/$ 1*6#HD$ #'(,&+##$
/8.*&<#.$)*6$;#'),#$61<#.-1/+$;&.$IJKL$).#$#*2&8.)91*9=

,)*&-../&+('0,1,+$0,*%
>6)'?##$ @*-8.)*2#$ ")-$ ),7)+-$ #*6#)<&.#6$ /&$ #*")*2#$
28-/&'#.$ -)/1-;)2/1&*$ /".&89"$ 2&*/1*8),,+$ 1'(.&<1*9$ 1/-$
(.)2/12#-D$(.&2#--#-$)*6$M/)*6).6-=$N+$8(9.)61*9$/&$@MO$
PJJKQIJJRD$ >6)'?##$ ")-$ &*2#$ )9)1*$ )--8.#6$ 1/-$$$$$$$$$$$$$

.#S81.#'#*/-=

!"1-$ +#).$ 7#$ ")<#$ -822#--;8,,+$ 2&'(,#/#6$ &8.$ /"1.6$

"$(&*2('$0,*%)
T>U$ &(#.)/1&*-$ -"&7#6$ )*$ 1*2.#)-#$ &;$ KVW$ 1*$ 9.&--$
(.#'18'$ 8*6#.7.1//#*$7"12"$ -/&&6$ )/$ 3-=$ IDKXK$'1,,1&*$
)9)1*-/$3-=$KDRXK$'1,,1&*$1*$/"#$(.#<1&8-$+#).=$!"#$8*6#.5

'1,,1&*$/&$)$,&--$&;$3-=$IY$'1,,1&*$(.1').1,+$68#$/&$1*2.#)-#$
1*$ *#/$ 2,)1'-$ 1*$ '&/&.$ 2,)--$ :+$ 3-=$ LRZ$ '1,,1&*$ 1*$ /"#$
28..#*/$+#).=$

+)'&$+0,3,0,()
!"#$%M3$1*1/1)/1<#-$/)4#*$68.1*9$/"#$+#).$IJKL$")<#$:##*$
-#().)/#,+$'#*/1&*#6$1*$/"#$.#(&./=

2$+'$&$)),4%)&5$$6&'$0,%4
[8.1*9$/"#$+#).$8*6#.$.#<1#7D$!"#$0)41-/)*$%.#61/$3)/1*9$
>9#*2+$\1'1/#6$]0>%3>^$")-$)--19*#6$/"#$@*-8.#.$_1*)*5
21),$M/.#*9/"$]@_M^$.)/1*9$&;$/"#$%&'()*+$)-$A>>C$][&8:,#$
>^=$ !"1-$ .)/1*9$ 6#*&/#-$ )$ <#.+$ -/.&*9$ 2)()21/+$ /&$'##/$
(&,12+"&,6#.$ )*6$ 2&*/.)2/$ &:,19)/1&*-=$ 31-4$ ;)2/&.-$ ).#$
2&*-16#.#6$ '&6#-/$ )*6$ /"#$ 1'()2/$ &;$ )*+$ )6<#.-#$
:8-1*#--$ )*6$ #2&*&'12$ ;)2/&.-$ 1-$ #H(#2/#6$ /&$ :#$ <#.+$
,1'1/#6=

7,'(+0*')
!"#$-").#"&,6#.-$#,#2/#6$#,#<#*$[1.#2/&.-$;&.$/"#$/#.'$&;$
/".##$+#).-=$!"#$/#*8.#$&;$ /"#$[1.#2/&.-$#,#2/#6$ 1*$E)+D$
IJKJ$#H(1.#6$&*$E)+$IPD$IJKL=$>*$UH/.)$O.61*).+$G#*#.),$
E##/1*9$ 7)-$ "#,6$ &*$ E)+$ IRD$ IJKL=$ !"1./##*$ (#.-&*-$

:),,&/1*9=$!"#$#,#<#*$(#.-&*-$#,#2/#6$)-$[1.#2/&.-$7#.#Q$

+!,(1&(8(+"0,3(
!"#$[1.#2/&.-$1*$/"#$N&).6$'##/1*9$"#,6$&*$`8*#$ZD$IJKL$
)((&1*/#6$ E.=$ E8")'')6$ >,1$ a#:$ )-$ %"1#;$ UH#28/1<#$

$"0!*',9(7&$%7&2$,7:"2&+$2,0$;
!"#$ )8/"&.1b#6$ 2)(1/),$ &;$ /"#$ %&'()*+$ 7)-$ 1*2.#)-#6$
;.&'$ 3-=$ K=Y$ :1,,1&*$ /&$ 3-=$ L=XY$ :1,,1&*=$ !"#$ 2)(1/),$ 7)-$
1*2.#)-#6$/&$;)21,1/)/#$;8./"#.$1--8#$&;$-").#-=

!""#!$%&'()&*%+,-../



!"#$ %&'($ )%$ *&%'+&,$ -&.$ &,./$ '0*1#&.#($ 21/3$ 4.5$ 65789$
:',,'/0$+/$4.5$85;$:',,'/0$:<$-&<$/2$'..)'0=$:/0).$."&1#.$'0$
+"#$ 1&+'/$ /2$ 65>7?87767$ ."&1#.$ 2/1$ /0#$ ."&1#$ "#,(5$ !"#$
*&%'+&,$ -&.$ 1&'.#($ #@)'A&,#0+$ +/$ BCD$ 6EE$ 3',,'/0$ &.$
1#@)'1#($ :<$ F0.)1&0*#$ 4#=),&+/1.$ /2$ G0'+#($ B1&:$
C3'1&+#.5$!"#$H/3%&0<$ '.$/%#1&+'0=$-'+"$7$:1&0*"#.$ '0$
GBC5$ B0$ #I+1&/1('0&1<$ =#0#1&,$ 3##+'0=$ -&.$ *&,,#($ /0$
D#*#3:#1$6>J$7E68$+/$&%%1/A#$'0*1#&.#$'0$&)+"/1'K#($&0($
%&'(L)%$*&%'+&,5$!"#$."&1#.$-#1#$*1#('+#($'0$HDH$&**/)0+$
/0$ D#*#3:#1$ 7MJ$ 7E685$ B,,/+3#0+$ ,#++#1.$ &,/0=$ -'+"$
21&*+'/0&,$-&11&0+.$-#1#$&,./$('.%&+*"#($+"#$.&3#$(&<$+/$
."&1#"/,(#1.5

!""#$"#%!&%$'(
B0$'0+#1'3$('A'(#0($N$7;O$P4)%##$75;Q$%#1$."&1#R$P7E67S$
N$6;O$T4)%##$65;Q$%#1$."&1#UR$-&.$%&'($()1'0=$+"#$<#&15$

P4)%##$6QL$%#1$."&1#R$P7E67S$N6EO$T4)%##$6QL%#1$."&1#UR5$
V/0).$ ."&1#.$ -#1#$ '..)#($ ()1'0=$ +"#$ *)11#0+$ <#&1$ N$
6>75?8O$&3/)0+'0=$4.5$7J7W8$3',,'/0$P7E67S$X',R5$X/$/+"#1$
&%%1/%1'&+'/0.$-#1#$3&(#$()1'0=$+"#$<#&15

)!#'%'*(+")#+(,!#)
D)1'0=$+"#$<#&1$)0(#1$1#A'#-J$%1#L+&I$:&.'*$#&10'0=.$%#1$

-&.$4.5$;5W7$ P7E67S$4.5$65?7$&0($4.5$659?J$ 1#.%#*+'A#,<R5$
D#+&',#($ -/1Y'0=$ "&.$ :##0$ 1#%/1+#($ '0$ X/+#$ 7M$ +/$ +"#$

(&!&)-)'&+ $.+ /$#"$#!&)+ !'0+ .%'!'/%!1+
#)"$#&%'*+.#!-)2$#3
!"#$H/1%/1&+#$,&-.J$1),#.$&0($1#=),&+'/0.$21&3#($+"#1#L
)0(#1$ .%#,,$ /)+$ +"#$ /A#1&,,$ 2)0*+'/0.$ /2$ +"#$ V/&1($ /2$
$D'1#*+/1.$/2$+"#$H/3%&0<5$!"#$V/&1($'. $2),,<$&-&1#$/2$'+.
$*/1%/1&+#$1#.%/0.':','+'#.$&.$#0A'.&=#($)0(#1$+"#$H/(#$/2
$H/1%/1&+# $Z/A#10&0*#J$*/0+&'0#( $'0 $H"&%+#1 $[F $/2 $,'.+'0=
$1#=),&+'/0. $/2 $.+/*Y $#I*"&0=#. $'..)#( $:< $+"# $\#*)1'+'#.
$&0( $CI*"&0=# $H/33'..'/0 $/2$]&Y'.+&0 $&0( $'. $%,#&.#( $+/
$*#1+'2<$+"&+

L

&**/)0+.$ &.$ 1#@)'1#($ )0(#1$ +"#$ H/3%&0'#.$ ^1('0&0*#J$
6?>M5

L

.+&+#3#0+.5$ H"&0=#.$ -"#1#A#1$ 3&(#J$ "&A#$ :##0$
('.*,/.#($&0($&**/)0+'0=$#.+'3&+#.$&1#$/0$ +"#$:&.'.$/2$
%1)(#0+$&0($1#&./0&:,#$_)(=3#0+5

H/3%&0<$'0$&**/1(&0*#$-'+"$+"#$F0+#10&+'/0&,$B**/)0+'0=$
\+&0(&1(.$&.$&%%,'*&:,#$'0$]&Y'.+&05$!"#$(#%&1+)1#$+"#1#L
21/3$P'2$&0<RJ$'.$('.*,/.#($&(#@)&+#,<$&0($#I%,&'0#(5

'3%,#3#0+#($&0($3/0'+/1#(5$`/-#A#1J$.)*"$&$.<.+#3$'.$
(#.'=0#($ +/$ 3&0&=#$ 1&+"#1$ +"&0$ #,'3'0&+#$ +"#$ 1'.Y$ /2$
2&',)1#$+/$&*"'#A#$/:_#*+'A#.J$&0($%1/A'(#$1#&./0&:,#$:)+$
0/+$&:./,)+#$&..)1&0*#$&=&'0.+$3&+#1'&,$3'..+&+#3#0+.$
/1$,/..5

+"#1#$ &1#$ 0/$ (/):+.$ &:/)+$ '+.$ &:','+<$ +/$ */0+'0)#$ &.$ &$
=/'0=$*/0*#105

<#&1.$ '0$ .)33&1'K#($ 2/13J$ '.$ '0*,)(#($ '0$ +"'.$ &00)&,$
1#%/1+5

+&I#.J$()+'#.J$ ,#A'#.$&0($*"&1=#.$-"'*"$&1#$/)+.+&0('0=$
&.$&+$D#*#3:#1$86J$7E68J$#I*#%+$&.$+"/.#$('.*,/.#($'0$+"#$

/2$%1/A'(#0+$&0($=1&+)'+<$2)0(.$/0$+"#$:&.'.$/2$)0L&)('+#($
&**/)0+.$&.$/0$D#*#3:#1$86J$7E68$'.$&.$2/,,/-.S

]1/A'(#0+$a)0($ $ $ $$$$$$$9W8J96W
Z1&+)'+<$a)0($ $ $ $$$$$$$68MJ;;;

D'1#*+/1.$ -#1#$ "#,($ &0($ &++#0(#($ :<$ +"#$ D'1#*+/1.$ &.$
)0(#1S

!"



!"#$%&'()*'%+%,-%.*"'/%01$'*2"%3')*'"%+%4-%.52%&6(2$%+%
7-%8$#/$29%:;#($'$/%%/#%<##$%+%7-%=1$'*2"%>*'")2%+%4-%="$'(%
&'?1;;5% +% ,-% @'"'(% A');;5% +% 4-%&'(B'$%&6)*C'?% +% DE-%
&6*'""'/%.52%F#1%+%7-%&6*'""'/%!"'$%G2$9%+%4-%>*'29*%
&6*'""'/%H'I#/%+%7-%>*'*2/%&'529%+%4J
% %

*2")#5K% K;$% C*#% #5#LC2;(% ;K% M2$#LC;$)J% 3#% 'CC#(/#/% CI;%
"##C2(N)%*#5/%/6$2(N%*2)%C#(6$#J
% %
O#'P#%;K%'1)#(L#%I')%N$'(C#/%C;%C*#%M2$#LC;$)%I*;%L;65/%
(;C%'CC#(/%C*#%<;'$/%&##C2(NQ)RJ
% %
!"#$%&'"(()**++,
% %
#-./0&'122/0033
S*#%.6/2C%:;""2CC##%I')%#)C'152)*#/%)2(L#%C*#%#(K;$L#+
"#(C%;K%:;/#%;K%:;$T;$'C#%U;P#$('(L#%2(%DVVDJS*#%C#$")%
;K%$#K#$#(L#%;K%C*#%:;""2CC##%'$#%'52N(#/%I2C*%C*#%:;/#J

;K%C*#%:;""2CC##%I#$#%*#5/%'(/%'CC#(/#/%1W%C*#%"#"+
1#$)%')%6(/#$X

4523&16&232738% 419&16&2330/:;<
& 5003:.3.

>*'29*%&6*'""'/%H'I#/% %4

.*"#/%01$'*2"%3')*'"% %4

.52%&6(2$% %4

=1$'*2"%>*'")2% %7

!"#$%&'()*'% %4

O#'P#%;K%'1)#(L#%I')%N$'(C#/%C;%C*#%"#"1#$)%I*;%L;65/%
(;C%'CC#(/%C*#%"##C2(NJ

=-25:&$3<1-8>3&?&$32-:3850/1:&'122/0033

)2(L#%DVVY%16C%2C)%('"#%I')%L*'(N#/%C;%36"'(%A#);6$L#%
'(/%A#"6(#$'C2;(%:;""2CC##% ')% $#K#$$#/% C;% 2(% :;/#% ;K%
:;$T;$'C#%U;P#$('(L#-%DVZDJ%S*#%:;""2CC##%2)%$#)T;()2+
15#%K;$%C*#%K6(LC2;(%5'2/%/;I(%2(%:;/#J

A#"6(#$'C2;(%:;""2CC##%I')%*#5/%'(/%I')%'CC#(/#/%1W%
'55%C*#%"#"1#$)%('"#5WX%

@:.38A8/0/:;B& 'C5/2& ,300C323:0B& $3D):<-85:>3& ?&
'1D):<-85:>3&'122/0033<E
S*#% '1;P#% $#K#$$#/% C*$##% L;""2CC##)% I#$#% K;$"#/% ')%
$#?62$#/% 6(/#$% C*#% :;/#% ;K% :;$T;$'C#% U;P#$('(L#%
'TT52L'15#% C;% 52)C#/% 2()6$'(L#% L;"T'(2#)% 2))6#/% 6(/#$%
>A[%,\%Q2R]DVV^J%S*#%C#$")%;K%$#K#$#(L#%'$#%'52N(#/%I2C*%
C*#%:;/#J

SI;% "##C2(N)% ;K% :5'2"% :;""2CC##% '(/% ;(#% #'L*% ;K%
A#+2()6$'(L#% _% !(/#$I$2C2(N% :;""2CC##)% I#$#% *#5/%
/6$2(N%DVZ^%'(/%'CC#(/#/%1W%'55%C*#%"#"1#$)%')%6(/#$X

@:.38A8/0/:;&'122/0033
8$#/$29%:;#($'$/%/#%<##$
&6*'""'/%.52%F#1
!"#$%&'()*'
3#'/%;K%S#L*(2L'5

'C5/2&,300C323:0&'122/0033
.*"#/%01$'*2"%3')*'"
&6*'""'/%.52%F#1
>*'29*%&6*'""'/%H'I#/
3#'/%;K%:5'2")

$3D):<-85:>3&'122/0033&?&'1D):<-85:>3
.52%&6(2$
&6*'""'/%.52%F#1
&6*'""'/%!"'$%G2$9
3#'/%;K%A#+2()6$'(L#

!""#!$%&'()&*%+,-../



!"#$%%$&'()*'+,-
!"#"$%#$&'%()*+,(&-&

."/,()0&&12&!"(*/&1234

./01234056'30(/7/78'90480(!!1

56(%#$&+/)&7)"(8&9:,&'%()*+,(;&/"<)&)"(=%)(&"++)#5)5&+/)&

+("%#%#$&>(,$("??)8&9:,&'%()*+,(;&"()&)@)?>+)5&56)&+,&

34&7)"(;&,A&)56*"+%,#&"#5&3B&7)"(;&,A&)@>)(%)#*)&,#&+/)&

C,"(5&,A&"&=%;+)5&*,?>"#78

9(33107'4:'5;(01;4<./78
D& ;+"+)?)#+& ,A& >"++)(#& ,A& ;/"()/,=5%#$& %;& ;)>"("+)=7&

;/,:#&%#&+/)&()>,(+8

30(./78'/7'24!9(7=65'5;(015
E@*)>+&";&;+"+)5&C)=,:F&#,& +("5%#$& %#& +/)&;/"();&,A& +/)&

G,?>"#7&:";&*"((%)5&,6+&C7& +/)&'%()*+,(;& H&E@)*6+%<);F&

GEIF&GJIF&G,?>"#7&K)*()+"(7F&,+/)(&)?>=,7));&"#5&+/)%(&

L)#)("=&!"#"$)(&"#5&"C,<)&%;&%#*=65)5&%#&M,+/)(&)?>=,7N

));O&";&>)(&+/();/,=5&;)+&C7&P,"(5&,A&'%()*+,(;8

!6/"??"5&D=%&Q)C& 1FB22

(>./3405&
D&;/"()/,=5)(&,A& +/)&G,?>"#7&6#5)(&K)*+%,#&1BR& S1T&,A&

+/)&G,?>"#%);&I(5%#"#*)F&3UV4&()"5&:%+/&*="6;)&S@@@<%%T&

S"T&,A&+/)&G,5)&,A&G,(>,("+)&L,<)(#"#*)&/";&>(,>,;)5&+/)&

#"?)& ,A& WX!L& 9";))(& Y"5%& -& G,?>"#7& G/"(+)()5&

D**,6#+"#+;&";&"65%+,(;&A,(&+/)&#)@+&+)(?8&9/)&P,"(5&,A&

'%()*+,(;&,#&+/)&;6$$);+%,#&,A&D65%+&G,??%++))&()*,?N

?)#5)5& +/)& ">>,%#+?)#+& ,A& WX!L& 9";))(& Y"5%& -&

G,?>"#7& G/"(+)()5& D**,6#+"#+;& ";& ;+"+6+,(7& "65%+,(;&

+%==& +/)& *,#*=6;%,#& ,A& #)@+& D##6"=& L)#)("=& !))+%#$8&

X();)#+& "65%+,(;& Z%"[& D/?)5& -& G,?>"#7& G/"(+)()5&

D**,6#+"#+;& ;/"==& ;+"#5& ()+%()5& ,#& +/)& 5"7& ,A& +/)& BR(5&

D##6"=&L)#)("=&!))+%#$&;*/)56=)5&,#&D>(%=&1VF&12348

<44?/78':40@(0.

N

+6("=& %;;6);& ;6*/& ";& :,(;)#%#$& )#)($7& *(%;%;& "()& #,+&

)@>)*+)5& +,& C)& 5%;;%?%="(& +,& 123R8& E?>/";%;& :,6=5& C)&

N

%#$&"#5&%?>(,<%#$&*="%?&?"#"$)?)#+8

(2?74@<1.81!173
9/)&G,?>"#7&:,6=5&=%\)&+,&+/"#\&+/)&;/"()/,=5)(;&,A&+/)&

)@>();;&,6(& ;%#*)()& +/"#\;& +,& +/)& )?>=,7));F& ;+("+)$%*&

>"(+#)(;F& <)#5,(;F& ;6>>=%)(;& "#5& *6;+,?)(;8& ])& "=;,&

">>()*%"+)& +/)& ;6>>,(+& "#5& $6%5"#*)& >(,<%5)5& C7& +/)&

K+"+)&P"#\&,A&X"\%;+"#&"#5&+/)&K)*6(%+%);&"#5&E@*/"#$)&

G,??%;;%,#&,A&X"\%;+"#8

K/"();&>6(*/";)5&

56(%#$&+/)&7)"(
^"?)&,A&'%()*+,(

!"

I#&C)/"=A&,A&+/)&P,"(5





This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance contained in Regulation No. 35 of 
listing regulations of the Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad Stock Exchanges, for the purpose of establishing a framework of 
good governance, whereby a listed company is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The Company has applied the principles contained in the CCG in the following manner:

1. The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and directors representing 
minority interests on the Board of Directors. At present the Board includes:

2.  The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, 
including this company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

3. All the resident Directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in 
payment of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being a member of a stock exchange, has been 
declared as a defaulter by that stock exchange.

4.    No casual vacancy occurred on the Board during the year 2013.

5.  The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to 
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

6.  The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were 
approved or amended has been maintained.

7.  All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions including appoint-
ment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chief Executive Officer, 
other executive and non-executive directors, have been taken by the Board / Shareholders.

8.  The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and in his absence by a director elected by the 
Board for this purpose and the Board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the Board meetings, 
along with agenda and working papers, were circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of 
the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

The independent directors meet the criteria of independence under clause i (b) of the CCG.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Category                    Names

Independent Directors Ahmed Ebrahim Hasham
 Muhammad Umar Virk

Executive Director Muhammad Ali Zeb
 
 Ali Munir
 Fredrik Coenrard de Beer
 Ibrahim Shamsi
Non-Executive Directors Imran Maqbool
 Kamran Rasool
 Shahid Malik
 Shaikh Muhammad Jawed
 Umer Mansha



 9. The Board arranged one training programme for its directors during the year. 

10.  No new appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit has been made by the Board during 
the year.

11. The Directors' Report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the CCG and fully 
describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

12.  The financial statements of the Company were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval of the Board.

13.  The Directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that 
disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

14.  The Company has complied with all the corporate and financial reporting requirements of the CCG.

15.  The Board has formed an Audit Committee. It comprises of 5 members, of whom 4 are non-executive directors 
and 1 is independent director.

16. The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final 
results of the Company as required by the CCG. The terms of reference of the Committee have been formed and 
advised to the Committee for Compliance.

17.  The Board has formed an HR and Remuneration Committee. It comprises of 4 members, of whom 3 are non-exec-
utive directors and the Chairman of the Committee is non-executive director. 

18.  The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/s A. F. Ferguson and Company, Chartered Accountants 
who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and 
procedures of the Company.

19.  The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the 
quality control review program of the ICAP, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor 
children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with the 
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on Code of Ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

20.  The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services 
except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC 
guidelines in this regard. 

21.  The ‘closed period’, prior to the announcement of interim / final results, and business decisions, which may mate-
rially affect the market price of company’s securities, was determined and intimated to directors, employees and 
stock exchange(s).

22.  Material / price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once through 
stock exchange(s).

23.  We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the CCG have been complied with.

         Muhammad Ali Zeb
Lahore : 20 March 2014                                                  Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements comprising of:

(i) unconsolidated balance sheet;
(ii) unconsolidated profit and loss account;
(iii) unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income;
(iv) unconsolidated statement of changes in equity;
(v) unconsolidated cash flow statement;
(vi) unconsolidated statement of premiums;
(vii) unconsolidated statement of claims;
(viii) unconsolidated statement of expenses; and
(ix) unconsolidated statement of investment income

of ADAMJEE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED (”the Company”) as at 31 December 2013 together with the notes forming part thereof,
for the year then ended, in which are incorporated the results and balances of UAE branch, audited by another firm of auditors.

It is the responsibility of the Company’s management to establish and maintain a system of internal control, and prepare and present
the financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the
Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (XXXIX of 2000) and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984). Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International standards on auditing as applicable in Pakistan. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as, evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion:

a) proper books of accounts have been kept by the company as required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the
Companies Ordinance, 1984;

b) the unconsolidated financial statements together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Ordinance, 1984, and accurately reflect the books and records of
the Company and are further in accordance with accounting policies consistently applied except for the changes
referred to in Note 2.3.2 with which we concur;

c) the unconsolidated financial statements together with the notes thereon, present fairly, in all material respects, the
state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of the profit, its comprehensive income, its cash flows
and changes in equity for the year then ended in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, and give the information required to be disclosed by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies
Ordinance, 1984; and

d) Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the Company and
deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under Section 7 of that Ordinance.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Name of engagement partner:
Muhammad Kamran Nasir

Date: 20 March 2014
KARACHI

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
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Share capital and reserves
Authorised share capital 3.1 3,750,000 1,500,000 1,500,000

Paid-up share capital 3.2 3,500,000 1,237,045 1,237,045
Retained earnings 8,106,138 8,806,823 8,356,574
Reserves 4 1,440,409 1,441,879 1,241,625

9,546,547 10,248,702 9,598,199
TOTAL EQUITY 13,046,547 11,485,747 10,835,244

Underwriting provisions
Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) 5 7,322,673 6,361,653 5,548,018
Provision for unearned premium 4,044,831 3,961,293 4,328,346
Commission income unearned 182,184 313,279 371,687

11,549,688 10,636,225 10,248,051
Deferred liabilities

Staff retirement benefits 6 40,477 31,042 22,011

Creditors and Accruals
Premiums received in advance 153,420 113,689 80,142
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers 641,197 496,887 1,151,088
Accrued expenses 112,572 117,593 158,185
Other creditors and accruals -  restated 7 1,613,727 1,665,435 1,480,879

2,520,916 2,393,604 2,870,294

Borrowings
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 8 6,683 24,987 58,567

Other liabilities
Unclaimed dividends 37,675 35,558 33,495

TOTAL LIABILITIES 14,155,439 13,121,416 13,232,418

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 9

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 27,201,986 24,607,163 24,067,662

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Rupees in thousand

Note

UNCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

31 December 201131 December 201231 December 2013

(Restated)(Restated)
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Cash and bank deposits 10
Cash and other equivalents 4,411 1,099 21,566
Current and other accounts 1,385,675 1,479,939 1,415,207
Deposits maturing within 12 months  1,156,190 1,026,373 942,194

 2,546,276 2,507,411 2,378,967
Loans

To employees 11 16,151 12,791 17,175

Investments 12  11,359,717 9,948,294 9,451,731

Deferred taxation  105,401 241,171 195,068

Current assets -  others

Premiums due but unpaid 13  2,658,071 3,197,422 3,568,167
Amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers 14  1,093,985 591,566 679,631
Salvage recoveries accrued  179,703 169,671 165,718
Premium and claim reserves retained by cedants  23,252 23,252 23,252
Accrued investment income 15  15,877 20,329 21,626
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 16  5,574,428 4,330,229 3,799,366
Taxation - payments less provision  78,249 85,273 7,501
Deferred commission expense  390,649 422,203 472,399
Prepayments 17  1,766,507 1,734,149 2,033,763
Sundry receivables (2011: restated) 18  197,048 205,751 190,428

 11,977,769 10,779,845 10,961,851

Fixed Assets -  Tangible & Intangible 19
Owned

Land and buildings  445,207 464,050 271,731
Furniture and fixtures  140,695 100,272 59,855
Motor vehicles  262,808 221,410 211,173
Machinery and equipment  113,428 97,717 211,450
Computers and related accessories  42,923 44,582 50,475
Intangible asset -  computer software  68,674 45,336 37,068
Capital work in progress - Tangible  89,310 91,855 133,378 

1,163,045 1,065,222 975,130
Leased

Motor vehicles  33,627 52,429 87,740
TOTAL ASSETS  27,201,986 24,607,163 24,067,662

(Restated)

Rupees in thousand

Note 31 December 201131 December 201231 December 2013

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Revenue account
Net premium revenue 801,219 598,026 2,964,939 1,142,372  -     5,506,556 5,671,977
Net claims (530,623) (221,507) (1,916,298) (818,433)  -    (3,486,861) (4,142,667)
Expenses 20 (322,909) (201,164) (693,660) (317,736)  -     (1,535,469) (1,582,916)
Net commission  (3,430) (81,433) (263,000) 197  -     (347,666) (358,665)
Underwriting result  (55,743) 93,922 91,981 6,400  -    136,560 (412,271)

Investment income  2,357,262 1,331,791
Rental income 4,947 545
Other income 21 148,114 164,486

2,646,883 1,084,551
General and administration
expenses-restated 22 (445,354) (411,342)
Exchange gain 10,647 2,792
Finance charges on lease liabilities (1,781) (5,581)

Profit before tax -  restated 2,210,395 670,420

Provision for taxation 23 (244,236) (42,365)

Profit after tax -  restated 1,966,159 628,055

Balance at the commencement of the year -  restated 8,806,823 8,356,574
Profit after tax for the year -  restated 1,966,159 628,055
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012
@ 10% (Rupee 1/- per share) [2011: Nil] (123,705)  -
Interim dividend for the period ended 30 June 2013
@ 25% (Rupees 2.5/- per share) [2012: @15% (Rupees 1.5/- per share)] (309,262) (185,557)
Issue of bonus shares @ 182.93% (2012: Nil) (2,262,955)  -

Other comprehensive income: Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 29,078 7,751

Balance unappropriated profit at the end of the year -  restated 8,106,138 8,806,823

Earnings per share -  basic and diluted (Note 24) 5.62 1.79

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Marine,
Aviation and
Transport

Motor Miscellaneous Treaty
31

December
2013

31
December

2012

Fire and
Property
Damage

Note

Rupees in thousand

Rupees in thousand

(Restated)

(Restated)

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

BUSINESS UNDERWRITTEN INSIDE PAKISTAN

UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Revenue account

Net premium revenue 778,225 580,120 1,229,516 1,122,920  -     3,710,781 4,312,964
Net claims (509,415) (220,881) (561,152) (812,695)  -     (2,104,143) (3,151,656)
Expenses (301,291) (190,309) (477,924) (297,514)  -     (1,267,038) (1,350,139)
Net commission (9,391) (79,192) (92,730) 3,094  -     (178,219) (244,566)
Underwriting result (41,872) 89,738 97,710 15,805  -     161,381 (433,397)
Investment income 2,357,262 1,331,791
Rental income -    545
Other income 116,364 117,670

2,635,007 1,016,609

General and administration expenses-restated (368,204) (345,738)
Exchange gain 10,870 2,628
Finance charges on lease liabilities (1,781) (5,581)

Profit before tax -  restated 2,275,892 667,918

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Marine,
Aviation and
Transport

Motor Miscellaneous Treaty
31

December
2013

31
December

2012

Fire and
Property
Damage

Rupees in thousand

(Restated)
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UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

BUSINESS UNDERWRITTEN OUTSIDE PAKISTAN

Revenue account

Net premium revenue 22,994 17,906 1,735,423 19,452  -     1,795,775 1,359,013
Net claims (21,208) (626) (1,355,146) (5,738)  -    (1,382,718) (991,011)
Expenses  (21,618) (10,855) (215,736) (20,222)  -     (268,431) (232,777)
Net commission  5,961 (2,241) (170,270) (2,897)  -     (169,447) (114,099)
Underwriting result  (13,871) 4,184 (5,729) (9,405)  -    (24,821) 21,126

Rental income 4,947   -
Other income 31,750 46,816

11,876 67,942

General and administration expenses (77,150) (65,604)
Exchange (loss) / gain (223) 164

Profit / (loss) before tax (65,497) 2,502

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Marine,
Aviation and
Transport

Motor Miscellaneous Treaty
31

December
2013

31
December

2012

Fire and
Property
Damage

Rupees in thousand

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

Profit after tax for the year -  restated 1,966,159 628,055

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified into profit or loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation - restated 29,078 7,751

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss  -    -

Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches (1,470) 200,254
27,608 208,005

Total comprehensive income for the year -  restated 1,993,767 836,060

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

(Restated)

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Total

Capital Reserves Revenue Reserves

Retained
earnings

General
reserve

Exchange
translation

reserve

Investment
fluctuation

reserve

Reserve for
exceptional

losses

Reserve for
issue of

bonus shares

Share
Capital

Issued,
subscribed
and paid-up

Rupees in thousand

Balance as at  31 December 2011 1,237,045  -     22,859 3,764 278,502 936,500 8,422,236 10,900,906

Effect of change in accounting policy (Note 2.3.2)  -     -     -     -     -     -     (65,662)  (65,662)

Balance as at 31 December 2011 -  restated 1,237,045  -     22,859 3,764 278,502 936,500 8,356,574 10,835,244 

Comprehensive income for the year ended

31 December 2012

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 - restated  -    -     -     -     -     -     628,055  628,055

Other comprehensive income - restated  -    -     -     -     200,254  -     7,751  208,005

Total comprehensive income for the year -  restated  -     -     -     -     200,254  -     635,806  836,060

Interim dividend @ 15% (Rupee 1.5/- per share)  -     -     -     -     -     -     (185,557)  (185,557)

Balance as at  31 December  2012 -  restated  1,237,045  -     22,859  3,764 478,756  936,500  8,806,823  11,485,747

Comprehensive income for the year ended

31 December 2013

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2013  -    -     -     -     -     -    1,966,159 1,966,159

Other comprehensive income  -    -     -     -     (1,470)  -     29,078  27,608

Total comprehensive income for the year  -     -     -     -     (1,470)  -    1,995,237 1,993,767

Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012

@ 10% (Rupee 1/- per share)  -     -     -     -     -     -     (123,705)  (123,705)

Interim dividend for the period ended 30 June 2013

@ 25% (Rupees 2.5/- per share)  -     -     -     -     -     -     (309,262)  (309,262)

Transferred to reserve for issue of bonus shares   -    2,262,955  -     -     -     -     (2,262,955)  -

Issue of bonus shares @ 182.93% 2,262,955  (2,262,955)  -     -     -     -     -     -

Balance as at  31 December  2013 3,500,000  -     22,859 3,764 477,286 936,500 8,106,138 13,046,547

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

Operating Cash Flows

a) Underwriting activities
Premiums received 10,705,222 10,518,542
Reinsurance premiums paid (4,486,766) (5,103,176)
Claims paid (6,813,101) (6,359,925)
Surrenders paid (49,559) (55,257)
Reinsurance and other recoveries received 2,501,250 2,584,142
Commissions paid (1,170,199) (1,071,296)
Commissions received 534,855 771,617
Other underwriting payments (1,153,147) (1,158,268)

Net cash flow from underwriting activities 68,555 126,379

b)   Other operating activities
Income tax paid (101,443) (89,755)
General and other expenses paid (360,143) (376,039)
Loans disbursed (39,217) (32,200)
Loan repayments received 35,115 30,600
Other receipts 60,459 35,647
Net cash used in other operating activities (405,229) (431,747)

Total cash used in all operating activities (336,674) (305,368)

Investment activities
Profit / return received 96,701 111,089
Dividends received 943,124 793,094
Payments for investments (4,182,672) (4,708,134)
Proceeds from disposal of investments 4,164,980 4,711,049
Fixed capital expenditure - Tangible assets (205,138) (320,038)
Fixed capital expenditure - Intangible assets (40,793) (30,027)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 18,650 57,530
Rentals received 4,947 545
Income received on PIBs 11,388 2,006
Income received on treasury bills 3,694 21,276
Income received on TFCs 11,593 18,079

Total cash flow from investing activities 826,474 656,469

Financing activities
Lease rentals paid (20,085) (39,161)
Dividends paid (430,850) (183,496)

Total cash used in financing activities (450,935) (222,657)

Net cash inflow from all activities 38,865 128,444
Cash at the beginning of the year 2,498,335 2,369,891

Cash at the end of the year 2,537,200 2,498,335

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

Reconciliation to Profit and Loss Account
Operating cash flows (336,674) (305,368)
Depreciation expense (130,591) (170,816)
Provision for gratuity (9,435) (9,031)
Other income - bank deposits 98,516 111,590
(Loss) / gain on disposal of fixed assets (214) 18,973
Provision for impairment on trackers  -    (64,152)
Finance charges on lease obligations (1,781) (5,581)
Rental income 4,947 545
Increase / (decrease) in assets other than cash 1,208,658 (314,818)
Increase in liabilities other than running finance - restated (1,045,304) (359,362)

(211,878) (1,098,020)
Others

Profit on sale of investments 1,197,934 143,391
Amortization expense (17,455) (21,759)
(Increase) / decrease in unearned premium (83,538) 367,053
Decrease in loans 4,102 1,601
Income tax paid 101,443 89,755
Profit on PIBs 11,405 6,240
Reversal of impairment in value of investments 195,394 355,742
Dividend, investment and other income 996,763 796,770
Income on treasury bills 5,463 12,246
Income on TFCs 10,762 17,401

2,422,273 1,768,440
Profit before taxation -  restated 2,210,395 670,420

Definition of cash:
Cash comprises cash in hand, bank balances excluding Rupees 9.076 million (2012: Rupees 9.076 million) held under
lien and other deposits which are readily convertible to cash and which are used in the cash management function on
a day-to-day basis.

Cash for the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows consists of:

Cash and other equivalents 4,411 1,099
Current and other accounts 1,385,675 1,479,939 
Deposits maturing within 12 months 1,147,114 1,017,297

Total cash and cash equivalents 2,537,200 2,498,335

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

BUSINESS UNDERWRITTEN INSIDE PAKISTAN

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

Operating Cash Flows

a) Underwriting activities
Premiums received 8,471,834 8,740,647
Reinsurance premiums paid (4,109,906) (4,656,902)
Claims paid (4,774,599) (4,860,572)
Surrenders paid (49,559) (55,257)
Reinsurance and other recoveries received 1,856,238 1,918,057
Commissions paid (923,657) (893,354)
Commissions received 489,891 704,352
Other underwriting payments (980,564) (994,886)

Net cash used in underwriting activities (20,322) (97,915)

b)   Other operating activities
Income tax paid (101,443) (89,755)
General and other expenses paid (310,423) (307,636)
Loans disbursed (31,841) (23,735)
Loan repayments received 27,121 24,781
Other receipts 53,297 14,577

Net cash used in other operating activities (363,289) (381,768)
Total cash used in all operating activities (383,611) (479,683)

Investment activities
Profit / return received 74,361 83,704
Dividends received 943,124 793,094
Payments for investments (4,182,672) (4,708,134)
Proceeds from disposal of investments 4,164,980 4,711,049
Fixed capital expenditure - Tangible assets (183,727) (236,866)
Fixed capital expenditure - Intangible assets (40,793) (30,027)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets 17,667 56,961
Rentals received  -    545
Income received on PIBs 11,388 2,006
Income received on treasury bills 3,694 21,276
Income received on TFCs 11,593 18,079

Total cash flow from investing activities 819,615 711,687

Financing activities
Lease rentals paid (20,085) (39,161)
Dividends paid (430,850) (183,496)

Total cash used in financing activities (450,935) (222,657)
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from all activities (14,931) 9,347

Cash at the beginning of the year 1,289,119 1,279,772

Cash at the end of the year 1,274,188 1,289,119



ANNUAL REPORT 201354

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

Reconciliation to Profit and Loss Account
Operating cash flows (383,611) (479,683)
Depreciation expense (104,256) (160,161)
Other income - bank deposits 73,475 83,486
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 461 21,167
Provision for impairment on trackers  -    (64,152)
Finance charges on lease obligations (1,781) (5,581)
Rental income  -    545
Increase / (decrease) in assets other than cash 610,946 (681,815)
(Increase) / decrease in liabilities other than running finance (358,565) 102,199

(163,331) (1,183,995)
Others

Profit on sale of investments 1,197,934 143,391
Amortization expense (17,455) (21,759)
(Increase) / decrease in unearned premium (67,206) 453,406
Increase / (decrease) in loans 4,720 (1,279)
Income tax paid 101,443 89,755
Profit on PIBs 11,405 6,240
Reversal of impairment in value of investments 195,394 355,742
Dividend, investment and other income 996,763 796,770
Income on treasury bills 5,463 12,246
Income on TFCs 10,762 17,401

2,439,223 1,851,913
Profit before taxation -  restated 2,275,892 667,918

Definition of cash:
Cash comprises cash in hand, bank balances excluding Rupees 9.076 million (2012: Rupees 9.076 million) held under
lien and other deposits which are readily convertible to cash and which are used in the cash management function on
a day-to-day basis.

Cash for the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows consists of:

Cash and other equivalents 4,182 835
Current and other accounts 1,264,803 1,283,549
Deposits maturing within 12 months 5,203 4,735

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,274,188 1,289,119

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

BUSINESS UNDERWRITTEN INSIDE PAKISTAN

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER  2013

BUSINESS UNDERWRITTEN OUTSIDE PAKISTAN

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

Operating Cash Flows

a) Underwriting activities
Premiums received 2,233,388 1,777,895
Reinsurance premiums paid (376,860) (446,274)
Claims paid (2,038,502) (1,499,353)
Reinsurance and other recoveries received 645,012 666,085
Commissions paid (246,542) (177,942)
Commissions received 44,964 67,265
Other underwriting payments (172,583) (163,382)

Net cash flow from underwriting activities 88,877 224,294

b) Other operating activities
General and other expenses paid (49,720) (68,403)
Loans disbursed (7,376) (8,465)
Loan repayments received 7,994 5,819
Other receipts 7,162 21,070

Net cash used in other operating activities (41,940) (49,979)
Total cash flow from all operating activities 46,937 174,315

Investment activities
Profit / return received 22,340 27,385
Dividends received  -    -
Payments for investments  -    -
Proceeds from disposal of investments  -    -
Fixed capital expenditure - Tangible assets  (21,411)  (83,172)
Fixed capital expenditure - Intangible assets  -    -
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets  983  569
Rentals received  4,947  -
Income received on PIBs  -    -
Income received on treasury bills  -    -
Income received on TFCs  -    -

Total cash flow from / (used in) investing activities  6,859  (55,218)

Financing activities
Dividends paid  -    -
Lease rentals paid  -    -

Total cash flow from financing activities  -    -
Net cash inflow from all activities  53,796  119,097

Cash at the beginning of the year  1,209,216  1,090,119
Cash at the end of the year  1,263,012  1,209,216
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

Operating cash flows 46,937 174,315
Depreciation expense (26,335) (10,655)
Provision for gratuity (9,435)  (9,031)
Other income - bank deposits  25,041  28,104
Loss on disposal of fixed assets  (675)  (2,194)
Provision for impairment on trackers  -    -
Finance charges on lease obligation  -    -
Rental income  4,947  -
Increase  in assets other than cash  597,712  366,997
Increase in liabilities other than running finance  (686,739)  (461,561)

 (48,547)  85,975
Others

Profit on sale of investments  -    -
Amortization expense  -    -
Increase in unearned premium  (16,332)  (86,353)
(Decrease) / increase in loans  (618)  2,880
Income tax paid  -    -
Profit on PIBs  -    -
Reversal for diminution in value of investments  -    -
Dividend, investment and other income  -    -
Income on treasury bills  -    -
Income on TFCs  -    -

 (16,950)  (83,473)
(Loss) / profit before taxation  (65,497)  2,502

Definition of cash:
Cash comprises cash in hand, bank balances excluding Rupees Nil (2012: Rupees Nil) held under lien and other deposits
which are readily convertible to cash and which are used in the cash management function on a day- to-day basis.

Cash for the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows consists of:

Cash and other equivalents  229  264
Current and other accounts  120,872  196,390
Deposits maturing within 12 months  1,141,911  1,012,562
Total cash and cash equivalents  1,263,012  1,209,216

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

BUSINESS UNDERWRITTEN OUTSIDE PAKISTAN

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PREMIUMS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Direct and facultative

Fire and property damage  4,114,709  1,858,769  1,854,900  7,074  4,125,652  3,300,222  1,377,042  1,358,743  5,912  3,324,433  801,219  894,243

Marine, aviation and transport  748,457  66,461  55,695  530  759,753  155,870  12,978  7,378  257  161,727  598,026  608,630

Motor  3,232,608  1,489,035  1,504,870  110,033  3,326,806  366,340  107,564  125,874  13,837  361,867  2,964,939  2,743,847

Miscellaneous  1,980,807  547,028  629,366  2,699  1,901,168  808,644  158,463  209,775  1,464  758,796  1,142,372  1,425,257

Total  10,076,581  3,961,293  4,044,831  120,336  10,113,379  4,631,076  1,656,047  1,701,770  21,470  4,606,823  5,506,556  5,671,977

Treaty

Proportional  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

Total  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

Grand Total  10,076,581  3,961,293  4,044,831  120,336  10,113,379  4,631,076  1,656,047  1,701,770  21,470  4,606,823  5,506,556  5,671,977

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Premiums
written

Reinsurance
ceded

Opening

Reinsurance
expense 31

December
2012

Class

Prepaid reinsurance
premium ceded Net premium revenue

Rupees in thousand

31
December

2013
Closing

Currency
translation

effect

Premiums
earned

Opening

Unearned premium reserve

Closing
Currency

translation
effect

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PREMIUMS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Direct and facultative

Fire and property damage  3,972,310  1,802,996  1,787,707  -    3,987,599  3,182,071  1,330,294  1,302,991  -    3,209,374  778,225  874,970

Marine, aviation and transport  727,826  62,059  51,249  -    738,636  155,110  10,244  6,838  -    158,516  580,120  589,514

Motor  1,257,637  601,815  606,262  -    1,253,190  23,281  598  205  -    23,674  1,229,516  1,444,412

Miscellaneous  1,947,547  522,777  611,637  -    1,858,687  790,942  145,224  200,399  -    735,767  1,122,920  1,404,068

Total  7,905,320  2,989,647  3,056,855  -    7,838,112  4,151,404  1,486,360  1,510,433  -    4,127,331  3,710,781  4,312,964

Treaty

Proportional  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

Total  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

Grand Total  7,905,320  2,989,647  3,056,855  -    7,838,112  4,151,404  1,486,360  1,510,433  -    4,127,331  3,710,781  4,312,964

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Premiums
written

Reinsurance
ceded

Opening

Reinsurance
expense 31

December
2012

Class

Prepaid reinsurance
premium ceded Net premium revenue

Rupees in thousand

31
December

2013
Closing

Currency
translation

effect

Premiums
earned

Opening

Unearned premium reserve

Closing
Currency

translation
effect

BUSINESS UNDERWRITTEN INSIDE PAKISTAN

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer



59

UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PREMIUMS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Direct and facultative

Fire and property damage  142,399  55,773  67,193  7,074  138,053  118,151  46,748  55,752  5,912  115,059  22,994  19,273

Marine, aviation and transport  20,631  4,402  4,446  530  21,117  760  2,734  540  257  3,211  17,906  19,116

Motor 1,974,971  887,220  898,608  110,033  2,073,616  343,059  106,966  125,669  13,837  338,193  1,735,423  1,299,435

Miscellaneous  33,260  24,251  17,729  2,699  42,481  17,702  13,239  9,376  1,464  23,029  19,452  21,189

Total  2,171,261  971,646  987,976  120,336  2,275,267  479,672  169,687  191,337  21,470  479,492  1,795,775  1,359,013

Treaty

Proportional  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

Total  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

Grand Total  2,171,261  971,646  987,976  120,336  2,275,267  479,672  169,687  191,337  21,470  479,492  1,795,775  1,359,013

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CLAIMS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Direct and facultative

Fire and property damage  2,587,967  2,884,545  3,516,994  5,347  3,215,069  1,912,954  2,142,921  2,919,240  4,827  2,684,446  530,623  840,372

Marine, aviation and transport  351,744  269,872  176,944  635  258,181  37,088  127,373  126,959 -  36,674 221,507  284,200

Motor  2,572,706  2,012,919  2,612,650  162,587  3,009,850  619,193  1,460,234  2,068,984  134,391  1,093,552  1,916,298  1,821,660

Miscellaneous  1,300,146  1,173,985  995,753  33  1,121,881  433,896  769,372  638,948  24  303,448  818,433  1,196,435

Total  6,812,563  6,341,321  7,302,341  168,602  7,604,981  3,003,131  4,499,900  5,754,131 139,242 4,118,120 3,486,861  4,142,667

Treaty

Proportional  -     20,332  20,332  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -    -

Total  -     20,332  20,332  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -    -

Grand Total  6,812,563  6,361,653  7,322,673  168,602  7,604,981  3,003,131  4,499,900  5,754,131 139,242 4,118,120 3,486,861  4,142,667

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CLAIMS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Direct and facultative

Fire and property damage  2,522,447  2,816,319  3,454,234  -    3,160,362  1,864,087  2,079,054  2,865,914  -    2,650,947  509,415  822,345

Marine, aviation and transport  350,867  262,210  168,844  -    257,501  37,034  127,373  126,959  -    36,620  220,881  286,114

Motor  624,020  265,637  227,331  -    585,714  15,739  44,031  52,854  -    24,562  561,152  850,618

Miscellaneous  1,276,727  1,173,464  995,490  -    1,098,753  416,295  769,001  638,764  -    286,058  812,695  1,192,579

Total  4,774,061  4,517,630  4,845,899  -    5,102,330  2,333,155  3,019,459  3,684,491 -    2,998,187  2,104,143  3,151,656

Treaty

Proportional  -    20,332  20,332  -    -    -    -    -    -   -    -    -

Total  -    20,332  20,332  -    -    -   -    -    -    -    -    -

Grand Total  4,774,061  4,537,962  4,866,231  -    5,102,330  2,333,155  3,019,459  3,684,491  -    2,998,187  2,104,143  3,151,656

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CLAIMS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Direct and facultative

Fire and property damage  65,520  68,226  62,760  5,347  54,707  48,867  63,867  53,326  4,827  33,499  21,208  18,027

Marine, aviation and transport  877  7,662  8,100  635  680  54  -     -    -    54 626  (1,914)

Motor  1,948,686  1,747,282  2,385,319  162,587  2,424,136  603,454  1,416,203  2,016,130  134,391  1,068,990  1,355,146  971,042

Miscellaneous  23,419  521  263  33  23,128  17,601  371  184  24  17,390  5,738  3,856

Total  2,038,502  1,823,691  2,456,442  168,602  2,502,651  669,976  1,480,441  2,069,640 139,242 1,119,933 1,382,718  991,011

Treaty

Proportional  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   -

Total  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -    -    -

Grand Total  2,038,502  1,823,691  2,456,442  168,602  2,502,651  669,976  1,480,441  2,069,640 139,242 1,119,933 1,382,718  991,011

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Direct and facultative

Fire and property damage  422,085  252,708  188,330 1,179 487,642  322,909  810,551  484,212  326,339  362,104

Marine, aviation and transport  94,905  (5,160)  3,163 309 86,891  201,164  288,055  5,458  282,597  258,410

Motor  319,075  118,926  150,110 9,937 297,828  693,660   991,488  34,828  956,660  970,645

Miscellaneous  138,004  55,729  49,046 229 144,916  317,736  462,652  145,113  317,539  350,422

Total  974,069  422,203  390,649 11,654 1,017,277  1,535,469     2,552,746  669,611  1,883,135  1,941,581

Treaty

Proportional  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

Total  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

Grand Total  974,069  422,203  390,649 11,654 1,017,277  1,535,469  2,552,746  669,611  1,883,135  1,941,581

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

BUSINESS UNDERWRITTEN INSIDE PAKISTAN

Direct and facultative

Fire and property damage  400,184  243,588  176,680  -   467,092  301,291  768,383  457,701  310,682  337,983

Marine, aviation and transport  92,600  (5,486)  2,946  -   84,168  190,309  274,477  4,976  269,501  242,446

Motor  97,604  43,949  48,702  -   92,851  477,924  570,775  121  570,654  694,651

Miscellaneous  134,117  53,544  47,883  -   139,778  297,514  437,292  142,872  294,420  319,625

Total  724,505  335,595  276,211  -   783,889  1,267,038  2,050,927  605,670  1,445,257  1,594,705

Treaty

Proportional  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -    -

Total  -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -    -

Grand Total  724,505  335,595  276,211  -     783,889  1,267,038  2,050,927  605,670  1,445,257  1,594,705

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Direct and facultative

Fire and property damage  21,901  9,120  11,650  1,179  20,550  21,618  42,168  26,511  15,657  24,121

Marine, aviation and transport  2,305  326  217  309  2,723  10,855  13,578  482  13,096  15,964

Motor  221,471  74,977  101,408  9,937  204,977  215,736  420,713  34,707  386,006  275,994

Miscellaneous  3,887  2,185  1,163  229  5,138  20,222  25,360  2,241  23,119  30,797

Total  249,564  86,608  114,438  11,654  233,388  268,431  501,819  63,941  437,878  346,876

Treaty

Proportional  -    -    -   -    -    -    -    -    -   -

Total  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

Grand Total  249,564  86,608  114,438  11,654  233,388  268,431  501,819  63,941  437,878  346,876

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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UNCONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
INVESTMENT INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER  2013

Income from non- trading investments

Available- for- sale

Return on Term Finance Certificates  10,762  17,401
Return on Treasury Bills  5,463  12,246
Return on Pakistan Investments Bonds  11,405  6,240
Dividend income

  -   associated undertakings  573,804  503,166
  -   others  362,500  293,604

936,304  796,770
 963,934  832,657

Gain on sale of 'available-for-sale' investments

  -   associated undertakings  221,938  108,771
  -   others  975,996  34,621

 1,197,934  143,392

 2,161,868  976,049
Reversal of impairment in value of 'available-for-sale' investment               12.2  195,394  355,742

Net investment income  2,357,262  1,331,791

The annexed notes 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Adamjee Insurance Company Limited ("the Company") is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan on 28
September 1960 under the Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies Ordinance, 1984). The Company is listed on all
stock exchanges in Pakistan and is engaged in the non-life insurance business. The registered office of the Company
is situated at Tanveer Building, 27-C-III, MM Alam Road, Gulberg III, Lahore.

1.1 The Company also operates branches in the United Arab Emirates (UAE), the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA) and the
Export Processing Zone (EPZ). The branch in the KSA has closed down its operations and is in “ run-off”  status with
effect from 01 October 2003.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are set out
below. These accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

a) Statement of compliance

These unconsolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, provisions of
and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance,1984, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and SEC (Insurance) Rules,
2002. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984, Insurance Ordinance,
2000 and SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002 shall prevail.

The SECP has allowed insurance companies to defer the application of International Accounting Standard (IAS) -  39
'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' in respect of "available-for-sale investments" until suitable
amendments have been made in the laws. Accordingly, the requirements of IAS-39, to the extent allowed by SECP, have
not been considered in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements. The effect of such departure from
the requirements of IAS - 39 is disclosed in Note 12.1.

b) Basis of presentation

These financial statements represent separate unconsolidated financial statements of Adamjee Insurance Company
Limited, prepared in accordance with the format of financial statements prescribed under SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002.
 The consolidated financial statements of the group are issued separately.

c) Accounting convention 

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that certain
investments are stated at lower of cost and market value and the obligations under certain employee benefits that are
measured at present value. Accrual basis of accounting has been used except for cash flow information.

d) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise judgment in
application of its accounting policies. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to these unconsolidated financial statements or judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies, are as
follows:

i) Provision for outstanding claims including claims incurred but not reported (IBNR)

Provision for liability in respect of unpaid reported claims is made on the basis of individual case estimates. Provision
for IBNR is based on the management's best estimate which takes into account the past trends, expected future patterns
of reporting of claims and the claims actually reported subsequent to the balance sheet date.

ii) Provision for taxation including the amount relating to tax contingency

In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account the
current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

iii) Provision for doubtful receivables

The receivable balances are reviewed against any provision required for any doubtful balances on an ongoing basis.
The provision is made while taking into consideration expected recoveries, if any.

iv) Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments -  Fixed assets

Estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based on the
analysis of the management of the Company. Further, the Company reviews the value of assets for possible impairment
on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of
fixed assets with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

v) Defined benefit plans

The actuarial calculations are involved in the working of provision for defined benefit plans that are based on certain
actuarial assumptions.

vi) Classification of investments 

The Company classifies its investments into "available-for-sale" category. The classification is determined by management
at initial recognition and depends on the purpose for which the investments are acquired.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
year, or in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

e) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these unconsolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates. These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani
Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 

f) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved standards that are effective in current
year and are relevant to the Company

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended 31 December 2013. These
standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company’s operations or are not expected
to have significant impact on the Company’s financial statements other than certain additional disclosures. 

IAS 1 ' Financial statements presentation' has been amended effective 01 January 2013. The main change resulting
from these amendments is a requirement for entities to group items presented in 'Other Comprehensive Income' (OCI)
on the basis of whether they are  potentially reclassifiable to profit and loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments)
or not. The specified changes has been made in the statement of comprehensive income for the year.
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

IAS 19 Employee Benefits (revised) which became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2013
amends accounting for employees benefits. The amended IAS 19 includes the amendments that require actuarial gains
and losses to be recognized immediately in other comprehensive income; to immediately recognize all past service
costs; and to replace interest cost and expected return on plan assets with a net interest amount that is calculated by
applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability / asset.

g) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective
in current year but not relevant to the Company

There are other new standards, interpretations and amendments to the published approved accounting standards that
are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2013 but are considered not to be relevant or
do not have any significant impact on these unconsolidated financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these
unconsolidated financial statements.

h) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective but relevant to the Company

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on or
after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not
relevant to the Company’s operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company’s financial statements
other than certain additional disclosures.

IAS 32 'Financial Instruments: Presentation' (effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2014).
This amendment clarifies the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to setoff“. It will be necessary to
assess the impact to the entity by reviewing settlement procedures and legal documentation to ensure that offsetting
is still possible in cases where it has been achieved in the past. In certain cases, offsetting may no longer be   achieved.
In other cases, contracts may have to be renegotiated. The requirement that the right of setoff be available for all
counterparties to the netting agreement may prove to be a challenge for contracts where only one party has the right
to offset in the event of default.

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments“ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2015). It addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. This is the first part of a new
standard on classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities that shall replace IAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement“. IFRS 9 has two measurement categories: amortized cost and fair value.
All equity instruments are measured at fair value. A debt instrument is measured at amortized cost only if the entity
is holding it to collect contractual cash flows and the cash flows represent principal and interest. For liabilities, the
standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements. These include amortized-cost accounting for most financial liabilities,
with bifurcation of embedded derivatives. The main change is that, in cases where the fair value option is taken for
financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive
income rather than the income statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch. This change shall mainly affect
financial institutions. There shall be no impact on the Company’s accounting for financial liabilities, as the new
requirements only affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or loss,
and the Company does not have any such liabilities.

IAS 36 (Amendments) “Impairment of Assets“ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2014).
Amendments have been made in IAS 36 to reduce the circumstances in which the recoverable amount of assets or
cash- generating units is required to be disclosed, clarify the disclosures required and to introduce an explicit requirement
to disclose the discount rate used in determining impairment (or reversals) where recoverable amount (based on fair
value less costs of disposal) is determined using a present value technique. However, the amendments are not expected
to have a material impact on the Company’s unconsolidated financial statements.

i) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not effective
in current year and not considered relevant to the Company

There are other accounting standards, amendments to published approved accounting standards and new interpretations
that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2014 but are considered not to be relevant
or do not have any significant impact on these unconsolidated financial statements and are therefore not detailed in
these unconsolidated financial statements.
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2.2 Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from
another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event (the
insured event) adversely affects the policyholders.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder of
its life time, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and liabilities are
extinguished or expired.

Insurance contracts issued by the Company are generally classified in four basic categories i.e. Fire and property,
Marine, aviation and transport, Motor and Miscellaneous and are issued to multiple types of clients with business in
engineering, automobiles, cement, power, textile, paper, agriculture, services and trading sectors etc. and individuals
as well. The tenure of these insurance contracts depends upon terms of the policies written and vary accordingly.

- Fire and property insurance contracts generally cover the assets of the policy holders against damages by fire, earthquake,
riots and strike, explosion, atmospheric disturbance, flood, electric fluctuation and impact, burglary, loss of profit followed
by the incident of fire, contractor's all risk, errection all risk, machinery breakdown and boiler damage etc.

- Marine aviation and transport insurance contracts generally provide cover for loss or damage to cargo while in transit
to and from foreign land and inland transit due to various insured perils including loss of or damage to carrying vessel etc.

-  Motor insurance contracts provide indemnity for accidental damage to or loss of insured vehicle including loss of or
damage to third party and other comprehensive car coverage.

- Miscellaneous insurance contracts provide variety of coverage including cover against burglary, loss of cash in safe,
cash in transit and cash on counter, fidelity guarantee, personal accident, workmen compensation, travel, crop and
health etc.

In addition to direct insurance, the Company also participates in risks under co-insurance contracts from other companies
and also accepts risks through re-insurance inward by way of facultative acceptance on case to case basis provided
such risks are within the underwriting policies of the Company. The nature of the risks undertaken under such
arrangement is consistent with the risks in each class of business as stated above.

The Company neither issues investment contracts nor does it issue insurance contracts with discretionary participation
features (DPF).

2.2.1 Premium

Premium received / receivable under a policy is recognized as written from the date of attachment of the policy to which
it relates. Premium income under a policy is recognized over the period of insurance from inception to expiry as follows:

(a) For direct business, evenly over the period of the policy;
(b) For proportional reinsurance business, evenly over the period of underlying insurance policies; and
(c) For non-proportional reinsurance business, in accordance with the pattern of the reinsurance service.

Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the period of the policy, premium is recognized as revenue in accordance
with the pattern of the incidence of risk.

Administrative surcharge is recognized as premium at the time the policies are written.

Provision for unearned premium represents the portion of premium written relating to the unexpired period of coverage
and is recognized as a liability by the Company. This liability is calculated as follows:

- for marine cargo business and for motor business in the UAE branches, as a ratio of the unexpired period to the
total period of the policy applied on the gross premium of the individual policies; and

- for other classes / lines of business, by applying the twenty-fourths method as specified in the SEC (Insurance)
Rules, 2002, as majority of the remaining policies are issued for a period of one year.
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The unearned portion of Accident and Health insurance, that is included in Miscellaneous category, is determined in
acccordance with the actuary's advice.

Receivables under insurance contracts are recognized when due, at the fair value of the consideration receivable less
provision for doubtful debts, If any. Provision for impairment on premium receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to original terms of receivable.
Receivables are also analyzed as per their ageing and accordingly provision is maintained on a systematic basis.

2.2.2 Reinsurance ceded

The Company enters into reinsurance contracts in the normal course of business in order to limit the potential for
losses arising from certain exposures. Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same period as the
related premiums for the direct or accepted reinsurance business being reinsured.

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a manner
consistent with the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance
companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the provision for outstanding
claims or settled claims associated with the reinsurance policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance
contract.

Reinsurance assets are not offset against related insurance liabilities. Income or expenses from reinsurance contract
are not offset against expenses or income from related insurance assets.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contractual rights or obligations are extinguished or expired.

The Company assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment on reporting date. If there is an objective evidence that
the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable
amount and recognizes the impairment loss in the profit and loss account.

The portion of reinsurance premium not recognized as an expense is shown as a prepayment.

Commission income from reinsurers is recognized at the time of issuance of the underlying insurance policy by the
Company. This income is deferred and brought to account as revenue in accordance with the pattern of recognition of
the reinsurance premium to which it relates. Profit commission, if any, which the Company may be entitled to under
the terms of reinsurance, is recognized on accrual basis.

2.2.3 Provision for outstanding claims including IBNR

The Company recognizes liability in respect of all claims incurred up to the reporting date which is measured at the
undiscounted value of the expected future payments. The claims are considered to be incurred at the time of the incident
giving rise to the claim except as otherwise expressly indicated in the insurance contract. The liability for claims include
amounts relating to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), expected claims settlement costs,
a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding from previous
years.

Provision for IBNR are based on the best estimate which takes into account the past trend, expected future patterns
of reporting claims and the claims actually incurred subsequent to the balance sheet date.

The Company accounts for IBNR based on an analysis of past claims reporting pattern by tracking movement in claims
incurred in an accounting period. Provision for IBNR claims pertaining to Accident and Health Insurance, that is included
in Miscellaneous Category, is determind on actuary's advice. 

2.2.4 Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims

Claims recoveries receivable from the reinsurer are recognized as an asset at the same time as the claims which give
rise to the right of recovery are recognized as a liability and are measured at the amount expected to be received.
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2.2.5 Commission expense and other acquisition costs

Commission expense incurred in obtaining and recording policies is deferred and recognized as an expense in accordance
with pattern of recognition of premium revenue.

Other acquisition costs are charged to profit and loss account at the time the policies are accepted.

2.2.6 Premium deficiency reserve

The Company maintains a provision in respect of premium deficiency for the class of business where the unearned
premium liability is not adequate to meet the expected future liability, after reinsurance, from claims and other
supplementary expenses expected to be incurred after the balance sheet date in respect of the unexpired policies in
that class of business at the reporting date.

The movement in the premium deficiency reserve is recorded as an expense / income in profit or loss account for the year.

For this purpose, loss ratios for each class are estimated based on historical claim development. Judgment is used in
assessing the extent to which past trends may not apply in future or the effects of one-off claims. If these ratios are
adverse, premium deficiency is determined. The loss ratios estimated on these basis for the unexpired portion are as
follows:

2013 2012

Fire and property damage 69.92% 78.93%
Marine, aviation and transport 47.19% 53.75%
Motor 64.68% 66.17%
Miscellaneous 80.99% 78.72%

Provision for premium deficiency pertaining to Accident and Health Insurance business included in Miscellaneous class
of business is determind on actuary's advice.

Based on an analysis of combined operating ratio for the expired period of each reportable segment, the management
considers that the unearned premium reserve for all classes of business as at the year end is adequate to meet the
expected future liability after reinsurance, from claims and other expenses expected to be incurred after the balance
sheet date in respect of policies in those classes of business in force at the reporting date. Hence, no reserve for the
same has been created in these unconsolidated financial statements.

2.3 Staff retirement benefits 

2.3.1 Defined contribution plan

The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund scheme for all its eligible employees. Equal monthly
contributions to the fund are made by the Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33% of basic salary.

2.3.2 Defined benefit plans

The Company operates the following defined benefit plans:

(a) an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees in Pakistan. Annual contributions are made 
to this scheme on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The actuarial valuation is carried out using the projected
unit credit method. Gratuity is payable to staff on completion of the prescribed qualifying period of service under
the scheme;

(b) unfunded gratuity scheme covering the employees in the UAE branches as per the requirements of the applicable
 regulations.  Provision is made in these unconsolidated financial statements on the basis of actuarial valuation

carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.
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During the current year, the Company has changed its accounting policy in respect of post retirement defined benefits
plans as required under International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19, 'Employee Benefits'. Previously, the actuarial gains
and losses were amortized over the expected future service of the current members in accordance with the International
Accounting Standard –  19 ‘ Employee Benefits’ . According to new policy actuarial gains and losses are recognized in
other comprehensive income (OCI) in the periods in which they occur. Amounts recorded in the profit and loss account
are limited to current and past service costs, gains or losses on settlements, and net interest income (expense). All
other changes in the net defined benefit obligation are recognized directly in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent recycling through the profit and loss account.

The change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with the requirements of IAS 8,
'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors'. The effect of the change in accounting policy on
the current and prior periods financial statements have been summarised below:

Impact on unconsolidated balance sheet

Increase in other creditors and accruals 22,161 54,049 50,932
Decrease in sundry receivables -    -     14,730
Decrease in retained earnings 22,161 54,049 65,662

Impact on unconsolidated profit and loss account

Decrease in general and administration expenses 3,862 12,672
Increase in profit after tax 3,862 12,672
Increase in earnings per share 0.01 0.04

2.4 Employees' compensated absences

The Company accounts for these benefits in the period in which the absences are earned. The provision has been made
in accordance with the actuarial valuation. The valuation uses a discount rate of 12% (2012: 11.5%) and assumes a salary
increase average of 10% (2012: 9.5%) in the long term.

2.5 Creditors, accruals and provisions

Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be
paid in future for the goods and / or services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events
and, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash and bank deposits and excludes bank balances held under lien.

2.7 Investments

All investments are initially recognized at cost being the fair value of the consideration given and include any transaction
costs. All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations
or market convention are accounted for at the trade date. Trade date is the date when the Company commits to purchase
or sell the investment.

The above investments are classified as 'available-for-sale'.

Rupees in thousand

2013 20112012
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Available- for- sale 

Investments which are intended to be held for an undefined period of time but may be sold in response to the need for
liquidity, changes in interest rates, equity prices or exchange rates are classified as available-for-sale.

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, these are stated at the lower of cost or market value (market value being taken
as lower if the reduction is other than temporary) in accordance with the requirements of the SEC (Insurance) Rules,
2002. The Company uses stock exchange quotations at the reporting date to determine the market value of its quoted
investments. The Company uses appropriate valuation techniques to estimate the fair value of unquoted investments
in delisted / unlisted companies. Such valuation is obtained from independent valuers. If such estimated fair value is
lesser than the cost, the Company recognizes the impairment adjustments.

In case of fixed income securities redeemable at a given date where the cost is different from the redemption value,
such difference is amortized uniformly over the period between the acquisition date and the date of maturity in determining
'cost' at which these investments are stated as per the requirements of the SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002.

2.8 Taxation

2.8.1 Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance  with the prevailing
law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using  prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to
apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. The  charge for current tax also include adjustments, where considered
necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments finalized during the current year for
such years.

2.8.2 Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the unconsolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for all taxable temporary  differences and deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized. 

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in
the profit and loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged to statement of comprehensive income in
which case it is included in statement of comprehensive income.

2.9 Fixed assets

2.9.1 Tangible

Owned fixed assets, other than freehold land which is not depreciated and capital work-in-progress, are stated at cost,
signifying historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and any provision for accumulated impairment. Freehold land
and capital work-in-progress are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged
to income applying varying methods depending upon the nature of the asset, at the rates specified for calculation of
depreciation after taking into account residual value, if any. The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Assets subject to finance lease are accounted for by recording the assets at the lower of present value of minimum
lease payments under lease agreements and the fair value of asset at the inception of the lease contract. The related
obligation under the lease is accounted for as liability. Finance charges are allocated to accounting period in a manner
so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge on the outstanding liability.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit and loss account as and when
incurred. 
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Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the assets are available for use while on disposals, depreciation
is charged up to the month in which the assets are disposed off.

The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that this carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indications exist and where the carrying values
exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount of the assets disposed
off. These are taken to profit and loss account.

2.9.2 Intangible

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any provision for accumulated impairment, if any. 

Amortization is calculated from the month the assets are available for use using the straight-line method, whereby the
cost of the intangible asset is amortized over its estimated useful life over which economic benefits are expected to flow
to the Company. The useful life and amortization methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

Software development costs are only capitalized to the extent that future economic benefits are expected to be derived
by the Company.

The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that this carrying value may not be recoverable.  If any such indications exist and where the carrying values exceed the
estimated recoverable amounts,  the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

2.10 Expenses of Management

Expenses of management both direct and indirect are allocated on the basis of activity in each class of business.
Expenses not allocable to the underwriting business are charged as General and Administration expenses.

2.11 Investment income

From available- for- sale investments 

- Return on fixed income securities
Return on fixed income securities classified as available-for-sale is recognized on a time proportion basis.

- Dividend
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the dividend is established.

- Gain / loss on sale of available- for- sale investments
Gain / loss on sale of available-for-sale investments is recognized in profit and loss account in the year of sale.

- Return on Term Finance Certificates
The difference between the redemption value and the purchase price of the Term Finance Certificates is amortized
uniformly and taken to the profit and loss account over the term of the investment.

2.12 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies (other than the result of foreign branches) are accounted for in Pak Rupees at the
rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange differences are taken
to the profit and loss account currently.

The assets and liabilities of foreign branches are translated to Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting
date. The results of foreign branches are translated to Pak Rupees at the average rate of exchange for the year.
Translation gains and losses are included in the profit and loss account, except those arising on the translation of the
Company's net investment in foreign branches, which are taken to the capital reserves (exchange translation reserve).
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2.13 Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument and de-recognized when the Company loses control of contractual rights that comprise
the financial assets and in the case of financial liabilities when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on the de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is included in the profit
and loss account.

Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash and bank, loans, investments, premiums due but
unpaid, amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers, premium and claim reserves retained by cedants, accrued
investment income, reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims, sundry receivables, provision for outstanding
claims, amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers, accrued expenses, other creditors and accruals, liabilities against
assets subject to finance lease and unclaimed dividends. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in
the individual policy statements associated with each item.

2.14 Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the shareholders and other appropriations are recognized in the
period in which these are approved by the Board of Directors.

2.15 Off setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when the Company
has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and it intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.16 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated if there is any potential dilutive
effect on the Company's reported net profits.

2.17 Impairment

Financial assets
A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicate that one or more events had a negative effect
on the estimated future cash flow of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as a difference between
its carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. An impairment loss in respect of available for sale financial asset is calculated with reference to its current fair
value.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets
are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

Non financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated.
An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognized in profit and loss account. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment
loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit and loss account.
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2.18 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker (the board of directors) who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments.

The Company accounts for segment reporting using the classes of business as specified under the Insurance Ordinance,
2000 and the SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002 as the primary reporting format based on the Company's practice of reporting
to the management on the same basis.

Assets, liabilities and capital expenditures that are directly attributable to segments have been assigned to them while
the carrying amount of certain assets used jointly by two or more segments have been allocated to segments on a
reasonable basis. Those assets and liabilities which cannot be allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis
are reported as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities.

2.19 Borrowing cost

Interest, mark-up and other charges on long-term finances are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of respective
qualifying assets acquired out of the proceeds of such long-term finances. All other interest, mark-up and other charges
are recognized in profit and loss account.

2.20 Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of equity instruments are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.
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3.3 As at 31 December 2013, MCB Bank Limited and Nishat Mills Limited, associated undertakings, held 102,812,165 (2012:
36,338,092) and 102,809 (2012: 36,337) ordinary shares of the Company of Rupees 10 each, respectively.

4. RESERVES Note

Capital reserves

Reserve for exceptional losses 4.1 22,859 22,859
Investment fluctuation reserve 4.2 3,764 3,764
Exchange translation reserve 4.3 477,286 478,756

 503,909 505,379
Revenue reserve
General reserve 936,500 936,500

1,440,409 1,441,879

4.1 The reserve for exceptional losses represents the amount set aside in prior years up to 31 December 1978, in order to
avail the deduction while computing the taxable income under the old Income Tax Act of 1922. Subsequent to the
introduction of repealed Income Tax Ordinance, 1979, which did not permit the said deduction, the Company discontinued
the setting aside of amounts as reserve for exceptional losses.

4.2 This amount has been set aside in prior years for utilization against possible diminution in the value of investments.

4.3 The exchange translation reserve represents the gain resulted from the translation of foreign branches  (having business
in foreign currencies) into Pak Rupees. For the purpose of exchange translation reserve, the UAE and Export Processing
Zone branches are treated as foreign branches since these carry on their business in AED and US Dollars, respectively.

Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Number of shares

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

3. SHARE CAPITAL

3.1 Authorized share capital

3.2 Paid- up share capital

Issued, subscribed and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of Rupees
10 each

Ordinary shares of Rupees 10
each fully paid in cash

Ordinary shares of Rupees 10
each issued as fully paid  bonus
shares

Issued during the year

Ordinary shares of Rupees 10
each issued as fully paid  bonus
shares

250,000 250,000

 123,454,543 123,454,543

350,000,000  123,704,543

                375,000,000 150,000,000

2,500 2,500

 1,234,545 1,234,545

2,262,955 -

3,500,000  1,237,045

                3,750,000 1,500,000

Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

226,295,457
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5. PROVISION FOR OUTSTANDING CLAIMS (including IBNR)

Related parties 199,060 283,240
Others 7,123,613 6,078,413

7,322,673 6,361,653

6. STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS -  Unfunded staff gratuity

Opening balance 31,042 22,011
Charge for the year 3,948 7,989

34,990 30,000
Gratuity paid (1,038) (1,014)
Exchange loss 6,525 2,056
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 40,477 31,042

6.1 The above provision relates to the Company's operations in UAE branches. Actuarial valuation is carried out as at  31
December 2013 by an independent actuary -  Zahid & Zahid.
The following significant assumptions have been used for valuation of this scheme:

-   Valuation discount rate 4.50% 4.50%

-   Expected rate of increase in salary level 4.00% 5.00%

6.2 The amounts charged in profit and loss are as follows:

Current service cost 4,936 6,740
Interest on obligation 1,607 1,249
Expense for the year 6,543 7,989

6.3 The amounts charged to other comprehensive income are as follows:

Remeasurements of the present value of defined benefit obligation:
Actuarial gains arising from changes in demographic assumptions  -    -
Actuarial gains arising from changes in financial assumptions (1,455)  -
Actuarial gains arising from experience adjustments (1,140)  -

(2,595)  -

Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Rate per Annum

2013 2012

Restated Restated
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7. OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS

Cash margin against performance bonds 646,744 651,492 612,067
Sundry creditors 216,859 161,164 137,679
Commission payable 402,464 598,594 531,396
Workers' welfare fund 146,052 100,942 11,762
Federal insurance fee 37,920 35,809 35,471
Federal excise duty 105,114 51,044 101,572
Staff Gratuity Fund - restated 7.1 57,770 65,432 50,932
Payable to Employees' Provident Fund 7.2 804 958  -

1,613,727 1,665,435 1,480,879

7.1 Staff Gratuity Fund

The Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all employees. Actuarial valuation is carried out every year
and the latest valuation was carried out as at  31 December 2013 by an independent actuary -  Zahid & Zahid.

The following significant assumptions have been used for valuation of this scheme:

-   Valuation discount rate 12.00% 11.50% 13.00%
-   Expected rate of increase in salary level 10.00% 9.50% 10.75%
-   Rate of return on plan assets 10.79% 11.50% 13.00%

The fair value of the scheme’s assets and liabilities for past services of the employees at the latest valuation date are as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation 198,316 194,589 196,137
Plan assets (140,546) (129,157) (145,205)
Net liability -  restated 57,770 65,432 50,932

7.1.1 Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

Liabilities -  restated 57,770 65,432 50,932

7.1.2 Amounts charged to profit and loss account

Current service cost 11,296 15,848 16,291
Net interest cost -  restated 7,525 6,403 6,086
Curtailment cost  -    -     4,039

18,821 22,251 26,416

Rupees in thousand

Note 31 December 201131 December 201231 December 2013

(Restated)(Restated)

Rate per annum

201120122013

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201131 December 201231 December 2013
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7.1.3 Amounts charged to other comprehensive income

Remeasurements of the present value of defined benefit obligation: 
Actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions  -    8,132  -
Actuarial losses arising from changes in financial assumptions  799  -     -
Actuarial gains arising from experience adjustments (13,811) (16,089) (2,812)
Return on plan assets (13,471) 206 (2,423)

(26,483) (7,751) (5,235)

7.1.4 Total defined benefit (income) / cost (7,662) 14,500 21,181

7.1.5 Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 194,589 196,137 215,970
Current service cost 11,296 15,848 16,291
Interest cost 21,457 23,427 26,386
Curtailment cost -    -    4,039

Remeasurements of the present value of defined benefit obligation:
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions  -   8,132 -
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 799  -     -
Actuarial (gains) / losses arising from experience adjustments (13,811) (16,089) (2,812)

Benefits paid (16,014) (32,866) (63,737)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 198,316 194,589 196,137

7.1.6 Changes in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of  the year 129,157 145,205 186,219
Interest income 13,932 17,025 20,300

Remeasurements of the fair value of plan assets:
Return on plan assets 13,471 (206) 2,423

Benefits paid (16,014) (32,867) (63,737)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 140,546 129,157 145,205

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201131 December 201231 December 2013
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7.1.7 Fund Investment

Government Bonds 73,388 52.22  -     -     9,872 6.80
Corporate Bonds 23,497 16.72 24,908 19.29  -     -
Shares and deposits 31,933 22.72 97,327 75.36 92,172 63.48
Unit Trusts 14,291 10.17 9,536 7.38 52,555 36.19
Creditors (2,563) (1.82) (2,614) (2.02) (9,394) (6.47)

140,546 100 129,157 100 145,205 100

7.2 During the year, an amount of Rupees 20.487  million (2012: Rupees 20.791 million) has been charged to the profit and
loss account in respect of the Company's contributions to the Employees' Provident Fund.

%(Rupees in
thousand)

%(Rupees in
thousand)

%(Rupees in
thousand)

31 December 2013 31 December 2012 31 December 2011

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

8. LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

Present value of minimum lease payments 6,683 24,987

8.1 Minimum lease payments

Not later than 1 year 6,951 17,831
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  -    9,463

6,951 27,294
Future finance charges on finance lease (268) (2,307)
Present value of finance lease liability 6,683 24,987

8.2 Present value of finance lease liabilities

Not later than 1 year 6,683 15,547
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  -    9,440

6,683 24,987

8.3 The above represents finance lease entered into with leasing companies for motor vehicles. The liability is payable
by October 2014 in quarterly installments and is secured against respective vehicles and security deposits.

8.4 Lease payments bear variable mark-up rates including finance charges at 3 months KIBOR + 2% to 2.5% (2012:
 3 months KIBOR + 2% to 2.5%) per annum. KIBOR is determined on quarterly basis.
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9. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

9.1 Contingencies

The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalized up to and including the tax year 2012. However, the Company
has filed appeals in respect of certain assessment years mainly on account of the following:

i) The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue issued an order under section 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001  for
the year 2012 whereby a tax demand aggregating to Rs  8.649 million was raised against the Company on account of non-
deduction of tax on dividend. The Company challenged the said order before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals)
who remanded the case back to taxation officer for fresh proceedings. The management is confident that the matter will
eventually be decided in favour of the Company, and has consequently not made any provision there against.

ii) The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue passed an order under section 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for
tax year 2005 raising a tax demand of Rs 3.103 million  for alleged non-payment of tax deducted on salaries  during the
year. The Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) who remanded the case back to
taxation officer with the direction to provide the Company a proper opportunity of being heard. The same was challenged
by the Company before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue. Hearing of the case has not yet commenced. However, a positive
outcome is expected by the Company; hence, no provision has been made by the Company in this regard.

iii) The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) has finalized assessments for the assessment year 1999-2000 by taxing
capital gains at the full rate of 33%. The aggregate tax liability assessed by the DCIR amounted to Rupees 48.205 million
against which the Company has made a total provision of Rupees 44.141 million resulting in a shortfall of Rupees 4.064
million. The Company filed appeals with the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) and Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
(ATIR) which were decided against the Company. Consequently, the Company has filed an appeal before the Honourable
Sindh High Court and the petition is fixed for regular hearing.

iv) The Additional Commissioner / Taxation Officer has reopened assessments for the assessment years 2000-2001 and 2001-
2002 by taxing bonus shares received by the Company during the above mentioned periods resulting in an additional tax
liability of Rupees 14.907 million. An appeal was filed before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) who cancelled
the amended order passed by the Additional Commissioner and allowed relief to the Company but the Tax Department
had filed an appeal before the ATIR against the order of the Additional Commissioner, which has been decided in favour
of the Company. However, the Company received another notice from Additional Commissioner for reassessment of the
case in response to which the Company has filed a constitutional petition in Honourable Sindh High Court against such notice.

v) While finalizing the assessment for the assessment year 2002-2003, DCIR has reduced the business loss for the year by
Rupees 88.180 million by adjusting the dividend income against this loss. The Company maintains that it is entitled to carry
the gross loss forward for adjustment against the future taxable income and dividend income for the year should be taxed

      separately at reduced rate. The appeals of the Company in this respect have been rejected by the Commissioner Inland
        Revenue (Appeals), the ATIR and the Sindh High Court. The Company has filed a reference application with the Supreme

Court of Pakistan. The management is confident that the matter will eventually be decided in favour of the Company and has
consequently not made any provision against the additional tax liability of Rupees 26.455 million which may arise in this respect.

vi) The Tax Authorities have also amended the assessments for tax years 2003 to 2007 on the ground that the Company has
not apportioned management and general administration expenses against capital gain and dividend income. The Company
has filed constitutional petition in the Honorable Sindh High Court against the amendment in the assessment order. The
Company may be liable to pay Rupees 5.881 million in the event of decision against the Company, out of which Rupees
2.727 million have been provided resulting in a shortfall of Rupees 3.154 million. 

vii) The Taxation Officer has passed an order in the tax years 2005 and 2006 under section 221 of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 (the Ordinance) levying minimum tax liability aggregating to Rupees 38.358 million. An appeal was filed before the
Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals)  who upheld the order of the Taxation Officer. The Company has filed an appeal
before the ATIR which is yet to be heard.

viii) The Company received a notice from Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue pertaining to the amendment of tax year
2008. Amongst others, the Additional Commissioner raised an issue with respect to the claim of exemption claimed on
capital gains on listed securities by way of incorrect application of the provisions of law. The Company preferred to contest
this matter by way of filing a constitutional petition before the Honourable Sindh High Court. The Court has ordered for
stay of proceedings.

Pending resolution of the above-mentioned appeals filed by the Company, no provision has been made in these unconsolidated
financial statements for the aggregate amount of Rupees 98.690 million (2012: 86.938 million) as the management is
confident that the eventual outcome of the above matters will be in favour of the Company.

9.2 Commitments

There were  no capital or other commitments as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).
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10. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

Cash and other equivalents
Cash in hand 4,411 1,099
Current and other accounts
Current accounts 508,688 212,465
Savings accounts 876,987 1,267,474

1,385,675 1,479,939
Deposits maturing within 12 months
Fixed and term deposits 10.1  1,156,190 1,026,373

2,546,276 2,507,411

10.1 These include fixed deposits amounting to Rupees 197.716 million (AED 6.916 million) [2012: Rupees 180.545
million (AED 6.844 million)] kept in accordance with the requirements of Insurance Regulations applicable to the
UAE branches for the purpose of carrying on business in United Arab Emirates. These also include liens against
cash deposits of  Rupees 9.076 million (2012: Rupees 9.076 million) with banks in Pakistan essentially in respect
of guarantees issued by the banks on behalf of the Company for claims under litigation filed against the Company.

10.2 Cash and bank deposits include an amount of Rupees 876.596 million  (2012: Rupees 663.460 million) held with 
related parties.

11. LOANS -  considered good

Secured

Executives 11.2 5,220 6,700
Employees 11.2 28,447 22,865

33,667 29,565

Less: Recoverable within one year shown under sundry receivables

Executives 18 4,871 5,985
Employees 18 12,645 10,789

17,516 16,774
16,151 12,791

11.1 Loans to employees are granted in accordance with the terms of their employment for the purchase of vehicles,
purchase / construction of houses and for other purposes as specified in the SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002. These
loans are recoverable in monthly installments over various periods and are secured by registration of vehicles,
deposit of title documents of property with the Company and against provident fund balances of the employees. 
The loans are interest free except for those granted for the purchase / construction of houses which carry interest
at the rate of 5% (2012: 5%) per annum.

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013Note
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11.2 Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans

Opening balance 6,700 22,865 29,565 3,274 24,691 27,965 
Disbursements 13,622 25,595 39,217 12,861 19,339 32,200 
Repayments (15,102) (20,013) (35,115) (9,435) (21,165) (30,600)
Closing balance 5,220 28,447 33,667 6,700 22,865 29,565

12. INVESTMENTS

In related parties
Available- for- sale 12.3
Marketable securities
Listed 7,477,264 6,333,561 
Unlisted  -     412,796 

7,477,264 6,746,357 

Investment in Subsidiary -  Adamjee Life
Assurance Company Limited 694,895 494,564 

8,172,159 7,240,921 

Others 12.3

Available- for- sale
Marketable securities 3,408,448 3,123,657 
Less: Provision for impairment in value of investments (220,890) (416,284)

3,187,558 2,707,373 
11,359,717 9,948,294

12.1 On 31 December 2013, the fair value of available-for-sale securities was Rupees 18,391.034 million (2012: Rupees
13,188.693 million). As per the Company's accounting policy, available-for-sale investments are stated at lower
of cost or market value (market value being taken as lower if the reduction is other than temporary). However,
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39, 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurements' dealing with
the recognition and measurement of financial instruments requires that these instruments should be measured
at fair value. Accordingly, had these investments been measured at fair value, their carrying value as at 31
December 2013 would have been higher by Rupees 7,031.317 million (2012: higher by Rupees 3,240.399 million).

12.2 Reconciliation of provision for impairment in value of investments

Opening provision 416,284 772,026 
Reversal for the year (195,394) (355,742)
Closing provision 220,890 416,284

2013

Executives Others Total

2012

Executives Others Total

Rupees in thousand

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013Note

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013
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12.3.1 Related parties

Listed Shares:

1,258,650 1,258,650 10 Nishat Mills Limited 34,211 34,211
[Equity held 0.36% (2012: 0.36%)]

115,500 115,500 10 Hub Power Company Limited 3,224 3,224
[Equity held 0.01% (2012: 0.01%)]

29,914,034 28,641,486 10 MCB Bank Limited 4,454,396 4,691,395
[Equity held 2.96% (2012: 3.42%)]

440,000 400,000 10 Hira Textile Mills Limited 5,000 5,000
[Equity held 0.50% (2012: 0.50%)]

25,631,181 25,631,181 10 Pakgen Power Limited 355,448 355,448
[Equity held 6.89% (2012: 6.89%)]

27,348,388 -   10 Lalpir Power Limited 371,516  -
[Equity held 7.20% (2012: Nil )]

3,396,340 -   10 MCB-Arif Habib Savings & Investment Limited 66,356  -
[Equity held 4.72% (2012: Nil)]

5,290,151 5,089,278

Unlisted Shares:
- 27,624,635 10 Lalpir Power Limited  - 412,796

[Equity held Nil (2012: 8.00% )]
-    412,796

Investment in Subsidiary- unlisted
69,489,545 49,456,373 10 Adamjee Life Assurance Limited 694,895 494,564

[Equity held 74.28% (2012: 67.20%)]

               Mutual Fund Certificates 
10,202,734 9,404,179 100 MCB Dynamic Cash Fund 943,345 847,504

[Units held 9.35 % (2012: 10.16%)]
10,565,767 4,123,322 100 MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund 993,768 396,779

[Units held 7.38 % (2012: 4.89%)]
5,193,482 -   50 Metro Bank Pakistan Sovereign Fund 250,000  -

[Units held 48.66 % (2012: Nil)]
2,187,113 1,244,283

Cost Cost

12.3 Available- for- sale

In related parties: 12.3.1
-   Listed shares 5,290,151 -   5,290,151  5,089,278 
-   Unlisted shares -    -    -    412,796 
-   Investment in Subsidiary -  Adamjee Life

Assurance Company Limited 694,895  -    694,895  494,564 
-   Mutual Fund Certificates 2,187,113  -    2,187,113  1,244,283 

8,172,159  -    8,172,159  7,240,921
Others:
-   Listed shares 12.3.2  2,954,211 (220,890) 2,733,321 2,424,188 
-   Term Finance Certificates 12.3.3 49,927 -   49,927 107,778 
-   Mutual Fund Certificates 12.3.4  40,145 -    40,145  40,145 
-   NIT Units 161  -    161 161 
-   Government treasury bills 274,695  -    274,695  36,307 
-   Pakistan Investment Bonds 89,309  -    89,309 98,794 

3,408,448 (220,890) 3,187,558 2,707,373 
11,580,607 (220,890) 11,359,717 9,948,294

Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December
2012

Carrying
Value

Carrying
Value

Provision
there againstCost

Note

No. of Shares / Certificates Face
value

Company's name 31 December
2013

31 December
2012

Rupees in thousand
31 December

2013
31 December

2012
Rupees
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12.3.2 Other -  listed shares

Investment Bank/ Investment Companies / Security Companies
 - 2,310,840 10 MCB-Arif Habib Savings & Investment Limited  -    47,086

Commercial Banks
3,358,480 1,731,346 10 Allied Bank Limited  176,805  75,492

777,022 1,936,884 10 Askari Bank Limited  21,359  71,871
6,565,208 7,132,709 10 Bank Al-Habib Limited  154,660  130,982 

354,890 322,628 10 Habib Bank Limited  38,447  38,447
3,901,899 3,901,899 10 Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited  87,327  87,327
6,968,950 6,059,957 10 National Bank of Pakistan  319,034  319,034
4,330,544 3,830,544 10 United Bank Limited  342,973  296,886

Insurance
3,000 3,000 10 EFU General Insurance Company Limited  211  211

305,188 305,188 10 International General Insurance Company of Pakistan  22,888  22,888
286,843 286,843 10 Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited  6,326  6,326

Power Generation & Distribution
85,000 85,000 10 Kot Addu Power Company Limited  3,913  3,913

Oil And Gas Marketing Companies
100,000 100,000 10 Attock Refinery Limited  15,157  15,157

2,213,095 2,011,905 10 Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited  127,666  127,666 

Oil And Gas Exploration Companies
10,000 10,000 10 Oil and Gas Development Company Limited  1,067  1,067

213,485 488,785 10 Pakistan Oilfields Limited  62,392  142,849
978,428 1,510,958 10 Pakistan Petroleum Limited  96,220  178,308

Automobile Assembler
301,378 301,378 5 Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited  43,030  43,030
340,996 394,544 10 Millat Tractors Limited  25,239  35,335

Cables And Electrical Goods
326,128 326,128 10 Pakistan Cables Limited  27,717  27,717
148,131 148,131 10 Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited  116,770  116,770

Industrial Metals and Mining
88,000 88,000 10 Aisha Steel Mills Limited  -    -

Fertilizer
1,936,906 1,936,906 10 Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim  85,611  85,611
6,429,140 3,889,140 10 Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited  614,226  296,385

Pharmaceutical
1,170,996 1,242,596 10 Abbott Laboratories Pakistan Limited  143,131  151,883

985,147 814,172 10 GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited  84,811  84,811

Chemical
- 110,401 10 Clariant Pakistan Limited  -    11,762

968,000 968,000 10 Arif Habib Corporation Limited  98,981  98,981
110,401  -  10 Archroma Pakistan Limited  11,762  -

Food And Personal Care Products
709,868 777,535 10 Murree Brewery Company Limited  30,168  34,565

 - 32,783 10 Nestle Pakistan Limited  -    18,980
66,290 54,870 10 Rafhan Maize Products Limited  90,271  44,644

 - 34,456 50 Unilever Pakistan Limited  -    118,141

Cement
2,707,944 2,707,944 10 D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited  106,049  106,049

 2,954,211  2,840,174

Cost Cost

No. of Shares / Certificates Face
value

Company's name 31 December
2013

31 December
2012

Rupees in thousand
31 December

2013
31 December

2012
Rupees
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12.3.3 Others- Term Finance Certificates

1,995  3,990  5,000 Allied Bank Limited (06/12/2006)  9,976  19,952
 -    6,649  5,000 Bank Alfalah Limited (25/11/2005)  -    33,245
 2,996  2,996  5,000 Bank Alfalah Limited (02/12/2009)  14,976  14,982
 4,995  4,999  5,000 KESC AZM Certificate (12/11/2012)  24,975  24,995
 -    998  5,000 Pakistan Mobile Communication Limited (31/05/2006)  -    4,992
 -    984  5,000 Faysal Bank Limited (10/02/2005)  -    4,922
 -    998  5,000 Soneri Bank Limited (5/05/2005)  -    4,988

 49,927  108,076

12.3.4 Others- Mutual Fund Certificates
Open- Ended- Mutual Funds

1,672,184  1,562,559 10 ABL Income Fund  13,938  13,938
 8,041  7,405 500 Atlas Income Fund  2,725  2,725
 38,310  35,254 100 KASB Cash Fund  3,482  3,482
 312,602  279,805 50 Meezan Islamic Income Fund  10,000  10,000
 1,416,817  1,303,057 10 NIT Government Bond Fund  10,000  10,000

 40,145  40,145

Cost Cost

No. of Shares / Certificates Face
value

Company's name 31 December
2013

31 December
2012

Rupees in thousand
31 December

2013
31 December

2012
Rupees
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31 December
2012

31 December
2013

Note

Rupees in thousand

13. PREMIUMS DUE BUT UNPAID -  Unsecured
Considered good  2,658,071  3,197,422
Considered doubtful  369,231  359,147

 3,027,302  3,556,569
Less: Provision for doubtful balances 13.1  (369,231)  (359,147)

 2,658,071  3,197,422

13.1 Reconciliation of provision for doubtful balances
Opening provision  359,147  309,821
Exchange loss  10,084  8,426
Charge for the year  -    40,900

Closing provision  369,231  359,147

13.2 Premiums due but unpaid include an amount of Rupees 164 million (2012: Rupees 556 million) held with related parties.

14. AMOUNTS DUE FROM OTHER INSURERS / REINSURERS -  Unsecured
Considered good  1,093,985  591,566
Considered doubtful  322,810  326,327

 1,416,795  917,893
Less: Provision for doubtful balances 14.1  (322,810)  (326,327)

 1,093,985  591,566
14.1 Reconciliation of provision for doubtful balances

Opening provision  326,327  276,327
Charge for the year  -    50,000
Written off during the year  (3,517)  -
Closing provision  322,810  326,327

15. ACCRUED INVESTMENT INCOME
Return accrued on Term Finance Certificates 733 1,564
Return accrued on Treasury Bills 2,957 1,187
Return accrued on Pakistan Investment Bonds 4,605 4,991
Dividend income
-  associated undertakings  -    -
-   others 20 6,840

20 6,840
Return on deposit accounts
-  associated undertakings -    -
-   others 7,562 5,747

7,562 5,747
15,877 20,329

16. REINSURANCE RECOVERIES AGAINST OUTSTANDING CLAIMS
These are unsecured and considered to be good.

17. PREPAYMENTS
Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded 1,701,770 1,656,047
Others 64,737 78,102

1,766,507 1,734,149
18. SUNDRY RECEIVABLES

Considered good
Current portion of long-term loans
Executives 11 4,871 5,985
Employees 11 12,645 10,789
Other advances 113,077 131,849
Security deposits 21,410 21,085
Miscellaneous 45,045 36,043

197,048 205,751
19. FIXED ASSETS

Owned assets -  tangible 19.1 1,005,061 928,031
Owned assets -  intangible 19.1 68,674 45,336

1,073,735 973,367
Leased assets 19.1 33,627 52,429
Capital work in progress 19.2  89,310 91,855

1,196,672 1,117,651
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At 01 January 2013
Cost 532,493 144,924 413,925 197,238 172,420 1,461,000 121,593 1,582,593 89,221 89,221 1,671,814
Accumulated depreciation /
amortisation 68,443 44,652 192,515 99,521 127,838 532,969 76,257 609,226 36,792 36,792 646,018
Net book value 464,050 100,272 221,410 97,717 44,582 928,031 45,336 973,367 52,429 52,429 1,025,796

Year ended 31 December 2013
Opening net book value 464,050 100,272 221,410 97,717 44,582 928,031 45,336 973,367 52,429 52,429 1,025,796
Additions 15,722 61,534 79,887 34,672 15,868 207,683 40,793 248,476  -     -     248,476

Disposals
Cost -    101 10,134 2,813 327 13,375 -   13,375 22,121 22,121 35,496
Depreciation / amortisation -   61 4,908 1,414 241  6,624 -   6,624 10,008 10,008 16,632

-    40 5,226 1,399 86 6,751 -    6,751 12,113 12,113 18,864

Depreciation / amortisation charge
for the year 34,565 21,071 33,263 17,562 17,441 123,902 17,455 141,357 6,689 6,689 148,046
Closing net book value 445,207 140,695 262,808 113,428 42,923 1,005,061 68,674 1,073,735 33,627 33,627 1,107,362

At 31 December 2013
Cost 548,215 206,357 483,678 229,097 187,961 1,655,308 162,386 1,817,694 67,100 67,100 1,884,794
Accumulated depreciation /
amortisation 103,008 65,662 220,870 115,669 145,038 650,247 93,712 743,959 33,473 33,473 777,432
Net book value 445,207 140,695 262,808 113,428 42,923 1,005,061 68,674 1,073,735 33,627 33,627 1,107,362

Depreciation rate per annum 10% 15% 15%15%&16.67% 30% 20% 15%

Rupees in thousand

Owned assets Leased assets

Tangible Intangible Tangible

Computers
and related
accessories

Total
fixed

assetsTotal
leased

Motor
vehicles

Total
ownedComputer

software
Total

tangible
assets

Machinery
and

equipment
Motor

vehicles
Furniture

and
fixtures

Land &
Buildings

2011

19.1 The following is a statement of operating fixed assets :

2013

At 01 January 2012
Cost 319,926 103,283 377,848 524,608 162,086 1,487,751 91,566 1,579,317 127,106 127,106 1,706,423
Accumulated depreciation /
amortisation 48,195 43,428 166,675 313,158 111,611 683,067 54,498 737,565 39,366 39,366 776,931
Net book value 271,731 59,855 211,173 211,450 50,475 804,684 37,068 841,752 87,740 87,740 929,492

Year ended 31 December 2012
Opening net book value 271,731 59,855 211,173 211,450 50,475 804,684 37,068 841,752 87,740 87,740 929,492
Additions 217,122 54,375 53,558 24,547 11,959 361,561 30,027 391,588 -    -     391,588

Disposals
Cost 4,555 12,734 17,481 351,917 1,625 388,312 -   388,312 37,885 37,885 426,197
Depreciation / amortisation 2,915 10,160 8,701 287,042 1,260  310,078  -    310,078 13,410 13,410 323,488

 1,640 2,574 8,780 64,875 365 78,234  -     78,234 24,475 24,475 102,709

Depreciation / amortisation charge
for the year 23,163 11,384 34,541 73,405 17,487 159,980 21,759 181,739 10,836  10,836 192,575
Closing net book value 464,050 100,272 221,410 97,717 44,582 928,031 45,336 973,367 52,429 52,429 1,025,796

At 31 December 2012
Cost 532,493 144,924 413,925 197,238 172,420 1,461,000 121,593 1,582,593 89,221 89,221 1,671,814
Accumulated depreciation /
amortisation 68,443 44,652 192,515 99,521 127,838 532,969 76,257 609,226 36,792 36,792 646,018
Net book value 464,050 100,272 221,410 97,717 44,582 928,031 45,336 973,367 52,429 52,429 1,025,796

Depreciation rate per annum 10% 15% 15%15%&16.67% 30% 20% 15%

Rupees in thousand

Owned assets Leased assets

Tangible Intangible Tangible

Computers
and related
accessories

Total
fixed

assetsTotal
leased

Motor
vehicles

Total
ownedComputer

software
Total

tangible
assets

Machinery
and

equipment
Motor

vehicles
Furniture

and
fixtures

Land &
Buildings

20112012
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19.1.1 Detail of tangible assets disposed during the year are as follows:

Furniture & Fixtures
Items Having Book Value
Below Rupees 50,000 101 61 40 39 

101 61 40 39 
Motor Vehicles
Owned
Honda Civic VTi (AJF-028) 1,287 900 387 650 Negotiation Shamsul Haque, Company Employee 
Honda Civic VTi (AUK-397) 1,935 706 1,229 1,245 Negotiation Manzar Mushtaq, Company Employee 
Toyota Corolla GLi (PY-519)  1,384  630  754  730 Negotiation  Musaddar Muhsin Ali, Company Employee
Toyota Corolla GLi (AJZ-837) 901 650 251 258 Negotiation Saeed Muzaffar Zuberi, Company Employee
Honda Citi (ASD-079) 1,485 797 688 1,000 Insurance claim IGI Insurance Co. Ltd. 
Honda Citi (LWH-385) 931 670 261 787 Auction Naseer Ahmad 

Items Having Book Value
Below Rupees 50,000 2,211 555 1,656 982 

10,134 4,908 5,226 5,652

Leased
Suzuki Cultus (ASE-503) 805 348 457 433 Negotiation Hanif Aliani, Company Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASA-639) 534 242 292 266 Negotiation M.Abdul Rehman Khan, Company Employee
Honda Civic VTi PT SR (ASS-096) 1,882 783 1,099 1,051 Negotiation Rehan Ahmed Khan, Company Employee
Suzuki Mehran (ASA-371) 534 242 292 266 Negotiation Nazish Shafiq, Company Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASC-681) 537  232  305  280 Negotiation Aaliya Zia, Company Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASC-697) 534 230 304 278 Negotiation Muhammad Tariq, Company Employee 
Toyota Corolla GLi (ASN-129) 1,390 689 701 636 Negotiation Amir Nayab Ahmed, Company Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASC-695) 534 230 304 269 Negotiation Israr Ahmed, Company Employee 
Suzuki Cultus (ASB-853) 805 348 457 418 Negotiation M. Raheel Khan, Company Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASA-357) 534 242  292  249 Negotiation Farrukh Adnan, Company Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASC-532) 529 228 301 255 Negotiation Zahid Ahmed, Company Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (LEB-09-8976) 541 245 296 256 Negotiation Tanveer Ahmed, Company Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASD-452) 534 230 304 261 Negotiation Hassan Mahmood, Company Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASD-451) 534 230 304 261 Negotiation Aqeel Quadari, Company Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASC-148) 534 230 304 261 Negotiation Asif Ehtisham, Company Employee 
Suzuki Cultus (ASA-142) 844 364 480 518 Insurance claim IGI Insurance Co. Ltd. 
Suzuki Mehran (ASA-618) 534 269  265  252 Negotiation Shakeel Anwer, Company Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASC-476) 534 238  296  243 Negotiation Naima Shabab, Company Employee 
Honda Civic VTi PT SR (AST-325) 1,882 825 1,057 908 Negotiation Absar Burney, Company Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (LEB-09-8963) 541 257 284 247 Negotiation Arif Malik, Company Employee 
Honda Civic VTi PT SR (AST-324) 1,882  825  1,057  1,056 Negotiation Manzar Mushtaq, Company Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASC-682) 534  246  288  226 Negotiation Anis Ahmed Ashrafi, Company Employee
Suzuki Mehran (ASE-315) 534  250  284  217 Negotiation Raheel Rasheed, Company Employee 
Toyota Corolla Altis (ASM-607) 1,881  924  957  1,220 Insurance claim IGI Insurance Company Limited 
Suzuki Cultus (ASE-508) 805  407  398  323 Negotiation Muhammad Rafiq, Company Employee 
Toyota Corolla GLi (ASM-629) 1,389  654  735  573 Negotiation Syed Muhammad Iqbal, Company Employee

22,121 10,008 12,113 11,223

Machinery & Equipment
Items Having Book Value
Below Rupees 50,000 2,813 1,414 1,399 1,679

2,813 1,414 1,399 1,679
Computer
Items Having Book Value
Below Rupees 50,000 327 241 86 57 
 Grand Total 35,496 16,632 18,864 18,650

19.2 Capital Work In Progress represents capital expenditure in respect of IT infrastructure.

Rupees in thousand

Description Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Book
value

Sale
proceeds

Mode of
disposal Particulars of purchaser
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20. EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 22.1 810,085 707,163
Rent, rates and taxes 54,328 66,746
Utilities 30,286 32,716
Communication 21,941 28,516
Printing and stationery 34,789 41,320
Traveling and entertainment 60,192 58,849
Repairs and maintenance 143,636 169,508
Advertisement and sales promotion 28,387 33,332
Depreciation 19.1 110,533 154,571
Tracking and monitoring charges 93,886 127,437
Legal and professional expenses 24,905 18,050
Others 122,501 144,708

1,535,469 1,582,916

21. OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Return on bank deposits 98,516 111,590
Interest on loans to employees 358 373
Income from non financial assets
(Loss) / gain on sale of fixed assets (214) 18,973
Miscellaneous 49,454 33,550

148,114 164,486

22. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Salaries and wages - restated 22.1 97,319 51,840
Rent, rates and taxes 14,204 3,138
Depreciation 19.1 20,058 16,245
Communication 11,758 361
Utilities 3,960 1,216
Repairs and maintenance 40,500 6,487
Advertisement and sales promotion 16,448 4,056
Traveling and entertainment 20,028 25,837
Directors' fee 440 310
Legal and professional expenses 98,184 83,430
Auditors' remuneration 22.2 5,683 5,403
Donations 22.3 6,481 294
Provision for doubtful balances - 90,900
Amortization of intangible asset 19.1 17,455 21,759
Provision for impairment on trackers - 64,152
Provision for worker's welfare fund 45,110 12,695
Others 47,726 23,219

445,354 411,342

22.1 Management expenses and General and Administration expenses include Rupees 45.851 million (2012: Rupees 54.893 million) in respect of staff
retirement benefits.
22.2 Auditors' remuneration

Inside Pakistan:
Audit fee 2,380 2,197
Half yearly review 450 424
Other certifications 370 330
Out of pocket expenses 520 436

3,720 3,387
Outside Pakistan:
Audit fee 1,728 1,717
Out of pocket expenses 235 299

1,963 2,016
5,683 5,403

22.3 None of the directors or their spouses had any interest in the donee.

31 December
2012

31 December
2013

Note

Rupees in thousand

Restated
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Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

23. PROVISION FOR TAXATION
Current 23.1 108,466 88,468
Deferred 23.2  135,770 (46,103)

244,236 42,365
23.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

The relationship between tax expense and accounting profit cannot be given because the provision represents the fixed tax on dividend
income and capital gain.

23.2 Deferred tax effect due to temporary differences of:
Tax depreciation allowance (68,501) (69,046)
Provision for gratuity 13,307 10,865
Assets subject to finance lease (9,161) (9,644)
Carried forward tax losses 169,756 308,996

105,401 241,171
Less: Opening balance of deferred tax asset 241,171 195,068

(135,770) 46,103

24. EARNINGS PER SHARE -  BASIC AND DILUTED
There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share which is based on:
Net profit after tax for the year -  restated 1,966,159 628,055

Weighted average number of shares - restated 350,000,000 350,000,000

Basic earnings per share - restated 5.62 1.79

25. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Rupees in thousand

TotalExecutivesDirectors
Chief

Executive
Officer

TotalExecutivesDirectors
Chief

Executive
Officer

2013 2012

Note

Rupees

 (Number of shares)

(Restated)

Fee  - 440  - 440  -  310  - 310
Managerial remuneration 5,608  - 123,788 129,396 5,400 - 124,872 130,272
Allowances and perquisites 5,959  - 154,571 160,530 4,420  - 112,800 117,220

11,567 440 278,359 290,366 9,820 310 237,672 247,802
Number 1 10 128 139 1 10 132 143

25.1 In addition, the Chief Executive Officer and certain executives are also provided with free use of the Company's cars, certain household
items, furniture and fixtures and equipment in accordance with the policy of the Company.

25.2 No remuneration was paid to non-executive directors of the Company except for meeting fees.
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Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

26. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company has related party relationships with its associated companies, subsidiary company, employee benefit
plans, key management personnel and other parties. Transactions entered into with such related parties include the
issuance of policies to and disbursements of claims incurred by them and payments of rentals for the use of premises
rented from them, etc.

There are no transactions with key management personnel other than as per their terms of employment. These
transactions are disclosed in notes 11, 18 and 25 to these unconsolidated financial statements. Particulars of transactions
with the Company's staff retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in note 6, 7.1 and 7.2. Investments in and balances
outstanding with related parties have been disclosed in the relevant notes to the unconsolidated balance sheet. Other
transactions with related parties not else where disclosed are summarized as follows:

Premium underwritten 1,040,926 1,359,920
Premium received 1,156,900 1,413,559
Claims paid 440,135 373,870
Rent paid 3,815 11,603
Rent received 4,947  -
Dividends received 573,805 503,166
Dividend paid 138,727 72,217
Income on deposit accounts 18,241 29,711
Sale of fixed assets -  900

Bonus shares received 5,666,611 2,603,771
Bonus shares issued 66,540,545  -

Number of shares
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28. FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including
interest / mark-up rate risk, price risk and currency risk). The Company's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance.
Overall risks arising from the Company's financial assets and liabilities are limited. The Company consistently manages
its exposure to financial risk without any material change from previous period in the manner described in notes below.
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company's risk management
framework. The Board is also responsible for developing the Company's risk management policies.

The individual risk wise analysis is given below:

28.1 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk by monitoring
credit exposures by undertaking transactions with a large number of counterparties in various sectors and by continually
assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business activities. As a
result any change in economic, political or other conditions would affect their ability to meet contractual obligations
in similar manner. The Company's credit risk exposure is not significantly different from that reflected in these
unconsolidated financial statements. The management monitors and limits the Company's exposure and makes
conservative estimates of  provisions  for doubtful assets, if any. The management is of the view that it is not exposed
to significant concentration of credit risk as its financial assets are adequately diversified in entities of sound financial
standing, covering various industrial sectors.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, as specified below:

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

Bank deposits 2,541,865 2,506,312
Investments 11,359,717 9,948,294
Premiums due but unpaid 2,658,071 3,197,422
Amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers 1,093,985 591,566
Salvage recoveries accrued 179,703 169,671
Loans 33,667 29,565
Accrued investment income 15,877 20,329
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 5,574,428 4,330,229
Sundry receivables 179,532 188,977

23,636,845 20,982,365

Provision for impairment is made for doubtful receivables according to the Company's policy. The impairment provision
is written off when the Company expects that it cannot recover the balance due. During the year, receivables of Rupees
Nil (2012: Rupees 109.326 million) were further impaired and provided for. The movement in the provision for doubtful
debt account is shown in note 13.1 and 14.1.

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

The age analysis of receivables from other than related parties is as follows:

Upto 1 year 2,048,532 2,087,445
1-2 year & prior years 814,293 913,114

2,862,825 3,000,559

The age analysis of receivables from related parties is as follows:

Upto 1 year 146,389 536,399
1-2 year & prior years 18,088 19,611

164,477 556,010
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Allied Bank Limited A-1+ AA+ PACRA 9 9

Askari Bank Limited A-1+ AA PACRA 46 46

Bank Alfalah Limited A-1+ AA PACRA 550 182,825

Bank Al Habib Limited A-1+ AA+ PACRA 23,125 22,740

Barclays Bank PLC, Pakistan P-1 A2 Moody's - 100

Citibank N.A. P-2 A3 Moody's 9,595 14,360

Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AA+ JCR-VIS 142,305 301,263

Industrial Development Bank of Pakistan   -   -        - 831 766

FINCA Micro Finance Bank Limited A-3 BBB+ JCR-VIS 953 907

MCB Bank Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA 876,596 771,655

National Bank of Pakistan A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS 4,163 10,524

Oman International Bank S.A.O.G. A-2 BBB JCR-VIS 2,537 2,353

The Punjab Provincial Cooperative Bank Limited   -    -        - 66,672 -

Rozgar Micro Finance Bank Limited A-3 BB+ JCR-VIS 1,000 1,000

The Bank of Punjab A-1+ AA- PACRA  -    64,469

Soneri Bank Limited A-1+ AA- PACRA 1 2

Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA 5,644 5,644

Tameer Micro Finance Bank Limited A-1 A JCR-VIS 1,000 1,000

United Bank Limited A-1+ AA+ JCR-VIS 1,057,384 931,638

Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited B B+ JCR-VIS 349,454 195,011

2,541,865 2,506,312

The credit quality of amount due from other insurers (gross of provisions) can be assessed with reference to external credit rating
as follows:

Rating Rating 2013 2012
Short term Long term Agency Rupees in thousand

A or above (including PRCL) 1,261,619 5,123,904 6,385,523 5,246,341
BBB 24,331 98,817 123,148 112,780
Others 130,845 531,410 662,255 58,672
Total 1,416,795 5,754,131 7,170,926 5,417,793

Amount due from
other insurers /

reinsurers

Reinsurance and
other recoveries

against
outstanding claims

2013 2012

Rupees in thousand

The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:

28.2 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Prudent liquidity
risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of adequate funds through
committed credit facilities. The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and working capital with a view
to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. The management follows an effective
cash management program to mitigate the liquidity risk.



Financial liabilities
Provision for outstanding claims 7,322,673 7,322,673 7,322,673 -
Amount due to insurers / reinsurers 641,197 641,197 641,197 -
Accrued expenses 112,572 112,572 112,572 -
Unclaimed dividend 37,675 37,675 37,675 -
Other creditors and accruals 1,266,067 1,266,067 1,266,067 -
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 6,683 6,951 6,951 -

9,386,867 9,387,135 9,387,135 -
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Carrying amount Contractual
cash flow

Rupees in thousand

2013

Upto one year
More than
one year

Financial liabilities
Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) 6,361,653 6,361,653 6,361,653 -
Amount due to insurers / reinsurers 496,887 496,887 496,887 -
Accrued expenses 117,593 117,593 117,593 -
Unclaimed dividend 35,558 35,558 35,558 -
Other creditors and accruals 1,411,250 1,411,250 1,411,250 -
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 24,987 27,294 17,831 9,463

8,447,928 8,450,235 8,440,772 9,463

Carrying amount Contractual
cash flow

Rupees in thousand

2012

Upto one year
More than
one year

28.3 Market risk
Market risk means that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. The objective is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.
The market risks associated with the Company's business activities are interest / mark-up rate risk, price risk and currency risk.

a) Interest / mark- up rate risk
Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that value of a financial instrument or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in the market interest / mark-up rates. Sensitivity to interest / mark-up rate risk arises from
mismatching of financial assets and liabilities that mature or repaid in a given period. The Company manages this mismatchment
through risk management strategies where significant changes in gap position can be adjusted.  At the reporting date the

 interest / mark-up rate profile of the Company's significant interest / mark-up bearing financial instruments was as follows:

Rupees in thousand

2013 2012 2013 2012

Carrying amountsEffective interest rate (%)
Fixed rate financial instruments

Financial assets

Investments-PIBs and Treasury Bills 8.98% - 11.50% 10.20% - 12.10% 364,004 135,101

Loans 5% 5% 33,667 29,565

Floating rate financial instruments

Financial assets

Bank deposits 5% - 10.25% 5%-11.25% 2,033,177 2,293,847

Investments -TFCs 10.95%-14.75% 10.95%-14.85% 49,927 107,778

Financial liabilities

Liabilities against assets

subject to finance lease 3 month KIBOR plus 2% - 2.5 % 6,683 24,987

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments on an undiscounted
cash flow basis:
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Sensitivity analysis
The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore,
a  change in interest rate will not affect fair value of any financial instrument. For cash flow sensitivity analysis of variable rate
instruments a hypothetical change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased / (increased)
profit for the year by the amounts shown below.  It is assumed that the changes occur immediately and uniformly to each
category of instrument containing interest rate risk. Variations in market interest rates could produce significant changes at
the time of early repayments. For these reasons, actual results might differ from those reflected in the details specified below.
The analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

As at 31 December 2013 -  Fluctuation of 100 bps
Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial liabilities (67) 67
Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial assets 20,831 (20,831)
As at 31 December 2012 -  Fluctuation of 100 bps
Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial liabilities (250) 250
Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial assets 24,016 (24,016)

Rupees in thousand

Increase Decrease
Profit and loss

b) Price risk
Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market prices
(other than those arising from interest / mark-up rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factor
specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar financial instrument traded in the
market. The Company is exposed to equity price risk that arises as a result of changes in the levels of KSE-Index and the value
of individual shares. The equity price risk exposure arises from the Company's investments in equity securities for which prices
in the future are uncertain. The Company policy is to manage price risk through selection of blue chip securities.

The Company's strategy is to hold its strategic equity investments on long term basis. Thus, Company is not affected
significantly by short term fluctuation in its strategic investments provided that the underlying business, economic and
management characteristics of the investees remain favorable. The Company strives to maintain above average levels of
shareholders' capital to provide a margin of safety against short term equity price volatility. The Company manages price risk
by  monitoring exposure in quoted equity securities and implementing the strict discipline in internal risk management and
investment policies.

The Company has investments in quoted equity securities amounting to Rupees 8,244.362 million (2012: Rupees 7,929.450
million) at the reporting date. The carrying value of investments subject to equity price risk are, in almost all instances, based
on quoted market prices as of the reporting date . Market prices are subject to fluctuation which may result from perceived
changes in the underlying economic characteristics of the investee, the relative price of alternative investments and general
market conditions.

Sensitivity analysis

As the entire investment portfolio has been classified in the available-for-sale category, a 10% increase / decrease in redemption
value and share prices at year end would have increased / decreased impairment loss of investment recognized in profit and
loss account as follows:

Rupees in thousand

Impact on profit
before tax Impact on equity

2013
Effect of increase in share price 49,405 44,465
Effect of decrease in share price (80,939) (72,845)
2012
Effect of increase in share price 50,508 45,457
Effect of decrease in share price (135,747) (122,172)

c) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Company’s principal transactions are carried out in Pak Rupees and its exposure to foreign
exchange risk arises primarily with respect to AED and  US dollar in respect of foreign branches. Financial assets and liabilities
exposed to foreign exchange risk amounted to Rupees 4,966.398 million (2012: Rupees 4,319.023 million) and Rupees 3,934.246
million (2012: Rupees 3,201.833 million), respectively, at the end of the year.
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Rupees per US Dollar
Average rate 101.55 93.40
Reporting date rate 105.00 96.90
Rupees per AED
Average rate 27.65 25.43
Reporting date rate 28.59 26.38

2013 2012

28.4 Insurance risk

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or the timing
thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and
subsequent development of long-term claims. Therefore, the objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves
are available to cover these liabilities. The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance
contracts and geographical areas. The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting
strategy guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements. Further, strict claim review policies to assess all new
and ongoing claims, regular detailed review of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent
claims and similar procedures are put in place to reduce the risk exposure of the Company. The Company further enforces a
policy of actively managing and prompt pursuing of claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments
that can negatively impact the Company. 

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in
accordance with the reinsurance contracts.

Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its policyholders and thus
a credit exposure exists with respect to ceded insurance, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations
assumed under such reinsurance agreements. The Company’ s placement of reinsurance is diversified such that it is neither
dependent on a single reinsurer nor are the operations of the Company substantially dependent upon any single reinsurance
contract. Reinsurance policies are written with approved reinsurers on either a proportionate basis or non-proportionate basis.
The reinsurers are carefully selected and approved and are dispersed over several geographical regions.

Experience shows that larger the portfolio is in similar insurance contracts, smaller will be the relative variability about the
expected outcome. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by a change in any
subset of the portfolio. The Company has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks
accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability of the
expected outcome.

The Company principally issues the general insurance contracts e.g. marine and aviation, property, motor and general accidents.
Risks under non-life insurance policies usually cover twelve month or lesser duration. For general insurance contracts the
most significant risks arise from accidental fire, atmospheric disaster and terrorist activities. Insurance contracts at times also
cover risk for single incidents that expose the Company to multiple insurance risks. 

a)  Geographical concentration of insurance risk

To optimize benefits from the principle of average and law of large numbers, geographical spread of risk is of extreme
importance. There are a number of parameters which are significant in assessing the accumulation of risks with reference to
the geographical location, the most important of which is risk survey.

Risk surveys are carried out on a regular basis for the evaluation of physical hazards associated primarily with the commercial
/ industrial occupation of the insured. Details regarding the fire separation / segregation with respect to the manufacturing
processes, storage, utilities, etc. are extracted from the layout plan of the insured facility. Such details are formed part of the
reports which are made available to the underwriters / reinsurers  for their evaluation. Reference is made to the standard
construction specifications laid down by Insurance Association of Pakistan (IAP). For fire and property risk a particular building
and and neighboring buildings, which could be affected by a single claim incident, are considered as a single location. For
earthquake risk, a complete city is classified as a single location. Similarly, for marine risk, multiple risks covered in a single
vessel voyage are considered as a single risk while assessing concentration of risk. The Company evaluates the concentration
of exposures to individual and cumulative insurance risks and establishes its reinsurance policy to reduce such exposures to
levels acceptable to the Company.

A risk management solution is implemented to help assess and plan for risk in catastrophic scenarios. It provides a way to
better visualize the risk exposure of the Company and to determines the appropriate amount of Reinsurance coverage to protect
the business portfolio.

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:
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b) Reinsurance arrangements 

Keeping in view the maximum exposure in respect of key zone aggregates, a number of proportional and non-proportional
reinsurance arrangements are in place to protect the net account in case of a major catastrophe. Apart from the adequate
event limit which is a multiple of the treaty capacity or the primary recovery from the proportional treaty, any loss over and
above the said limit would be recovered from the non-proportional treaty which is very much in line with the risk management
philosophy of the Company. 

In compliance with regulatory requirements, the reinsurance agreements are duly submitted to the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan on an annual basis. 

The concentration of risk by type of contracts is summarized below by reference to liabilities:

Gross sum insured

Rupees in thousand

Reinsurance Net
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Fire 3,103,185,747 2,709,048,038 2,547,961,089 2,164,465,797 555,224,658 544,582,241

Marine 1,543,234,345 3,018,667,882 316,216,719 676,525,320 1,227,017,626 2,342,142,562

Motor 47,200,586 40,498,649 877,325 855,654 46,323,261 39,642,995

Miscellaneous 185,264,693 169,242,965 73,917,352 72,673,026 111,347,341 96,569,939

4,878,885,371 5,937,457,534 2,938,972,485 2,914,519,797 1,939,912,886 3,022,937,737

c) Sources of uncertainty in estimation of future claim payments 

The key source of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date relates to valuation of outstanding claims, whether reported
or not, and includes expected claims settlement costs. Considerable judgment by management is required in the estimation
of amounts due to policyholders arising from claims made under insurance contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based
on assumptions about several factors involving varying and possibly significant degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual
results may differ from management's estimates resulting in future changes in estimated liabilities. Qualitative judgments are
used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in the future, for example one-off occurrence, changes in market
factors such as public attitude to claiming and economic conditions. Judgment is further used to assess the extent to which
external factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation affect the estimates.

In particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the balance sheet date and
for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) at the balance sheet date. 

d) Neutral assumptions for claim estimation

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in neutral
estimates of the most likely or expected outcome. The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict with certainty
the likely outcome of any particular claim and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on separate,
case to case basis with due regard to claim circumstances, information available from surveyors and historical evidence of
the size of similar claims. Case estimates are reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information is available.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of setting claims
already notified to the Company, in which case information about the claim event is available. IBNR provisions are initially
estimated at a gross level and a separate calculation is carried out to estimate the size of the reinsurance recoveries.

The estimation process takes into account the past claims reporting pattern and details of reinsurance programs. The premium
liabilities have been determined such that the total premium liability provisions (unearned premium reserve and premium
deficiency reserve) would be sufficient to service the future expected claims and expenses likely to occur on the unexpired
policies as of reporting date. The expected future liability is determined using estimates and assumptions based on the experience
during the expired period of the contracts and expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable.

e) Sensitivity analysis

The risks associated with the insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables which complicate quantitative
sensitivity analysis. The Company makes various assumptions and techniques based on past claims development experience.
This includes indications such as average claims cost, ultimate claims numbers and expected loss ratios. The Company considers
that the liability for insurance claims recognized in the balance sheet is adequate. However, actual experience may differ from
the expected outcome.

As the Company enters into short term insurance contracts, it does not assume any significant impact of changes in market
conditions on unexpired risks. However, some results of sensitivity testing are set out below, showing the impact on loss before
tax net of reinsurance.
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10% increase in loss
Net:
Fire (53,062) (84,037) (34,490) (54,624)
Marine (22,151) (28,420) (14,398) (18,473)
Motor (191,630) (182,166) (124,560) (118,408)
Miscellaneous (81,843) (119,644) (53,198) (77,769)

(348,686) (414,267) (226,646) (269,274)
10% decrease in loss
Net:
Fire 53,062 84,037 34,490 54,624 
Marine 22,151 28,420 14,398 18,473 
Motor 191,630 182,166 124,560 118,408 
Miscellaneous 81,843 119,644 53,198 77,769 

348,686 414,267 226,646 269,274 

2013 2012 2013 2012

Rupees in thousand

Pre tax profit / (loss) Shareholders' equity

f) Claims development table

The following table shows the development of claims over a period of time. The disclosure goes back to the period when the
earliest material claim arose for which there is still uncertainty about the amount and timing of the claims payments.

Estimate of ultimate claims cost:
At end of accident year 6,593,318 6,702,042 7,689,784 20,985,144
One year later 2,784,589 4,083,676 -   6,868,265
Two years later 925,903 -    -    925,903
Estimate of cumulative claims 925,903  4,083,676 7,689,784 12,699,363
Less: Cumulative payments to date 375,475 2,976,813 3,099,219 6,451,507
Liability recognized 550,428 1,106,863 4,590,565 6,247,856

2011 2012 2013 Total

Rupees in thousand

Accident year

29. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these unconsolidated financial statements approximate
to their fair values except for available-for-sale investments which are stated at lower of cost and market value in accordance
with the requirements of the SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002. The carrying and fair value of these investments have been disclosed
in note 12 to the financial statements. Since the financial assets are not stated at exact fair values, therefore, analysis under
following groups from level 1 to level 3 based on the degree to which fair value is observable is not produced:

Level 1: Quoted Market prices 

Level 2: Valuation techniques (market observable)

Level 3: Valuation techniques (non market observable)
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORIES 

As at 31 December 2013

Financial assets

Cash and other equivalents 4,411 -  4,411

Current and other accounts 1,385,675 -  1,385,675

Deposits maturing within 12 months 1,156,190 -  1,156,190

Loans to employees 33,667 -  33,667

Investments -  11,359,717 11,359,717

Premiums due but unpaid 2,658,071 -  2,658,071

Amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers 1,093,985 -  1,093,985

Salvage recoveries accrued 179,703 -  179,703

Accrued investment income 15,877 -  15,877

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 5,574,428 -  5,574,428

Sundry receivables 179,532 -  179,532

 12,281,539 11,359,717  23,641,256

Loans and
receivables Available-for-sale Total

Rupees in thousand

As at 31 December 2013

Financial liabilities

Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) 7,322,673
Amount due to other insurers / reinsurers 641,197
Accrued expenses 112,572
Other creditors and accruals 1,266,067
Unclaimed dividends 37,675
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 6,683

9,386,867

Rupees in thousand

Financial liabilities
at amortized cost
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As at 31 December 2012

Financial assets

Cash and other equivalents 1,099 -  1,099

Current and other accounts 1,479,939 -  1,479,939

Deposits maturing within 12 months 1,026,373 -  1,026,373

Loans to employees 29,565 -  29,565

Investments -  9,948,294 9,948,294

Premiums due but unpaid 3,197,422 -  3,197,422

Amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers 591,566 -  591,566

Salvage recoveries accrued 169,671 -  169,671

Accrued investment income 20,329 -  20,329

Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 4,330,229 -  4,330,229

Sundry receivables 188,977 -  188,977

 11,035,170 9,948,294  20,983,464

Loans and
receivables Available-for-sale Total

Rupees in thousand

As at 31 December 2012

Financial liabilities

Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) - restated 6,361,653
Amount due to other insurers / reinsurers 496,887
Accrued expenses 117,593
Other creditors and accruals 1,411,250
Unclaimed dividends 35,558
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 24,987

8,447,928

Rupees in thousand

Financial liabilities
at amortized cost

31. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company's goals and objectives when managing capital are:

- to be an appropriately capitalised institution in compliance with the paid-up capital requirement set by the SECP. Minimum
paid-up capital requirement for non-life insurers is Rupees 300 million. The Company's current paid-up capital is well in
excess of the limit prescribed by the SECP;

- to safeguard the Company's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for the other stakeholders;

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the level of risk;

- to maintain strong ratings and to protect the Company against unexpected events / losses; and

- to ensure a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development
of the business.
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32. NON- ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on March 20, 2014 proposed a final cash dividend for the year

ended 31 December 2013 @ 10% i.e. Rupee 1/- share (2012 : @ 10% i.e. Rupee 1/- share). This is in addition to the interim cash

dividend @ 25% i.e. Rupees 2.5/- share (2012: @ 15% i.e. Rupees1.5/- share) resulting in a total cash dividend for the year ended

31 December 2013 of Rupees 3.5/-  share (2012: Rupees 2.5/-  share) and interim bonus shares issued @ 182.932212%. The

approval of the members for  the final dividend will be obtained at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The financial

statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 do not include the effect of final dividend which will be accounted for in the

financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2014.

33. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DICLOSURE

The following information is based on un-audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 and audited

financial statements for the year ended 31 December  2012:

Size of the fund - Total assets 849,653 736,558
Cost of investments 685,560 619,400
Percentage of investments made 97% 94%
Fair value of investments 824,131 691,449

33.1 The break- up of fair value of investments is as follows:

2013 2012

Rupees in thousand

Deposits and bank balances 20.6% 34.6% 169,694 239,266

Term finance certificates 5.6% 9.9% 46,346 68,595

Treasury bills 43.0% 17.8% 354,390 122,822

Mutual funds 18.4% 26.3% 151,556 181,664

Listed securities 12.4% 11.4% 102,145 79,102

100% 100% 824,131 691,449

2013 2012 2013 2012

Rupees in thousandPercentage



ANNUAL REPORT 2013106

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

33.2 The above investment / placement of funds in special bank account has been made in accordance with the provisions of section

227 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

34. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The number of employees as at / average during the year are as follws:

2013 2012

Rupees in thousand

At year end 782  748

Average during the year 765 7 88

35. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for issue on March 20, 2014 by the Board of 
Directors of the Company.

36. GENERAL

- Figures in these unconsolidated financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees unless
otherwise stated.

- No significant reclassification / rearrangement of the corresponding figures have been made except as disclosed in note
2.3.2 and 7.1 to these financial statements.

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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Directors' Report to the Members 
On Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

On behalf of the Board, I am pleased to present the fourth report on consolidated financial statements of Adamjee Insurance
Company Limited for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The following appropriation of profit has been recommended by the Board of Directors:

Rupees in thousand

Rupees                    Rupees

Profit before tax -  restated 2,226,946  488,493
Taxation  (248,705)  (43,083)
Profit after tax  1,978,241  445,410

Profit attributable to non-controlling interest  (3,421)  (3,056)
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders  1,974,820  442,354
Unappropriated profit brought forward  8,831,228  8,566,680
Profit available for appropriation  10,806,048  9,009,034

Appropriation

Final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2012 @ 10% (Rupee 1/- per share) [2011: Nil]  (123,705)  -

Interim dividend @ 25% (Rupees 2.5/- per share)
[2012: @ 15% (Rupees 1.5/- per share)]  (309,262)  (185,557)

Issue of bonus shares @ 182.93% (2012: Nil)  (2,262,955)  -

Other comprehensive income: Re-measurement of defined
benefit obligation - restated  29,078  7,751

Total appropriation  (2,666,844)  (177,806)

Profit after appropriation  8,139,204  8,831,228

Restated

Earnings per share 5.64 1.26

Date: 20 March 2014
Lahore

On Behalf of Board of Directors

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements comprising consolidated Balance Sheet of ADAMJEE
INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary company (together referred to as “Group”)
as at 31 December 2013 and the related consolidated Profit and Loss Account, consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, consolidated Cash Flow Statement, consolidated Statement of
Premiums, consolidated Statement of Claims, consolidated Statement of Expenses and consolidated Statement of
Investment Income together with the notes forming part thereof, for the year then ended. We have also expressed
separate opinion on the financial statements of Adamjee Insurance Company Limited. The financial statements of
subsidiary company Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited were audited by another firm of auditors whose report
has been furnished to us and our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts included for such company, is based
solely on the report of such other auditors. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Holding
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

Our audit was conducted in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing and accordingly included such
tests of accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly the financial position of ADAMJEE INSURANCE
COMPANY LIMITED and its subsidiary company as at 31 December 2013 and the results of their operations for the year
then ended.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Name of engagement partner:
Muhammad Kamran Nasir

Date: 20 March 2014
KARACHI
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Share capital and reserves
Authorised share capital 3.1  3,750,000  1,500,000  1,500,000

Paid-up share capital 3.2  3,500,000  1,237,045  1,237,045
Retained earnings - restated  8,139,204  8,831,228  8,566,680
Reserves 4  1,108,772  1,134,570  1,023,432

9,247,976  9,965,798  9,590,112
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent  12,747,976  11,202,843  10,827,157
Non- controlling interest 5  22,701  28,889  77,748
Total equity  12,770,677  11,231,732  10,904,905

Balance of statutory funds (including policy holders' liabilities
of Rupees 4,824.672 million (2012: Rupees 1,954.675 million) 6  4,860,342  2,017,689  509,586

Underwriting provisions
Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR) 7  7,406,692  6,412,501  5,576,211
Provision for unearned premium  4,044,831  3,961,293  4,328,346
Commission income unearned  182,184  313,279  371,687

 11,633,707  10,687,073  10,276,244
Deferred liabilities

Staff retirement benefits 8  56,152  37,687  26,458

Creditors and accruals
Premiums received in advance  228,934  128,142  88,159
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers  662,515  504,732  1,203,579
Accrued expenses  114,855  119,831  161,009
Other creditors and accruals -  restated 9  1,728,975  1,790,324  1,567,364

 2,735,279  2,543,029  3,020,111
Borrowings

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 10  6,683  24,987  58,567

Other liabilities
Unclaimed dividends  37,675  35,558  33,495

TOTAL LIABILITIES  14,469,496  13,328,334  13,414,875

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 11

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  32,100,515  26,577,755  24,829,366

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Rupees in thousand

Note

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

31 December 201131 December 201231 December 2013

(Restated)(Restated)
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Cash and bank deposits 12
Cash and other equivalents  4,531  1,200  21,597
Current and other accounts  1,698,980  1,705,386  1,527,090
Deposits maturing within 12 months  1,156,190  1,026,373  957,694

 2,859,701  2,732,959  2,506,381
Loans
To employees 13  16,151  12,791  17,175
Investments 14  15,822,211  11,583,212  9,958,281

Deferred taxation  107,346  247,065  201,604
Current assets -  others
Premiums due but unpaid 15  2,673,944  3,217,207  3,598,905
Amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers 16  1,094,914  606,559  679,631
Salvage recoveries accrued  179,703  169,671  165,718
Premium and claim reserves retained by cedants  23,252  23,252  23,252
Accrued investment income 17  30,121  26,616  40,533
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 18  5,574,428  4,330,229  3,799,366
Taxation - payments less provision  87,428  93,130  13,024
Deferred commission expense  390,649  422,203  472,399
Prepayments 19  1,784,281  1,746,313  2,042,849
Sundry receivables (2011: restated) 20  205,305  208,776  192,666

 12,044,025  10,843,956  11,028,343
Fixed Assets -  Tangible & Intangible 21
Owned
Land and buildings  445,207  464,050  271,731
Furniture and fixtures  156,160  114,336  76,664
Motor vehicles  272,065  224,004  217,901
Machinery and equipment  116,425  99,559  213,916
Computers and related accessories  54,507  50,348  57,351
Intangible asset -  computer software  83,780  61,191  58,901
Capital work-in-progress-tangible  89,310  91,855  133,378

 1,217,454  1,105,343  1,029,842
Leased

Motor vehicles  33,627  52,429  87,740

TOTAL ASSETS  32,100,515  26,577,755  24,829,366

(Restated)

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

Rupees in thousand

Note 31 December 201131 December 201231 December 2013
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Net premium revenue  801,219  598,026  2,964,939  1,142,372  -     95,457  2  547,227  3,670,002  9,819,244  7,862,418
Net claims  (530,623)  (221,507)  (1,916,298)  (818,433)  -     (44,600)  -     (8,698)  (554,822)  (4,094,981)  (4,297,657)
Expenses 22  (322,909)  (201,164)  (693,660)  (317,736)  -     (32,460)  -     (113,755)  (130,954)  (1,812,638)  (1,789,271)
Net commission  (3,430)  (81,433)  (263,000)  197  -     (16,907)  -     (88,023)  (830,615)  (1,283,211)  (975,193)
Net Investment income -
statutory funds  -    -     -     -     -     10,292  13  78,318  228,239  316,862  154,505
Add: Policyholders' liabilities at
beginning of the year  -     -     -     -     -     74,352  5  628,849  1,251,469  1,954,675  479,562
Less: Policyholders' liabilities at
end of the year  -     -     -     -     -     (96,910)  (11)  (1,076,689)  (3,651,062)  (4,824,672)  (1,954,676)
Capital contribution from
shareholders' fund  -    -     -     -     -     -     -     -     33,937  33,937  141,031
Surplus of Policyholders'
funds - net  -     -     -     -     -     10,776  (9)  32,771  (16,194)  27,344  (32,990)
Underwriting result  (55,743)  93,922  91,981  6,400  -     -     -     -     -    136,560  (412,271)

Investment income - other  2,385,183  1,116,152
Rental income  4,947  545
Other income 23  149,759  165,406

 2,676,449  869,832
General and administration
expenses-restated 24  (458,371)  (426,177)
Exchange gain  10,649  2,792
Finance charge on lease liabilities  (1,781)  (5,581)
Share of profit from associated companies-net  -    47,627

Profit before tax  2,226,946  488,493

Provision for taxation 25  (248,705)  (43,083)

Profit after tax  1,978,241  445,410

Profit attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent -  restated  1,974,820  442,354
Non-controlling interest  3,421  3,056

1,978,241  445,410
Profit and loss appropriation account -  Parent Company

Balance at the commencement of the year -  restated  8,831,228  8,566,680
Profit after tax for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent -  restated  1,974,820  442,354
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012:
@ 10% (Rupee 1/- per share) [2011: Nil]  (123,705)  -

Interim dividend for the period ended 30 June 2013
@ 25% (Rupees 2.5/- per share) [2012: @15% (Rupees 1.5/- per share)]  (309,262)  (185,557)

Issue of bonus shares  @182.93% (2012: Nil)  (2,262,955) -   
Other comprehensive income: Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation - restated  29,078  7,751
Balance unappropriated profit at the end of the year -  restated  8,139,204  8,831,228

Rupees Rupees
(Restated)

Earnings per share -  basic and diluted (Note 26) 5.64  1.26

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

31
December

2013

General Insurance Total

31
December

2012

Fire and
Property
Damage

Marine,
Aviation and

Transport
Motor Miscellaneous Treaty Conventional

Business
Accident

and Health
Business

Non-Unitized
Investment

Link
Business

Unit Link
BusinessNote

Life Insurance

Rupees in thousand

Revenue account

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

(Restated)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

Profit after tax for the year -  restated  1,978,241  445,410

Other comprehensive (loss) / income

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Effect of translation of net investment in foreign branches  (1,470)  200,254

Items that will not be reclassified into profit or loss

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation - restated  29,078  7,751
Capital contribution to statutory funds  (33,937)  (141,031)

(6,329)  66,974 

Total comprehensive income for the year -  restated  1,971,912  512,384

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent -  restated  1,978,099  561,243
Non-controlling interest  (6,187)  (48,859)

 1,971,912  512,384

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

(Restated)

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER  2013

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013
Operating Cash Flows

a) Underwriting activities
Premiums received  15,242,518  12,833,127
Reinsurance premiums paid  (4,498,237)  (5,153,553)
Claims paid  (7,511,079)  (6,601,061)
Surrenders paid  (49,559)  (55,257)
Reinsurance and other recoveries received  2,501,250  2,584,142
Commissions paid  (2,086,024)  (1,644,647)
Commissions received  534,855  771,617
Other underwriting payments  (1,430,301)  (1,296,280)

Net cash flow from underwriting activities  2,703,423  1,438,088

b) Other operating activities
Income tax paid  (103,285)  (92,167)
General and other expenses paid  (659,052)  (594,426)
Loans disbursed  (39,217)  (32,200)
Loan repayments received  35,115  30,600
Other receipts  337,611  173,658

Net cash used in other operating activities  (428,828)  (514,535)

Total cash flow from all operating activities  2,274,595  923,553

Investment activities
Profit / return received  154,356  178,582
Dividends received  945,982  714,654
Payments for investments  (24,697,093)  (11,794,313)
Proceeds from disposal of investments  22,128,041  10,678,912
Fixed capital expenditure - Tangible assets  (238,719)  (324,679)
Fixed capital expenditure - Intangible assets  (40,793)  (30,027)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets  20,651  60,647
Disbursement of policy loans  (2,037)  -
Settlement of policy loans  1,072  -
Rental received  4,947  545
Profit received on PIBs  11,388  2,006
Income received on treasury bills  3,694  21,276
Income received on TFCs  11,593  18,079

Total cash used in investing activities  (1,696,918)  (474,318)

Financing activities
Lease rentals paid  (20,085)  (39,161)
Dividends paid  (430,850)  (183,496)

Total cash used in financing activities  (450,935)  (222,657)

Net cash inflow from all activities  126,742  226,578
Cash at the beginning of the year  2,723,883  2,497,305

Cash at the end of the year  2,850,625  2,723,883
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER  2013

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

Reconciliation to Profit and Loss Account
Operating cash flows  2,274,595  923,553
Depreciation expense  (142,478)  (181,687)
Provision for gratuity  (9,435)  (9,031)
Other income - bank deposits  98,516  111,590
Gain on disposal of fixed assets  1,329  19,708
Provision for impairment on trackers  -    (64,152)
Finance charges on lease obligations  (1,781)  (5,581)
Rental income  4,947  545
Share of loss from associated companies  -    48,344
Increase / (decrease) in assets other than cash  1,204,595  (305,026)
Increase in liabilities other than running finance  (3,999,229)  (1,892,131)

 (568,941)  (1,353,868)
Others

Profit on sale of investments  1,222,636  177,609
Amortization expense  (24,403)  (27,737)
Capital contribution from shareholders fund  33,937  141,031
(Increase) / decrease in unearned premium (83,538)  367,053
Decrease in loans  4,102  1,601
Income tax paid  103,285  89,755
Profit on PIBs  11,405  6,240
Reversal of provision of impairment in value of investments  195,394  197,051
Dividend, investment and other income  1,316,844  860,111
Income on treasury bills  5,463  12,246
Income on TFCs  10,762  17,401

 2,795,887  1,842,361
Profit before taxation -  restated  2,226,946  488,493

Definition of cash:
Cash comprises of cash in hand, bank balances excluding Rs.9.076 million (2012: Rs 9.076 million) held under lien and
other deposits which are readily convertible to cash and which are used in the cash management function on a
day-to-day basis.

Cash for the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows consists of:

Cash and other equivalent  4,531  1,200
Current and other accounts  1,698,980  1,705,386
Deposits maturing within 12 months  1,147,114  1,017,297
Total cash and cash equivalents  2,850,625  2,723,883

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Balance as at  31 December  2011  1,237,045  -    22,859  3,764  (218,193)  278,502   936,500    8,632,342  10,892,819   77,748   10,970,567

Effect of change in accounting policy
[Note 2.5.1 (b)]  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   (65,662)  (65,662)  -    (65,662)

Balance as at 31 December 2011 -  restated  1,237,045  -    22,859  3,764  (218,193)  278,502  936,500  8,566,680  10,827,157  77,748  10,904,905

Interim dividend @ 10% (Rupee 1/- per share)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (185,557)  (185,557)  -    (185,557)

Comprehensive income for the year
31 December  2012

Profit for the year - restated  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    442,354  442,354  3,056  445,410
Other comprehensive income - restated  -    -    -    -     -   200,254  -    7,751  208,005  -    208,005
Capital contribution to statutory funds  -    -    -    -    (89,116)  -    -     -   (89,116)  (51,915)  (141,031)
Total comprehensive income for the year
31 December  2012 -  restated  -    -    -    -    (89,116)  200,254  -    450,105  561,243  (48,859)  512,384

Balance as at  31 December  2012 -  restated  1,237,045  -    22,859  3,764  (307,309)  478,756  936,500  8,831,228  11,202,843  28,889  11,231,732

Comprehensive income for the year
31 December  2013

Profit for the year  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    1,974,820  1,974,820  3,421  1,978,241
Other Comprehensive income  -    -    -    -    -    (1,470)  -    29,078  27,608  -    27,608
Capital contribution to statutory funds  -    -    -    -    (24,328)  -    -    -   (24,328)  (9,609)  (33,937)
Total comprehensive income for the year
31 December  2013  -    -    -    -    (24,328)  (1,470)  -    2,003,898  1,978,100  (6,188)  1,971,912

Final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2012 @ 10%
(Rupee 1/- per share)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (123,705)  (123,705)  -    (123,705)

Interim dividend for the period ended
30 June 2013 @ 25%
(Rupees 2.5/- per share)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    (309,262)  (309,262)  -    (309,262)
Transferred to reserve for issue of
bonus shares  -    2,262,955  -    -    -    -    -    (2,262,955)  -    -    -
Issue of bonus shares @ 182.93%  2,262,955  (2,262,955)  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

Balance as at  31 December  2013  3,500,000  -    22,859  3,764  (331,637)  477,286  936,500  8,139,204  12,747,976  22,701  12,770,677

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Rupees in thousand

Share
capital Capital reserves Revenue reserves Equity
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Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PREMIUMS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

General insurance:
Direct and facultative
Fire and property damage  4,114,709  1,858,769  1,854,900  7,074  4,125,652  3,300,222  1,377,042  1,358,743  5,912  3,324,433  801,219  894,243

Marine, Aviation and Transport  748,457  66,461  55,695  530  759,753  155,870  12,978  7,378  257  161,727  598,026    608,630

Motor  3,232,608  1,489,035  1,504,870  110,033  3,326,806  366,340  107,564  125,874  13,837  361,867  2,964,939  2,743,847

Miscellaneous  1,980,807  547,028  629,366  2,699  1,901,168  808,644  158,463  209,775  1,464  758,796  1,142,372  1,425,257

10,076,581  3,961,293  4,044,831  120,336  10,113,379  4,631,076  1,656,047  1,701,770  21,470  4,606,823  5,506,556  5,671,977

Treaty
Proportional  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

Total  10,076,581  3,961,293  4,044,831  120,336  10,113,379  4,631,076  1,656,047  1,701,770  21,470  4,606,823  5,506,556  5,671,977

Life insurance:

Conventional business  200,615  -    -    -    200,615  105,158  -    -    -    105,158  95,457  119,382

Accident and Health Business  2  -    -    -    2  -    -    -    -    -    2  13

Non-unitised Investment Link Business  559,473  -    -    -    559,473  12,246  -    -    -    12,246  547,227  526,457

Unit Link Business  3,714,635  -    -    -    3,714,635  44,633  -    -    -    44,633  3,670,002  1,544,589

Total  4,474,725  -    -    -    4,474,725  162,037  -    -    -    162,037  4,312,688  2,190,441

Grand Total 14,551,306  3,961,293  4,044,831 120,336  14,588,104  4,793,113  1,656,047  1,701,770  21,470  4,768,860  9,819,244  7,862,418

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Rupees in thousand

Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded
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effect
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Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director
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Director
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Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CLAIMS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER  2013

General insurance:
Direct and facultative
Fire and Property Damage  2,587,967  2,884,545  3,516,994  5,347  3,215,069  1,912,954  2,142,921  2,919,240  4,827  2,684,446  530,623  840,372

Marine, Aviation and Transport  351,744  269,872  176,944  635  258,181  37,088  127,373  126,959  -    36,674  221,507  284,200

Motor  2,572,706  2,012,919  2,612,650  162,587  3,009,850  619,193  1,460,234  2,068,984  134,391  1,093,552  1,916,298  1,821,660

Miscellaneous  1,300,146  1,173,985  995,753  33  1,121,881  433,896  769,372  638,948  24  303,448  818,433  1,196,435

 6,812,563  6,341,321  7,302,341  168,602  7,604,981  3,003,131  4,499,900  5,754,131  139,242  4,118,120  3,486,861  4,142,667

Treaty
Proportional  -    20,332  20,332  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

 -    20,332  20,332  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

Total  6,812,563  6,361,653  7,322,673  168,602  7,604,981  3,003,131  4,499,900  5,754,131  139,242  4,118,120  3,486,861  4,142,667

Life insurance:
Conventional Business  136,186  34,002  38,307  -    140,491  118,605  22,714  -    -    95,891  44,600  50,838

Accident and Health Business  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

Non-unitised Investment Link Business  7,318  2,631  10,280  -    14,967  7,579  1,310  -    -    6,269  8,698  1,986

Unit Link Business  554,475  14,215  35,432  -    575,692  26,604  5,734  -    -    20,870  554,822  102,165

Total  697,979  50,848  84,019  -    731,150  152,788  29,758  -    -    123,030  608,120  154,989

Grand Total  7,510,542  6,412,501  7,406,692  168,602  8,336,131  3,155,919  4,529,658  5,754,131  139,242  4,241,150  4,094,981  4,297,656

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Rupees in thousand
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Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director
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Director
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Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EXPENSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

General insurance:
Direct and facultative
Fire and Property Damage  422,085  252,708  188,330  1,179  487,642  322,909  810,551  484,212  326,339  362,104

Marine, Aviation and Transport  94,905  (5,160)  3,163  309  86,891  201,164  288,055  5,458  282,597  258,410

Motor  319,075  118,926  150,110  9,937  297,828  693,660  991,488  34,828  956,660  970,645

Miscellaneous  138,004  55,729  49,046  229  144,916  317,736  462,652  145,113  317,539  350,422

 974,069  422,203  390,649  11,654  1,017,277  1,535,469  2,552,746  669,611  1,883,135  1,941,581

Treaty
Proportional  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -

Total  974,069  422,203  390,649  11,654  1,017,277  1,535,469  2,552,746  669,611  1,883,135  1,941,581

Life insurance:

Conventional business  16,907  -    -    -    16,907  32,460  49,367  -    49,367  50,221

Accident and health business  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    43

Non-unitised Investment Link Business  88,023  -    -    -    88,023  113,755  201,778  -    201,778  216,468

Unit Link Business  830,615  -    -    -    830,615  130,954  961,569  -    961,569  556,151

Total  935,545  -    -    -    935,545  277,169  1,212,714  -    1,212,714  822,883

Grand Total  1,909,614  422,203  390,649  11,654  1,952,822  1,812,638  3,765,460  669,611  3,095,849  2,764,464

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Opening Closing
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Umer Mansha
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Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

Rupees in thousand
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER  2013

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

General insurance:
Income from non- trading investments
Available- for- sale
Return on Term Finance Certificates  10,762  17,401
Return on Treasury Bills  5,463  12,246
Return on Pakistan Investments Bonds  11,405  6,240
Dividend income

  -   associated undertakings  573,804  423,282
  -   others  362,500  293,604

936,304  716,886
963,934  752,773

Gain on sale of ‘available-for-sale‘ investments
  -   related parties  221,938  108,771
  -   others  975,996  34,621

1,197,934  143,392
2,161,868  896,165

Reversal of impairment in value of 'available-for-sale' investments 14.2  195,394  197,051
 2,357,262  1,093,216

Life insurance:

Shareholders' fund
Appreciation  in value of quoted securities (74)  85
Return on Government Securities  22,538  13,256
Return on bank deposit  1,519  875
Dividend income  2,545  1,359
Gain on sale of non trading investments  1,393  6,893
Reversal of impairment in value of available-for-sale investments  -    468

 27,921  22,936
Statutory Funds
Conventional Business
Return on Government Securities  1,192  3,448
Realisation of discount on Government Securities  3,128  2,075
Investment income on bank deposits  5,961  4,099
Gain on sale of disposal of open-end non trading investments  11  1,065
Reversal of impairment in value of available-for-sale investments  -    59

 10,292  10,746
Accident and Health Business
Investment income on bank deposits  13  18
Non- unitised  Investment Link Business
Appreciation in value of quoted securities  436  2,388
Return on fixed income securities  4,420  -
Realisation of discount on Government Securities  62,013  29,824
Return on Government Securities  6,950  17,440
Investment income on bank deposits  2,437  2,043
Gain on sale of disposal of trading investments  2,062  9,814

 78,318  61,509

Note
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Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

Unit Link Business
Appreciation in value of quoted securities  14,028  8,524
Realisation of discount on Government Securities  160,311  37,952
Return on Government Securities  12,182  13,499
Return on fixed income securities  7,672  963
Dividend income  411  93
Investment income on bank deposits  12,399  4,756
Gain on disposal of open-end trading / non trading investments  21,236  16,445

228,239  82,232
Net investment income 2,702,045  1,270,657
Net investment income - statutory funds  316,862  154,505
Net investment income - other  2,385,183  1,116,152

 2,702,045  1,270,657

The annexed notes 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Note

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer



1. THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

The group consists of:

Holding Company

Adamjee Insurance Company Limited

Subsidiary Company Percentage held by Adamjee Insurance Company Limited

Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited 74.28% (2012: 67.2%)

Adamjee Insurance Company Limited (Holding Company)

Adamjee Insurance Company Limited is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan on 28 September 1960
under the Companies Act, 1913 (now Companies Ordinance, 1984). The Company is listed on all the stock exchanges
in Pakistan and is engaged in the non-life insurance business.

The registered office of the Company is situated at Tanveer Building, 27-C-III, M.M. Alam Road, Gulberg III, Lahore.

The Company also operates branches in the United Arab Emirates (UAE), the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia (KSA) and
the Export Processing Zone (EPZ). The branch in the KSA has closed down its operations and is in “ run-off”  status
with effect from 01 October 2003. 

Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited (Subsidiary Company)

Adamjee Life Assurance Company Limited was incorporated in Pakistan on 04 August 2008 as a public unlisted
company under the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and started its operations from 24 April 2009. The registered office
of the Company is located at First Floor, Islamabad Stock Exchange Tower, 55-B, Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, Islamabad
while its principal place of business is located at Third Floor, The Forum, Khayaban-e-Jami, Clifton, Karachi. The
Company is a subsidiary of Adamjee Insurance Company Limited and an associate of IVM Intersurer B.V. who have
a holding of 74.28 % (2012: 67.20%) and 25.72 % (2012: 32.80%) respectively in the share capital of the Company.
IVM Intersurer B.V. has nominated Hollard Life Assurance Company Limited (HLA), a subsidiary of IVM Intersurer
B.V., to act on its behalf in respect of matters relating to the Company. HLA is South Africa's largest private sector 
insurance company.

The Company is engaged in life assurance business carrying on non-participating business only. In accordance with
the requirements of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, the Company has established a shareholders' fund and the
following statutory funds in respect of its each class of life assurance business:

-   Conventional Business
-   Accident and Health Business
-   Non-Unitized Investment Link Business
-   Unit Link Fund 

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise specified.

2.1 Basis of preparation 

a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984,
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Ordinance,1984, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and SEC
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(Insurance) Rules, 2002. In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Ordinance, 1984,
Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002 shall prevail.

The SECP has allowed insurance companies to defer the application of International Accounting Standard - 39 (IAS
39) 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' in respect of  "investments available-for-sale" until
suitable amendments have been made in the laws. Accordingly, the requirements of IAS-39, to the extent allowed
by SECP, have not been considered in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

b) Consolidation

i) Subsidiary Company

Subsidiary Company is the entity in which Holding Company directly or indirectly controls beneficially owns or holds
more than 50% of the voting securities or otherwise has power to elect and appoint more than 50% of its directors.
The financial  statements of the Subsidiary Company are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date the control commences until the date that control ceases.

The assets and liabilities of Subsidiary Company have been consolidated on a line by line basis and carrying value
of investments held by the Holding Company is eliminated against Holding Company's share in paid up capital of
the Subsidiary Company.

Intergroup balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Non-controlling interests are that part of net results of the operations and of net assets of Subsidiary Company
attributable to interest which are not owned by the Holding Company. Non-controlling interests are presented as
separate item in the consolidated financial statements.

ii) Associates

Associates are the entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. Significant influence is
generally considered where shareholding percentage is between 20% to 50% of the voting shares. However, such
significant influence can also arise where shareholding is lesser than 20% but due to other factors e.g. Group’s
representation on the Board of Directors of investee Company, the Group can exercise significant influence.
Investments in these associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are initially recognized
at cost. The Group’s investment in associate includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated
impairment loss, if any. 

The Group’s share of its associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses, movement in other comprehensive income,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognized in the consolidated profit and loss account,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income and reserves respectively. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Distributions received from an associate
reduce the carrying amount of the investment.

However, there was no associate during the year required to be accounted for under equity metod.

c) Accounting convention 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that certain
investments which are stated at lower of cost and market value and valuation of policyholders liability and employees'
retirement benefits which are carried on the basis of actuarial valuation. Accrual basis of accounting has been used
except for cash flow information.

d) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise judgment in application
of its accounting policies. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and assumptions are



reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements or judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies
are as follows:

i) Provision for outstanding claims including incurred but not reported (IBNR)

Provision for liability in respect of unpaid reported claims is made on the basis of individual case estimates. Provision
for IBNR is based on the management's best estimate which takes into account the past trends, expected future
patterns of reporting of claims and the claims actually reported subsequent to the reporting date.

ii) Provision for taxation including the amount relating to tax contingency

In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Group, the management takes into account the
current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

iii) Provision for doubtful receivables

The receivable balances are reviewed against any provision required for any doubtful balances on an ongoing basis.
The provision is made while taking into consideration expected recoveries, if any.

iv) Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments -  Fixed assets

Estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives and patterns of flow of economic benefits are based on
the analysis of the management of the Group. Further, the Group reviews the value of assets for possible impairment
on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item
of property, plant and equipment, with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

v) Valuation discount rate

The valuation of policyholders' liabilities has been based on a discount rate of 3.75%, which is in line with the
requirements under the repealed Insurance Act, 1938 and is considerably lower than the actual investment return
the Company is managing on its conventional portfolio. The difference each year between the above and the actual
investment return is intended to be available to the Group for meeting administrative expenses and to provide margins
for adverse deviation. 

vi) Mortality assumption

For the purpose of valuing the insurance contracts, the mortality assumption used is based on EFU (61-66) table
which is adjusted to reflect the mortality expectation in Pakistan. In the opinion of the appointed actuary the adjusted
table gives the closest match to the underlying mortality of the covered population. 

vii) Claims provision

For the purpose of valuation of conventional business, no provision has been made for lapses and surrenders. This
gives prudence to the value placed on the liability by not taking any credits for the profits made on surrenders. 

viii) Surrenders

For the purpose of valuation of conventional business, no provision has been made for lapses and surrenders. This
gives prudence to the value placed on the liability by not taking any credits for the profits made on surrenders.

ix) Classification of investments 

The Group classifies its investments into "available-for-sale", "held to maturity" and "at fair value through profit
or loss". The classification is determined by management at initial recognition and depends on the purpose for which
the investments are acquired.
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Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the year in which estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that year, or in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

e) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in these consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Group operates. These consolidated  financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees,
which is the Group's functional and presentation currency. 

f) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved standards that are effective in current year 
and are relevant to the Group

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended 31 December 2013. These
standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Group’s operations or are not expected
to have significant impact on the Group’s financial statements other than certain additional disclosures. 

IAS 1 ' Financial statements presentation' has been amended effective 01 January 2013. The main change resulting
from these amendments is a requirement for entities to group items presented in 'Other Comprehensive Income'
(OCI) on the basis of whether they are  potentially reclassifiable to profit and loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustments) or not. The specified changes has been made in the statement of comprehensive income for the year.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits (revised) which became effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2013
amends accounting for employees benefits. The amended IAS 19 includes the amendments that require actuarial
gains and losses to be recognized immediately in other comprehensive income; to immediately recognize all past
service costs; and to replace interest cost and expected return on plan assets with a net interest amount that is
calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability / asset.

g) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in
current year but not relevant to the Group

There are other new standards, interpretations and amendments to the published approved accounting standards
that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2013 but are considered not to be relevant
or do not have any significant impact on these consolidated financial statements and are therefore not detailed in
these consolidated financial statements.

h) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective
but relevant to the Group

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on
or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either
not relevant to the Group’s operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements other than certain additional disclosures.

IAS 32 'Financial Instruments: Presentation' (effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2014).
This amendment clarifies the meaning of ’currently has a legally enforceable right to setoff’. It will be necessary
to assess the impact to the entity by reviewing settlement procedures and legal documentation to ensure that
offsetting is still possible in cases where it has been achieved in the past. In certain cases, offsetting may no longer
be   achieved. In other cases, contracts may have to be renegotiated. The requirement that the right of setoff be
available for all counterparties to the netting agreement may prove to be a challenge for contracts where only one
party has the right to offset in the event of default.

IFRS 9 ’Financial Instruments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2015). It addresses the
classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities. This is the first part of a new
standard on classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities that shall replace IAS 39
’Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. IFRS 9 has two measurement categories: amortized cost
and fair value. All equity instruments are measured at fair value. A debt instrument is measured at amortized cost
only if the entity is holding it to collect contractual cash flows and the cash flows represent principal and interest.
For liabilities, the standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements. These include amortized-cost accounting for
most financial liabilities, with bifurcation of embedded derivatives. The main change is that, in cases where the fair



value option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of a fair value change due to an entity’s own credit risk is
recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the income statement, unless this creates an accounting
mismatch. This change shall mainly affect financial institutions. There shall be no impact on the Group’s accounting
for financial liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting for financial liabilities that are designated
at fair value through profit or loss, and the Group does not have any such liabilities.

IAS 36 (Amendments) ’Impairment of Assets’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2014).
Amendments have been made in IAS 36 to reduce the circumstances in which the recoverable amount of assets or
cash generating units is required to be disclosed, clarify the disclosures required and to introduce an explicit
requirement to disclose the discount rate used in determining impairment (or reversals) where recoverable amount
(based on fair value less costs of disposal) is determined using a present value technique. However, the amendments
are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

i) Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not effective
in current year and not considered relevant to the Group

There are other accounting standards, amendments to published approved accounting standards and new interpretations
that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 January 2014 but are considered not to be relevant
or do not have any significant impact on these consolidated financial statements and are therefore not detailed in
these consolidated financial statements.

2.2 Insurance contracts

Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Group (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from
another party (the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain future event
(the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder
of its life time, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and liabilities are
extinguished or expired.

Insurance contracts issued by the Group are generally classified in eight basic categories among them four catagories
are covered by the Holding Company i.e. Fire and Property, Marine aviation and transport, Motor and Miscellaneous
and four catagories i.e Conventional Business, Accident and Health Business, Non-Unitized Investment Link
Business and Unit Link Fund are covered by the Subsidiary Company. These are issued to multiple types of clients
with business in engineering, automobiles, cement, power, textile, paper, agriculture, services and trading sectors
etc. and individuals as well. The tenure of these insurance contracts depends upon terms of the policies written and
vary accordingly.

Holding Company -  Non Life Business

-  Fire and property insurance contracts generally cover the assets of the policy holders against damages by fire,
earthquake, riots and strike, explosion, atmospheric disturbance, flood, electric fluctuation and impact, burglary,
loss of profit followed by the incident of fire, contractor's all risk, errection all risk, machinery breakdown and boiler
damage etc.

-  Marine aviation and transport insurance contracts generally provide cover for loss or damage to cargo while in
transit to and from foreign land and inland transit due to various insured perils including loss of or damage to carrying
vessel etc.

-  Motor insurance contracts provide indemnity for accidental damage to or loss of insured vehicle including loss of
or damage to third party and other comprehensive car coverage.

-  Miscellaneous insurance contracts provide variety of coverage including cover against burglary, loss of cash in
safe, cash in transit and cash on counter, fidelity guarantee, personal accident, workmen compensation, travel, crop
and health etc.

Subsidiary Company -  Life Business

- the Conventional Business includes individual life, group life and group credit life assurance.
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- Accident and Health Business provides fixed pecuniary benefits or benefits in the nature of indemnity or a combination
of both in case of accident or sickness to individuals. The risk underwritten is mainly related to medical expenses
related to hospitalisation and death by accidental means. This business is written through direct sales by the head
office as well as through tele-sales.

-  Non-unitised Investment Linked Business provides life assurance coverage to individuals under universal life
policies issued by the Company. Benefits are expressed in terms of account value of the policyholder account which
is related to the market value of the underlying assets of the investment fund. The risk underwritten is mainly death
and disability. This business is written through bancassurance channel and brokers.

- Unit Linked Business provides life assurance coverage to individuals under unit-linked investment policies issued
by the Company. Benefits are expressed in terms of account value of the policyholder account which is related to
the market value of the underlying assets of the investment fund. The risk underwritten is mainly death and  disability.
This business is only written through bancassurance channel.

In addition to direct insurance, the Group also participates in risks under co-insurance contracts from other companies
and also accepts risks through re-insurance inward by way of facultative acceptance on case to case basis provided
such risks are within the underwriting policies of the Group. The nature of the risks undertaken under such
arrangement is consistent with the risks in each class of business as stated above.

Since the nature of insurance contracts entered in to by the Holding Company and its Subsidiary are different, the
respected accounting policy have separately been provided here under:

2.2.1 Holding Company -  Non- life business

a) Premium

Premium received / receivable under a policy is recognized as written from the date of attachment of the policy to
which it relates. Premium income under a policy is recognized over the period of insurance from inception to expiry
as follows:

(a) For direct business, evenly over the period of the policy;
(b) For proportional reinsurance business, evenly over the period of underlying insurance policies; and
(c) For non-proportional reinsurance business, in accordance with the pattern of the reinsurance service.

Where the pattern of incidence of risk varies over the period of the policy, premium is recognized as revenue in
accordance with the pattern of the incidence of risk.

Administrative surcharge is recognized as premium at the time the policies are written.

Provision for unearned premium represents the portion of premium written relating to the unexpired period of
coverage and is recognized as a liability by the Holding Company. This liability is calculated as follows:

- for marine cargo business and for motor business in Dubai, as a ratio of the unexpired period to the total period
of the policy applied on the gross premium of the individual policies; and 

-  for other classes / lines of business, by applying the twenty-fourths method as specified in the SEC (Insurance)
Rules, 2002, as majority of the remaining policies are issued for a period of one year. 

The unearned portion of accident and health insurance, that is included in Miscellaneous category, is determined
in accordance with actuary's advice.

Receivables under insurance contracts are recognized when due, at the fair value of the consideration receivable
less provision for doubtful debts, if any. Provision for impairment on premium receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Holding Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to original terms
of receivable. Receivables are also analyzed as per their ageing and accordingly provision is maintained on a
systematic basis.



b) Reinsurance Ceded

The reinsurance contracts are entered into the normal course of business in order to limit the potential for losses
arising from certain exposures. Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same period as the related
premiums for the direct or accepted reinsurance business being reinsured.

Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a
manner consistent with the related reinsurance contract. Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance
companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the provision for
outstanding claims or settled claims associated with the reinsurance policies and are in accordance with the related
reinsurance contract.

Reinsurance assets are not offset against related insurance liabilities. Income or expenses from reinsurance contract
are not offset against expenses or income from related insurance assets.

Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognized when the contractual rights are extinguished or expired.

Reinsurance assets are assessed for impairment on each reporting date. If there is an objective evidence that the
reinsurance asset is impaired, the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset is reduced to its recoverable amount
and impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss account.

The portion of reinsurance premium not recognized as an expense is shown as a prepayment.

Commission income from reinsurers is recognized at the time of issuance of the underlying insurance policy by the
Group. This income is deferred and brought to account as revenue in accordance with the pattern of recognition of
the reinsurance premium to which it relates. Profit commission, if any, which may be entitled to under the terms
of reinsurance, is recognized on accrual basis.

c) Provision for outstanding claims including IBNR

The Company recognizes liability in respect of all claims incurred up to the reporting date which is measured at the
undiscounted value of the expected future payments. The claims are considered to be incurred at the time of the
incident giving rise to the claim except as otherwise expressly indicated in the insurance contract. The liability for
claims include amounts relating to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), expected claims
settlement costs, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding
from previous years.

Provisions for IBNR are based on the best estimate which takes into account the past trend, expected future patterns
of reporting claims and the claims actually incurred subsequent to the balance sheet date.

The Holding Company accounts for IBNR based on an analysis of past claims reporting pattern by tracking movement
in claims incurred in an accounting period. Provision for IBNR claims pertaining to accident and health insurance,
that is included in Miscellaneous category, is determined on actuary's advice.

d) Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims

Claims recoveries receivable from the reinsurer are recognized as an asset at the same time as the claims which
give rise to the right of recovery are recognized as a liability and are measured at the amount expected to be received.

e) Commission expense and other acquisition costs

Commission expense incurred in obtaining and recording policies is deferred and recognized as an expense in
accordance with pattern of recorgnition of premium revenue.

Other acquisition costs are charged to profit and loss account at the time the policies are accepted.

f) Premium deficiency reserve

A provision is maintained in respect of premium deficiency for the class of business where the unearned premium
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liability is not adequate to meet the expected future liability after reinsurance, from claims and other supplementary
expenses expected to be incurred after the reporting date in respect of the unexpired policies in that class of business
at the reporting date. 

The movement in the premium deficiency reserve is recorded as an expense / income in profit or loss account for
the year.

For this purpose, loss ratios for each class of non life insurance business are estimated on basis of historical claims
development. Judgment is used in assessing the extent to which past trends may not apply in future or the effects
of one-off claims. If these ratios are adverse, premium deficiency is determined. The loss ratios estimated by Holding
Company on this basis for the unexpired portion are as follows:

2013 2012
Fire and property damage 69.92% 78.93%
Marine, aviation and transport 47.19% 53.75%
Motor 64.68% 66.17%
Miscellaneous 80.99% 78.72%

Provision for premium deficiency pertaining to accident and health insurance business included in Miscellaneous
class of business is determined on actuary's advice.

Based on an analysis of combined operating ratio for the expired period of each reportable segment, the management
considers that the unearned premium reserve for all classes of business as at the year end is adequate to meet the
expected future liability after reinsurance, from claims and other expenses expected to be incurred after the balance
sheet date in respect of policies in those classes of business in force at the reporting date. Hence, no reserve for
the same has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

2.2.2 Subsidiary Company -  Life Business

a) Conventional Business 

The Conventional Business includes individual life, group life and group credit life assurance.

i) Individual life

The individual life business segment provides coverage to individuals against deaths and disability under conventional
policies issued by the Company. Additional riders are included on the discretion of the policyholder. The business
is written through bancassurance, tele-sales and direct sales made by head office.

Revenue recognition

Premiums are recognised once the related policies have been issued and the premiums have been received. 

Recognition of policyholders' liabilities

Policyholders’ liabilities included in the statutory fund are determined based on the appointed actuary’s valuation
conducted as at the balance sheet date, in accordance with section 50 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000.

Claim expenses

Claims expenses are recognised on the earlier of the policy expiry or the date when the intimation of the event giving
rise to the claim is received. 

Liability for outstanding claims includes amounts in relation to unpaid reported claims and is stated at estimated
claims settlement cost. Full provision is made for the estimated cost of claims incurred and reported to the date
of the balance sheet.

Liability for claims "Incurred But Not Reported" (IBNR) is included in the policyholders' liabilities in accordance with
the estimates recommended by appointed actuary.



ii) Group life and group credit life

The group life business segment provides coverage to members / employees of business enterprises and corporate
entities, against death and disability under group life assurance schemes issued by the Subsidiary Company. The
group credit life business segment provides coverage to a group of member or subscribers registered under a
common platform against death and disability.

Revenue recognition

Premiums are recognised when due. In respect of certain group policies the Company continues to provide insurance
cover even if the premium is received after the grace period. Provision for unearned premiums is included in the
policyholders’ liabilities. 

Recognition of policyholders' liabilities

Policyholders’ liabilities included in the statutory fund are determined based on the appointed actuary’s valuation
conducted as at the balance sheet date, in accordance with section 50 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000.

Claim expenses

Claims expenses are recognised on the date the insured event is intimated. 

Liability for outstanding claims includes amounts in relation to unpaid reported claims and is stated at estimated
claims settlement cost. Full provision is made for the estimated cost of claims incurred and reported to the date
of the balance sheet. 

Liability for claims "Incurred But Not Reported" (IBNR) is included in the policyholders' liabilities in accordance with
the estimates recommended by appointed actuary.

Experience refund of premium

Experience refund of premium payable to policyholders' is included in policyholders' liability in accordance with the
advise of the appointed actuary.

b) Accident and Health Business

Accident and Health Business provides fixed pecuniary benefits or benefits in the nature of indemnity or a combination
of both in case of accident or sickness to individuals. The risk underwritten is mainly related to medical expenses
related to hospitalisation and death by accidental means. This business is written through direct sales by the head
office as well as through tele-sales.

Revenue recognition

Premiums are recognised once the related policies have been issued and the premiums have been received. 

Recognition of policyholders' liabilities

Policyholders’ liabilities included in the statutory fund are determined based on the appointed actuary’s valuation
conducted as at the balance sheet date, in accordance with section 50 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000.

Claim expenses

Claims expenses are recognised after the date the insured event is initiated and a reliable estimate of the claim
amount can be made.

Liability for outstanding claims includes amounts in relation to unpaid reported claims and is stated at estimated
claims settlement cost. Full provision is made for the estimated cost of claims incurred and reported to the date
of the balance sheet.
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Liability for claims "Incurred But Not Reported" (IBNR) is included in the policyholders' liabilities in accordance with
the estimates recommended by appointed actuary.

c) Non- unitised Investment Linked Business

Non-unitised Investment Linked Business provides life assurance coverage to individuals under universal life policies
issued by the Company. Benefits are expressed in terms of account value of the policyholder account which is related
to the market value of the underlying assets of the investment fund. The risk underwritten is mainly death and
disability. This business is written through bancassurance channel and brokers.

Revenue recognition

Premiums are recognised once the related policies have been issued and the premiums have been received. 

Recognition of policyholders' liabilities

Policyholders’ liabilities included in the statutory fund are determined based on the appointed actuary’s valuation
conducted as at the balance sheet date, in accordance with section 50 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000.

Claim expense

Claim expenses are recognised on the earlier of the policy expiry or the date when the intimation of the event giving
rise to the claim is received. 

Liability for outstanding claims includes amounts in relation to unpaid reported claims and is stated at estimated
claims settlement cost. Full provision is made for the estimated cost of claims incurred and reported to the date
of the balance sheet. 

Liability for claims "Incurred But Not Reported" (IBNR) is included in the policyholders' liabilities in accordance with
the estimates recommended by appointed actuary.

d) Unit Linked Business

Unit Linked Business provides life assurance coverage to individuals under unit-linked investment policies issued
by the Company. Benefits are expressed in terms of account value of the policyholder account which is related to
the market value of the underlying assets of the investment fund. The risk underwritten is mainly death and  disability.
This business is only written through bancassurance channel.

Revenue recognition

Premiums are recognised once the related policies have been issued and the premiums have been received.

Recognition of policyholders' liabilities

Policyholders’ liabilities included in the statutory fund are determined based on the appointed actuary’s valuation
conducted as at the balance sheet date, in accordance with section 50 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000.

Claim expenses

Claim expenses are recognised on the earlier of the policy expiry or the date when the intimation of the event giving
rise to the claim is received. 

Liability for outstanding claims includes amounts in relation to unpaid reported claims and is stated at estimated
claims settlement cost. Full provision is made for the estimated cost of claims incurred and reported to the date
of the balance sheet. 

Liability for claims "Incurred But Not Reported" (IBNR) is included in the policyholders' liabilities in accordance with
the estimates recommended by appointed actuary.



e) Reinsurance contracts held

Individual policies (including joint life policies underwritten as such) are reinsured under an individual life reinsurance
agreement whereas group life and group credit life policies are reinsured under group life and group credit life
reinsurance agreements respectively.

Reinsurance premium

Reinsurance premium expense is recognised at the same time when the related premium income is recognised. It
is measured in line with the terms and conditions of the reinsurance treaties. 

Claim recoveries from reinsurers are recognised at the same time when the claim giving rise to the right of recovery
is recognised.

Amount due from / to reinsurer

Amounts due from / to reinsurers are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be received / paid
in the future for services rendered / received, less provision for impairment, if any.

f) Receivables and payables related to insurance contracts

These include amounts relating to agents and policyholders' which are recognised when due except unpaid premiums.
Unpaid premiums are recognised as revenue only:

-   during days of grace as specified in the policy; or
-   where actuarial valuation assumes that all the premium due have been received.

2.3 Statutory funds

Subsidiary Company -  Life business

The Subsidiary Company maintains statutory funds in respect of each class of life assurance business in which it
operates. Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the Subsidiary Company are referable to the respective
statutory funds. However, where these are not referable to statutory funds, these are allocated to shareholders'
fund of the Subsidiary Company on the basis of actuarial advice. Apportionment of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses, whenever required between funds are made on the basis certified by the appointed actuary of the Company.
Policyholders’ liabilities have been included in statutory funds on the basis of the actuarial valuation carried out by
the appointed actuary of the Subsidiary Company on the reporting date as required by section 50 of the Insurance
Ordinance, 2000. 

2.4 Policyholders' liabilities

2.4.1 Subsidiary Company -  Life business

a) Conventional Business 

i) Individual Life

Policyholders' liabilities constitute the reserves for basic plans and riders attached to the basic plans.

Policy reserves pertaining to the primary plans are based on Full Preliminary Term - Net Premium method using
EFU (61-66) mortality table and a discounting factor interest rate of 3.75%. This table reflects the mortality expectations
in Pakistan. In the opinion of the appointed actuary, the table gives the closest match to the underlying mortality of
the concerned population. This is in line with the requirements under the repealed Insurance Act, 1938 and is
considerably lower than the actual investment return managed on conventional portfolio. The difference between
the above and actual investment return is intended to be available to the Subsidiary Company for meeting administrative
expenses and for providing margins against adverse deviations. Policy reserves for both waiver of premium and
accidental death riders have been based on net unearned premiums.

ANNUAL REPORT 2013132

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER  2013



133

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER  2013

ii) Group life and group credit

Policy reserves for these plans are based on the unearned premium method net of allowances made for acquisition
expenses, unexpired reinsurance premium reserve and profit commission. The reserve also comprises allowance
for "Incurred But Not Reported" (IBNR) claims. The provision for 'Incurred But Not Reported' (IBNR) claims as
included in policyholders' liability is determined by reference to actual claims reported after the valuation date for
events taking place before the valuation date. This approach is being used as the Subsidiary Company has recently
started business. Once sufficient experience of claim reporting patterns have built up, the appointed actuary will
determine IBNR in accordance with these claim log patterns for each line of business separately. Appropriate
margins will be added to ensure that the reserve set aside are resilient to changes in the experience.

b) Accident and Health Business

Policy reserves for this plan have been based on net unearned premiums with allowance for mortality pertaining
to accident only.

c) Non- unitised Investment Link Business

Policyholders' liabilities constitute the account value of investment link contracts as well as non-investment reserves
of these contracts. Non-investment reserves constitute liability kept to account for risks such as death and non-
investment riders (accidental death and disability, monthly income benefit, waiver of premium, etc.). Reserves for
death are based on risk charges deducted for, while reserves for the attached riders are based on net unearned
premiums.

d) Unit Link Business

Policyholders' liabilities constitute the account value of investment link contracts as well as non-investment reserves
of these contracts. Non-investment reserves constitute liability kept to account for risks such as death and non-
investment riders (accidental death and disability, monthly income benefit, waiver of premium, etc.). Reserves for
death are based on risk charges deducted for, while reserves for the attached riders are based on net unearned
premiums.

For the purpose of valuation of unit link business, no provision has been made for lapses and surrenders. This gives
prudence to the value placed on the liability by not taking any credits for the profits made on surrenders. 

2.5 Staff retirement benefits 

2.5.1 Holding Company

a) Defined contribution plan

The Holding Company operates an approved contributory provident fund scheme for all its eligible employees. Equal
monthly contributions to the fund are made by the Holding Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33% of basic
salary.

b) Defined benefit plans

The Holding Company has the following defined benefit plans:

(a) an approved funded gratuity scheme for all its permanent employees in Pakistan. Annual contributions are
made to this scheme on the basis of actuarial recommendations. The actuarial valuation is carried out
using the projected unit credit method. Gratuity is payable to staff on completion of the prescribed qualifying
period of service under the scheme; 

(b) unfunded gratuity scheme covering the employees in the UAE branches as per the requirements of the
applicable  regulations.  Provision is made in these consolidated financial statements on the basis of
actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

During the current year, the Holding Company has changed its accounting policy in respect of post retirement defined
benefits plans as required under International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19, 'Employee Benefits'. Previously, the



actuarial gains and losses were amortized over the expected future service of the current members in accordance
with the International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19 ‘Employee Benefits‘. According to new policy actuarial gains and
losses are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) in the periods in which they occur. Amounts recorded
in the profit and loss account are limited to current and past service costs, gains or losses on settlements, and net
interest income (expense). All other changes in the net defined benefit obligation are recognized directly in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent recycling through the profit and loss account.

The change in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in accordance with the requirements of IAS
8, 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors'. The effect of the change in accounting policy
on the current and prior periods financial statements have been summarised below:

   2013   2012    2011

Impact on consolidated balance sheet
Increase in other creditors and accruals 22,161 54,049 50,932
Decrease in sundry receivables          -      - 14,730
Decrease in retained earnings 22,161 54,049 65,662

Impact on consolidated profit and loss account

Decrease in general and administration expenses   3,862 12,672
Increase in profit after tax   3,862 12,672
Increase in earnings per share      0.01     0.04

2.5.2 Subsidiary company

a) Defined benefit scheme

The Subsidiary company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all permanent, confirmed and full time, employees
who have completed minimum qualifying eligible service period of six months. Contribution to the fund is made and
expense is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation carried out as at each year end using the projected unit
credit method.

During the current year, the Subsidiary Company has changed its accounting policy in respect of post retirement
defined benefits plans as required pursuant to amendment in International Accounting Standard (IAS) 19, 'Employee
Benefits'. Previously, the actuarial gains and losses were amortized over the expected future service of the current
members in accordance with the International Accounting Standard -  19 ‘Employee Benefits‘. Amended IAS
19 requires the actuarial gains and losses to be recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI) in the periods in
which they occur. Amounts recorded in the profit and loss account are limited to current and past service costs,
gains or losses on settlements, and net interest income (expense). All other changes in the net defined benefit
obligation are recognized directly in other comprehensive income with no subsequent recycling through the profit
and loss account. However, the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through Insurance Rules,
2002 had prescribed the format of presentation and disclosure of financial statements for companies carrying the
business of life insurance, which do not require OCI statement, resultantly the charge has been taken to profit and
loss and revenue accounts by the Subsidiary Company.

This ammendment does not materially affect the Subsidiary Company's financial statements, therefore retrospective
adjustment has not been made in the financial statements of the Subsidiary Company. Considering the immateriality
of the amounts involved, this difference in accounting treatment has also been ignored in these consolidated financial
statements. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Subsidiary Company has not been restated / changed in
respect of this matter for the purpose of consolidation.

The effect of this amendment on the financial statements for the current year is as folows:
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Rupees in thousand

2013

Impact on consolidated balance sheet

Increase in deferred taxation 109

Increase in deferred liability -  staff retirement benefits 3,205

Decrease in retained earnings (212)

Decrease in balance on statutory funds (2,884)

Impact on consolidated profit and loss account

Increase in general and administrative expenses 321

Increase in underwriting expenses 2,884

Decrease in taxation (109)

2.6 Employees' compensated absences

The Group accounts for these benefits in the period in which the absences are earned.

2.7 Creditors, accruals and provisions

Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in the future for the goods and / or services received, whether or not billed to the Group.

Provisions are recognized when there is a  present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate.

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise of cash and bank deposits and short-term bank borrowings and excludes bank
balances held under lien.

2.9 Investments

All investments are initially recognized at cost being the fair value of the consideration given and include transaction
costs except in case of investments at fair value through profit or loss. All purchases and sales of investments that
require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or market convention are accounted for at the
trade date. Trade date is the date when the Group commits to purchase or sell the investment.

The above investments are classified into the following categories:

Held- to- maturity

Investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, where the management has both the intent
and the ability to hold the investments to maturity, are classified as held-to-maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, these investments are measured at amortized cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortized cost is calculated taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition by using
the effective interest rate method.

Available- for- sale 

Investments which are intended to be held for an undefined period of time but may be sold in response to the need
for liquidity, changes in interest rates, equity prices or exchange rates are classified as available-for-sale. 



Subsequent to initial recognition at cost, these are stated at the lower of cost or market value (market value being
taken as lower if the reduction is other than temporary) in accordance with the requirements of the SEC (Insurance)
Rules, 2002. The stock exchange quotations at the reporting date are used to determine the market value of its
quoted investments. Appropriate valuation techniques are used to estimate the fair value of unquoted investments
in delisted / unlisted companies. Such valuation is obtained from independent valuers.

In case of Government securities, the market value is determined using rates announced by the Financial Market
Association. 

In case of other fixed income securities redeemable at a given date where the cost is different from the redemption
value, such difference is amortized uniformly over the period between the acquisition date and the date of maturity
in determining 'cost' at which these investments are stated as per the requirements of the SEC (Insurance) Rules,
2002.

At fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified into the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category at inception if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term, if it forms part of a portfolio of financial assets in
which there is evidence of short term profit taking, or if so designated by the management. Subsequently, these are
measured at fair value and gains and losses arising from change in fair value are included in the profit and loss
account / revenue account.

2.10 Taxation

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account
tax credits and rebates available, if any. The charge for the current taxation also includes adjustments where
considered necessary, relating to prior years which arise from assessments framed / finalized during the year or
required by any other reason. 

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary  differences and deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or
credited in the profit and loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged to statement of comprehensive
income in which case it is included in statement of comprehensive income.

2.11 Fixed Assets

Tangible

Owned fixed assets, other than freehold land which is not depreciated and capital work-in-progress, are stated at
cost, signifying historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and any provision for accumulated impairment.
Freehold land and capital work- in-progress are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Depreciation is charged to income applying varying methods depending upon the nature of the asset, at the rates
specified for calculation of depreciation after taking into account residual value, if any. The useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Assets subject to finance lease are accounted for by recording the assets at the lower of present value of minimum
lease payments under lease agreements and the fair value of asset at the inception of the lease contract. The related
obligation under the lease is accounted for as liability. Financial charges are allocated to accounting period in a
manner so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge on the outstanding liability.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
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can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit and loss account as and
when incurred. 

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the assets are available for use while on disposals, depreciation
is charged up to the month in which the assets are disposed off.

The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that this carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indications exist and where the carrying values
exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount of the assets disposed
off. These are included in the profit and loss account currently.

Intangible

The intangible assets having finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any provision
for accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets having an indefinite useful lives are stated at acquisition cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Amortization is calculated from the month the assets are available for use using the straight-line method, whereby
the cost of the intangible asset is amortized over its estimated useful life over which economic benefits are expected
to flow to the Group. The useful life and amortization methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

Software development costs are only capitalized to the extent that future economic benefits are expected to be
derived by the Group.

The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that this carrying value may not be recoverable.  If any such indications exist and where the carrying values
exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

2.12 Expenses of management 

2.12.1 Holding Company

Expenses of management both direct and indirect are allocated on the basis of activity in each class of business.
Expenses not allocable to the underwriting business are charged as General and administration expenses.

2.12.2 Subsidiary Company

Expenses of management have been allocated to various classes of business as deemed equitable by the management.
Allocation to each segment is based on the nature of the expense and its correlation to each segment.

2.13 Investment income

a) From available- for- sale investments 

- Return on fixed income investments
Return on fixed income securities classified as available-for-sale is recognized on a time proportion basis.

-   Dividend
    Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.

-   Gain / loss on sale of available- for- sale investments
    Gain / loss on sale of available-for-sale investments is recognized in profit and loss account currently.

-   Return on Term Finance Certificates
The difference between the redemption value and the purchase price of the Term Finance Certificates is amortized
and taken to the profit and loss account over the term of the investment.



b) From held- to- maturity investments 

Income from held-to-maturity investments is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the effective
yield on the investments. 

c) From investments at fair value through profit or loss

Gain or loss on sale of investment is included in profit and loss account or respective revenue account of the fund
in the period in which disposal has been made.

d) Share of profit from associated companies

This is recognized as per policy stated in note 2.1 b (ii).

2.14 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies (other than the result of foreign branches) are accounted for in Pak Rupees at
the rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into Pak Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange differences are
taken to the profit and loss account currently.

The assets and liabilities of foreign branches are translated to Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the
balance sheet date. The results of foreign branches of the Holding Company are translated to Pak Rupees at the
average rate of exchange for the year. Translation gains and losses are included in the profit and loss account, except
those arising on the translation of the net investment in foreign branches, which are taken to the capital reserves
(exchange translation reserve).

2.15 Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument and de-recognized when the Group loses control of contractual rights that comprise
the financial assets and in the case of financial liabilities when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on the de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is included in the
profit and loss account currently.

Financial instruments carried on the balance sheet include cash and bank, loans, investments, premiums due but
unpaid, amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers, premium and claim reserves retained by cedants, accrued
investment income, reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims, sundry receivables, provision for outstanding
claims, amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers, accrued expenses, other creditors and accruals, liabilities against
assets subject to finance lease and unclaimed dividends. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed
in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

2.16 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend distribution  to the Group's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Group's consolidated financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the shareholders and other appropriations are
recognized in the period in which these are approved by the Board of Directors. 

2.17 Off setting of fund liabilities and fund assets

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and it is intended either to settle on a net basis or to
realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.18 Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Holding Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period / year. Diluted earnings per share is calculated if there
is any potential dilutive effect on the reported net profits.
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2.19 Share capital

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of equity instruments are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

2.20 Impairment

Financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicate that one or more events had a negative
effect on the estimated future cash flow of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as a difference between
its carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. An impairment loss in respect of available-for-sale financial asset is calculated with reference to its current
fair value.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial
assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

Non financial assets

The carrying amounts of the non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognized in profit and loss account. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment
loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.
That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in profit and loss
account.

2.21 Segment reporting

2.21.1 Holding Company

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision makers (the Board of Directors) who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments.

The segment reporting is accounted for using the classes of business as specified under the Insurance Ordinance,
2000 and the SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002 as the primary reporting format based on the practice of reporting to the
management on the same basis.

Assets, liabilities and capital expenditures that are directly attributable to segments have been assigned to them
while the carrying amount of certain assets used jointly by two or more segments have been allocated to segments
on a reasonable basis. Those assets and liabilities which cannot be allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable
basis are reported as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities.

2.21.2 Subsidiary Company

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with that provided to the chief operating decision maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

The Company operates in Pakistan only. The Company has four primary business segments for reporting purposes
namely; Conventional Business and Accident and Health Business and Non-Unitised Investment Link Business and
Unit Link Business. The Company accounts for segment reporting using the classes or sub-classes of business
(Statutory Funds) as specified under the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002 as the primary
reporting format.

2.22 Borrowing cost

Interest, mark-up and other charges on long-term finances are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of
respective qualifying assets acquired out of the proceeds of such long-term finances. All other interest, mark-up
and other charges are recognized in profit and loss account.
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Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

3.3 As at 31 December 2013, MCB Bank Limited and Nishat Mills Limited, associated undertakings, held  102,812,165
(2012: 36,338,092) and 102,809 (2012: 36,337) ordinary shares of the Holding company of Rupees 10 each, respectively.

Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Number of shares

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

3. SHARE CAPITAL

3.1 Authorized share capital

3.2 Paid-up share capital

Issued, subscribed and fully paid:

Ordinary shares of
Rupees 10 each

Ordinary shares of Rupees 10
each fully paid in cash

Ordinary shares of Rupees 10
each issued as fully paid  bonus
shares

Issued during the year

Ordinary shares of Rupees 10
each issued as fully paid bonus
shares

 250,000 250,000

 123,454,543 123,454,543

226,295,457       -

350,000,000  123,704,543

375,000,000 150,000,000 3,750,000  1,500,000

 2,500 2,500

 
1,234,545 1,234,545

2,262,955 -
 

3,500,000 1,237,045

4.1 The reserve for exceptional losses represents the amount set aside by the Holding Company in prior years up to 31 December
1978, in order to avail the deduction while computing the taxable income under the old Income Tax Act of 1922. Subsequent
to the introduction of repealed Income Tax Ordinance, 1979, which did not permit the said deduction, the Holding Company
discontinued the setting aside of amounts as reserve for exceptional losses.

4.2 This amount has been set aside by the Holding Company in prior years for utilization against possible diminution in the value
of investments.

4. RESERVES

Capital reserves

Note

Reserve for exceptional losses 4.1  22,859  22,859
Investment fluctuation reserve 4.2  3,764  3,764
Exchange translation reserve 4.3  477,286  478,756
Capital contribution to statutory funds 4.4  (331,637)  (307,309)

 172,272  198,070
Revenue reserve
General reserve  936,500  936,500

 1,108,772  1,134,570
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4.3 The exchange translation reserve represents the gain resulted from the translation of foreign branches (having business
in foreign currencies) of Holding company into Pak Rupees. For the purpose of exchange translation reserve, the UAE and
Export Processing Zone branches are treated as foreign branches since these carry on their business in AED and US Dollars,
respectively. 

4.4 This represents the share of equity holders of the Parent in the capital contribution made by shareholders’  fund of Subsidiary
to its statutory funds.

Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

5. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

Share capital  240,599  240,599
Profit for the year  3,421  3,056
Capital contribution to statutory funds  (240,048)  (230,439)
Opening retained earnings  18,729  15,673

 22,701  28,889

6. POLICYHOLDERS' LIABILITIES

Life insurance:
6.1 Gross of reinsurance

Actuarial liability relating to future events  139,269  11  1,091,177  3,690,300  4,920,757  2,008,520
Provision for incurred but not reported claims  8,047  -    -    -    8,047  8,859

 147,316  11  1,091,177  3,690,300  4,928,804  2,017,379
6.2 Net of reinsurance

Actuarial liability relating to future events  93,323  11  1,076,689  3,651,062  4,821,085   1,952,017
Provision for incurred but not reported claims  3,587  -    -    -    3,587  2,658

 96,910  11  1,076,689  3,651,062  4,824,672  1,954,675
6.3 Balance of Statutory Funds

Policyholders’ liabilities
Balance at beginning of the year  74,352  5  628,849  1,251,469  1,954,675  479,562
Increase during the year  22,558  6  447,840  2,399,593  2,869,997  1,475,113
Balance at end of the year  96,910  11  1,076,689  3,651,062  4,824,672  1,954,675

Retained earnings on other than
participating business
Balance at beginning of the year  (132,987)  (1,439)  (166,271)  (174,037)  (474,734)  (366,694)
Surplus / (deficit) for the year  (10,776)  9  (32,770)  (17,744)  (61,281)  (108,040)
Surplus appropriated to shareholders’ fund  -    -    -    -    -    -
Balance at end of the year  (143,763)  (1,430)  (199,041)  (191,781)  (536,015)  (474,734)

Capital contributed by shareholders’ fund
Balance at beginning of the year  152,708  1,511  209,492  174,038  537,749  396,717
Capital contribution during the year  -    -    -    33,937  33,937  141,031
Capital withdrawn during the year  -    -    -    -    -    -
Balance at end of the year  152,708  1,511  209,492  207,975  571,686  537,748

Balance of statutory funds at the year end  105,855  92  1,087,140  3,667,256  4,860,342  2,017,689

Conventional
Business

Accident and
Health

Business

31
December

2012

Statutory Funds

31
December

2013

Non-unitised
Investment

Link Business

Unit link
Business

Rupees in thousand

Aggregate
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Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

6.4 The appointed actuary of the  Subsidiary Company has carried out a valuation of the policyholders' liabilities with respect
to the Conventional Business, Accident and Health Business, Non-unitised Investment Linked Business and Unit Link
Business (Statutory Funds) as per section 50 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000. The significant assumptions used in the
valuations are disclosed in note 30.4.2  to these consolidated financial statements.

The details of the significant assumptions used by the appointed actuary in computation of policyholders' liability will be
specified in the Financial Condition Report for the year ended 31 December 2013 to be issued by the appointed actuary of
the Subsidiary Company in accordance with the requirements set out in section 50 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000.

Note

7. PROVISION FOR OUTSTANDING CLAIMS (including IBNR)

General insurance
Related parties 199,060  283,240
Others  7,123,613  6,078,413

7,322,673  6,361,653
Life insurance  84,019  50,848

7,406,692  6,412,501
8. STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS -  Unfunded staff gratuity

Opening balance  37,687  26,458
Charge for the year - Holding Company 8.1  3,948  7,989
Charge for the year - Subsidiary Company 8.2.3  9,600  4,496
Benefits paid - Holding Company  (1,038)  (1,014)
Benefits paid - Subsidiary Company  (570)  (2,298)

49,627  35,631
Exchange loss - Holding Company  6,525  2,056

56,152  37,687

8.1 The above provision relates to the Company's operations in UAE branches. Actuarial valuation is carried out as at
31 December 2013 by an independent actuary - Zahid & Zahid.

8.2 The Subsidiary Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all permanent employees. An actuarial valuation is
carried out at 31 December 2013 to determine the liability of the Subsidiary Company in respect of the scheme. The information
provided in notes 8.2.1 to 8.2.5 is based upon the actuarial valuation carried out as at 31 December 2013.  The following
significant assumptions have been used for valuation of this scheme:

Rate per annum

2013 2012

Discount rate 13.20% 12.10%
Expected rate of increase in salaries 11.00% 11.00%
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Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012Note

8.2.1 Amounts recognised in the balance sheet
Present value of the obligation - restated  15,675  11,824
Unrecognised actuarial loss - restated  -    (5,178)
Gratuity liability as at 31 December  15,675  6,646

8.2.2 Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
Obligation at the beginning of the year  11,823  7,088
Current service cost  4,555  3,178
Interest cost  1,840  1,217
Actuarial loss - restated  (1,973)  2,639
Benefits paid  (570)  (2,298)
Obligation at the end of the year  15,675  11,824

8.2.3 Amounts recognised in the profit and loss account
Current service cost  4,555  3,178
Interest cost  1,840  1,217
Recognised actuarial loss  3,205  101

9,600  4,496
8.2.4 Reconciliation of liability

Opening net liability  6,645  4,447
Charge for the year  9,600  4,496
Benefits paid  (570)  (2,298)
Closing net liability  15,675  6,645

8.2.5 Actual return on plan assets
The Subsidiary Company does not have any plan assets as at 31 December 2013 in respect of its unfunded gratuity scheme.

Rupees in thousand

31 December 2012 31 December 201131 December 2013

9. OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS
Cash margin against performance bonds  646,744  651,492  612,067
Sundry creditors  309,780  259,636  193,059
Commission payable  402,464  598,594  531,396
Workers' welfare fund  146,574  101,126  11,762
Staff Gratuity Fund - restated 9.1  57,770  65,432  50,932
Federal insurance fee  37,920  35,809  35,471
Federal excise duty  105,114  51,044  101,572
Payable to Employees' Provident Fund  804  958  -
Others 9.3  21,805  26,233  31,105

 1,728,975  1,790,324  1,567,364

9.1 Staff Gratuity Fund
The Holding Company operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for all employees. Actuarial valuation is carried
out every year and the latest valuation was carried out as at  31 December 2013 by an independent actuary -  Zahid &
Zahid.

The following significant assumptions have been used for valuation of this scheme:

Note
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Rate per annum

2012 20112013

-   Valuation discount rate  12.00%  11.50%  13.00%
-   Expected rate of increase in salary level 10.00% 9.50% 10.75%
-   Rate of return on plan assets 10.79%  11.50% 13.00%

The fair value of the scheme’s assets and liabilities for past services of the employees at the latest valuation date are as
follows:

Rupees in thousand

31 December 2012 31 December 201131 December 2013

Present value of defined benefit obligation  198,316  194,589  196,137
Plan assets  (140,546)  (129,157)  (145,205)
Net liability - restated  57,770  65,432  50,932

9.1.1 Amounts recognized in the balance sheet
Liabilities - restated  57,770  65,432  50,932

9.1.2 The amounts charged in profit and loss account
Current service cost  11,296  15,848  16,291
Net interest cost - restated  7,525  6,403  6,086
Curtailment cost  -    -    4,039

18,821  22,251  26,416

9.1.3 Amounts charged to other comprehensive income
Remeasurements of the present value of defined benefit obligation:
Actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions  -  8,132  -
Actuarial losses arising from changes in financial assumptions  799  -    -
Actuarial gains arising from experience adjustments  (13,811)  (16,089)  (2,812)
Return on plan assets  (13,471)  206  (2,423)

 (26,483)  (7,751)  (5,235)

9.1.4 Total defined benefit (income) / cost (7,662)  14,500  21,181

9.1.5 Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations
Present value of defined benefit obligation at
the beginning of the year  194,589  196,137  215,970
Current service cost  11,296  15,848  16,291
Interest cost  21,457  23,427  26,386
Curtailment cost  -     -     4,039

Remeasurements of the present value of defined benefit obligation:
Actuarial losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions  -     8,132  -
Actuarial losses arising from changes in financial assumptions  799  -     -
Actuarial gains arising from experience adjustments  (13,811)  (16,089)  (2,812)

(13,012)  (7,957)  (2,812)
Benefits paid  (16,014)  (32,866)  (63,737)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year  198,316  194,589  196,137
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Rupees in thousand

31 December 2012 31 December 201131 December 2013

9.1.6 Changes in fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of  the year  129,157  145,205  186,219
Interest income  13,932  17,025  20,300

Remeasurements of the fair value of plan assets:
Return on plan assets  13,471  (206)  2,423
Benefits paid  (16,014)  (32,867)  (63,737)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year  140,546  129,157  145,205

31 December 201131 December 201231 December 2013

Rupees in
thousand % Rupees in

thousand %Rupees in
thousand %

9.1.7 Fund Investment
Government Bonds  73,388 52.22%  -    -    9,872 6.80%
Corporate Bonds  23,497 16.72%  24,908 19.29%  -    -
Shares and deposits  31,933 22.72%  97,327 75.36%  92,172 63.48%
Unit Trusts  14,291 10.17%  9,536 7.38%  52,555 36.19%
Creditors  (2,563) -1.82%  (2,614) -2.02%  (9,394) -6.47%

 140,546  100%  129,157 100%  145,205 100%

9.2 During the year, an amount of Rupees 20.487 million (2012: Rupees 20.791 million) has been charged to the profit and loss
account in respect of the Holding Company's contributions to the Employees' Provident Fund.

9.3 This includes balance payable by Subsidiary Company to its related parties of Rupees 20.773 million (2012: Rupees 19.187
million)

10. LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE
Present value of minimum lease payments  6,683  24,987

10.1 Minimum lease payments
Not later than 1 year 6,951  17,831
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  -    9,463

6,951  27,294
Future finance charges on finance lease  (268)  (2,307)
Present value of finance lease liability  6,683  24,987

10.2 Present value of finance lease liabilities
Not later than 1 year  6,683  15,547
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years  -    9,440

6,683  24,987

10.3 The above represents finance lease entered into with leasing companies for motor vehicles. The liability is payable by October
2014 in quarterly installments and is secured against respective vehicles and security deposits.

10.4 Lease payments bear variable mark-up rates  and include finance charges at 3 month KIBOR + 2% to 2.5% (2012: 3 month
KIBOR + 2% to 2.5%) per annum. KIBOR is determined on quarterly basis.
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11. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

11.1 Contingencies:

Holding company
The income tax assessments of the Holding Company have been finalized up to and including the tax year 2012. However,
the Holding Company has filed appeals in respect of certain assessment years mainly on account of following:

i) The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued an order under section 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001  for the year 2012 whereby a tax demand aggregating to Rs  8.649 million was raised against the Holding Company
on account of non-deduction of tax on dividend. The Holding Company challenged the said order before the Commissioner
Inland Revenue (Appeals) who remanded the case back to taxation officer for fresh proceedings. The management is
confident that the matter will eventually be decided in favour of the Holding Company, and has consequently not made
any provision there against.

ii) The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) passed an order under section 161/205 of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 for tax year 2005 raising a tax demand of Rs 3.103 million  for alleged non-payment of tax deducted on salaries
during the year. The Holding Company filed an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) who remanded
the case back to taxation officer with the direction to provide the Holding Company a proper opportunity of being heard.
The same was challenged by the Holding Company before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue. Hearing of the case has
not yet commenced. However, a positive outcome is expected by the Holding Company; hence, no provision has been
made by the Holding Company in this regard.

iii) The Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) has finalized assessments for the assessment year 1999-2000 by
taxing capital gains at the full rate of 33%. The aggregate tax liability assessed by the DCIR amounted to Rupees 48.205
million against which the Holding Company has made a total provision of Rupees 44.141 million resulting in a shortfall
of Rupees 4.064 million. The Holding Company filed appeals with the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) and
Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) which were decided against the Holding Company. Consequently, the Company

 has filed an appeal before the Honourable Sindh High Court and the petition is fixed for regular hearing.

iv) The Additional Commissioner / Taxation Officer has reopened assessments for the assessment years 2000-2001 and
2001-2002 by taxing bonus shares received by the Holding Company during the above mentioned periods resulting in
an additional tax liability of Rupees 14.907 million. An appeal was filed before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals)
who cancelled the amended order passed by the Additional Commissioner and allowed relief to the Holding  Company
but the Tax Department had filed an appeal before the ATIR against the order of the Additional Commissioner, which
has been decided in favour of the Holding  Company. However, the Holding Company received another notice from
Additional Commissioner for reassessment of the case in response to which the Holding Company has filed a constitutional
petition in Honourable Sindh High Court against such notice.

v) While finalizing the assessment for the assessment year 2002-2003, DCIR has reduced the business loss for the year
by Rupees 88.180 million by adjusting the dividend income against this loss. The Holding Company maintains that it is
entitled to carry the gross loss forward for adjustment against the future taxable income and dividend income for the
year should be taxed separately at reduced rate. The appeals of the Holding Company in this respect have been rejected
by the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals), the ATIR and the Sindh High Court. The Holding Company has filed a
reference application with the Supreme Court of Pakistan. The management is confident that the matter will eventually
be decided in favor of the Holding Company and has consequently not made any provision against the additional tax
liability of Rupees 26.455 million which may arise in this respect.

vi) The Tax Authorities have also amended the assessments for tax years 2003 to 2007 on the ground that the Holding
Company has not apportioned management and general administration expenses against capital gain and dividend
income. The Holding Company has filed constitutional petition in the Honourable Sindh High Court against the
amendment in the assessment order. The Holding Company may be liable to pay Rupees 5.881 million in the event
of decision against the Holding Company, out of which Rupees 2.727 million have been provided resulting in a
shortfall of Rupees 3.154 million. 
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vii) The Taxation Officer has passed an order in the tax years 2005 and 2006 under section 221 of the Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 (the Ordinance) levying minimum tax liability aggregating to Rupees 38.358 million. An appeal was filed before
the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals)  who upheld the order of the Taxation Officer. The Holding Company has
filed an appeal before the ATIR which is yet to be heard.

viii) The Holding Company received a notice from Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue pertaining to the amendment
of tax year 2008. Amongst others, the Additional Commissioner raised an issue with respect to the claim of exemption
claimed on capital gains on listed securities by way of incorrect application of the provisions of law. The Holding Company
preferred to contest this matter by way of filing a constitutional petition before the Honourable Sindh High Court. The
Court has ordered for stay of proceedings.

Pending resolution of the above-mentioned appeals filed by the Holding Company, no provision has been made in these
consolidated financial statements for the aggregate amount of Rupees 98.690 million (2012: 86.938 million) as the management
is confident that the eventual outcome of the above matters will be in favour of the Holding Company.

Subsidiary Company 
There was no contingency as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

11.2 Commitments:

Holding Company
There were  no capital or other commitments as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

Subsidiary Company
There were  no capital or other commitments as at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012Note

12. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

Cash and other equivalents
Cash in hand  4,531  1,200

Current and other accounts
Current accounts  510,632  213,080
Savings accounts  1,188,348  1,492,306

1,698,980  1,705,386
Deposits maturing within 12 months
Fixed and term deposits 12.1  1,156,190  1,026,373

 2,859,701  2,732,959

12.1 These include fixed deposits amounting to Rupees 197.716 million (AED 6.916 million) [2012: Rupees 180.545 million (AED
6.844 million)] kept in accordance with the requirements of Insurance Regulations applicable to the UAE branches for the
purpose of carrying on business in United Arab Emirates. These also include liens against cash deposits of  Rupees 9.076
million (2012: Rupees 9.076 million) with banks in Pakistan essentially in respect of guarantees issued by the banks on behalf
of the Holding Company for claims under litigation filed against the Holding Company.

12.2 Cash and bank deposits include an amount of Rupees  876.596 million  (2012: Rupees 663.460 million) held with related
parties.
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13. LOANS - considered good

Secured
Executives 13.2 5,220       6,700
Employees 13.2  28,447  22,865

 33,667  29,565
Less: Recoverable within one year shown under sundry receivables

Executives 20  4,871  5,985
Employees 20  12,645  10,789

 17,516  16,774
 16,151  12,791

13.1 Loans to employees are granted in accordance with the terms of their employment for the purchase of vehicles,
purchase / construction of houses and for other purposes as specified in the SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002. These loans
are recoverable in monthly installments over various periods and are secured by registration of vehicles, deposit of
title documents of property with the Company and against provident fund balances of the employees. The loans are
interest free except for those granted for the purchase/ construction of houses which carry interest at the rate of  5%
(2012: 5%) per annum.

Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012Note

13.2 Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans

Opening balance 6,700 22,865 29,565 3,274 24,691 27,965 
Disbursements 13,622 25,595 39,217 12,861 19,339 32,200 
Repayments (15,102) (20,013) (35,115) (9,435) (21,165) (30,600)
Closing balance 5,220 28,447 33,667 6,700 22,865 29,565

14. INVESTMENTS

Available- for- sale
In related parties
Marketable securities 14.3  7,477,264  6,746,356
Others

Marketable securities 14.4  3,920,690  3,449,616
Less: Provision for impairment in value of investments  (220,890)  (416,284)

 3,699,800  3,033,332
At fair value through profit or loss 14.5
In related parties
Marketable securities 14.5.1  3,122  -

Others
Marketable securities 14.5.2  4,481  1,006
Mutual Funds 14.5.4  456,762  100,031
Government securities 14.5.3  4,029,974  1,663,179
Other fixed Income securities  150,808  39,308 

 4,642,025  1,803,524
 15,822,211  11,583,212

2013

Executives Others Total

2012

Executives Others Total

Rupees in thousand

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013Note
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14.1 On 31 December 2013, the fair value of available-for-sale securities was Rupees 22,869.40 million (2012: Rupees
14,632.466 million). As per the Company's accounting policy, available-for-sale investments are stated at lower
of cost or market value (market value being taken as lower if the reduction is other than temporary). However,
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39, 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurements' dealing with
the recognition and measurement of financial instruments requires that these instruments should be measured
at fair value. Accordingly, had these investments been measured at fair value, their carrying value as at 31
December 2013 would have been higher by Rupees 7,047.186 million (2012: higher by Rupees 3,049.254 million).

14.2 Reconciliation of provision for impairment in value of investments

Opening provision  416,284  613,861
Reversal for the year  (195,394)  (197,577)
Closing provision  220,890  416,284

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

14.3 Available- for- sale

In related parties: 14.3.1 
   -    Listed shares  5,290,151  -     5,290,151  5,089,277
   -    Unlisted shares  -    -     -     412,796
   -    Mutual Fund Certificates  2,187,113  -     2,187,113  1,244,283

 7,477,264  -     7,477,264  6,746,356
Others:

   -    Listed shares 14.3.2  2,972,293  (220,890)  2,751,403  2,442,271
   -    Term Finance Certificates 14.3.3  49,927  -     49,927  107,778
   -    Mutual Fund Certificates 14.3.4  66,498  -     66,498  75,145
   -    NIT Units  161 -     161 161
   -    Government treasury bills  645,064  -     645,064  183,527
   -    Pakistan Investment Bonds  186,747  -     186,747  164,713
   -    Pakistan Investment Bonds (5 Years) -   -     -     59,737 

 3,920,690  (220,890)  3,699,800  3,033,332
 11,397,954  (220,890)  11,177,064  9,779,688

Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December
2012

Carrying
Value

Carrying
Value

Provision
there againstCost

Note

14.3.1 Related parties

Listed Shares:

1,258,650 1,258,650 10 Nishat Mills Limited  34,211  34,211
[Equity held 0.36% (2012: 0.36%)]

115,500 115,500 10 Hub Power Company Limited  3,224  3,224
[Equity held 0.01% (2012: 0.01%)]

29,914,034 28,641,486 10 MCB Bank Limited  4,454,396  4,691,395
[Equity held 2.96% (2012: 3.42%)]

440,000 400,000 10 Hira Textile Mills Limited  5,000  5,000
[Equity held 0.50% (2012: 0.50%)]

 25,631,181  25,631,181 10 Pakgen Power Limited  355,448  355,448
[Equity held 6.89% (2012: 6.89%)]

27,348,388  -    10 Lalpir Power Limited  371,516  -
[Equity held 7.20% (2012: Nil )]

3,396,340  -    10 MCB-Arif Habib Savings & Investment Limited  66,356  -
[Equity held 4.72% (2012: Nil)]

5,290,151  5,089,278 

Cost Cost

No. of Shares / Certificates Face
value

Company's name 31 December
2013

31 December
2012

Rupees in thousand
31 December

2013
31 December

2012
Rupees
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Unlisted Shares:

 -     27,624,635 10 Lalpir Power Limited  -     412,796
[Equity held Nil (2012: 8.00% )]

 -     412,796 
 Mutual Fund Certificates

 10,202,734  9,404,179 100 MCB Dynamic Cash Fund  943,345  847,504
[Units held 9.35 % (2012: 10.16%)]

 10,565,767  4,123,322 100 MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund  993,768  396,779
[Units held 7.38 % (2012: 4.89%)]

 5,193,482  -    50 Metro Bank Pakistan Sovereign Fund  250,000  -
[Units held 48.66 % (2012: Nil)]

2,187,113  1,244,283

14.3.2 Other -  listed shares
Investment Bank/ Investment Companies / Security Companies

- 2,310,840 10 MCB-Arif Habib Savings & Investment Limited - 47,086

Commercial Banks
3,358,480 1,731,346 10 Allied Bank Limited 176,805 75,492

777,022 1,936,884 10 Askari Bank Limited 21,359 71,871
6,565,208 7,132,709 10 Bank Al-Habib Limited 154,660 130,982

378,320 343,928 10 Habib Bank Limited 40,947 40,947
3,901,899 3,901,899 10 Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 87,327 87,327
7,048,012 6,128,707 10 National Bank of Pakistan 322,024 322,024
4,359,944 3,859,944 10 United Bank Limited 345,473 299,386

Insurance
3,000 3,000 10 EFU General Insurance Company Limited 211 211

305,188 305,188 10 International General Insurance Company of Pakistan 22,888 22,888
286,843 286,843 10 Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited 6,326 6,326

Power Generation & Distribution
85,000 85,000 10 Kot Addu Power Company Limited 3,913 3,913

Oil And Gas Marketing Companies
100,000 100,000 10 Attock Refinery Limited 15,157 15,157

2,213,095 2,011,905 10 Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited 127,666 127,666

Oil And Gas Exploration Companies
10,000 10,000 10 Oil and Gas Development Company Limited  1,067  1,067

224,985 500,285 10 Pakistan Oilfields Limited  67,272  147,729
1,014,464 1,540,988 10 Pakistan Petroleum Limited  99,384  181,472 

Automobile Assembler
301,378 301,378 5 Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited  43,030  43,030
340,996 394,544 10 Millat Tractors Limited  25,239  35,335

Cables And Electrical Goods
326,128 326,128 10 Pakistan Cables Limited  27,717  27,717
148,131 148,131 10 Siemens (Pakistan) Engineering Company Limited  116,770  116,770

Industrial Metals and Mining
91,300 91,300 10 Aisha Steel Mills Limited -    -

Fertilizer
9,000  -  Fatima FertilizerCompany Limited  -    -

1,936,906 1,936,906 10 Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim  85,611  85,611
6,466,640 3,926,640 10 Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited  616,274  298,434

Pharmaceutical
1,170,996 1,242,596 10 Abbott Laboratories Pakistan Limited  143,131  151,883

985,147 814,172 10 GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited  84,811  84,811

Chemical
 -  110,401 10 Clariant Pakistan Limited  -    11,762

968,000 968,000 10 Arif Habib Corporation Limited  98,981  98,981
110,401  -  10 Archroma Pakistan Limited  11,762  -

Food And Personal Care Products
709,868 777,535 10 Murree Brewery Company Limited  30,168  34,565

 - 32,783 10 Nestle Pakistan Limited  -    18,980
66,290 54,870 10 Rafhan Maize Products Limited  90,271  44,644

 - 34,456 50 Unilever Pakistan Limited  -    118,141

Cement
2,707,944 2,707,944 10 D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited  106,049  106,049

2,972,293  2,858,257

Cost Cost

No. of Shares / Certificates Face
value

Company's name 31 December
2013

31 December
2012

Rupees in thousand
31 December

2013
31 December

2012
Rupees
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14.3.4 Others- Term Finance Certificates

 1,995  3,990  5,000 Allied Bank Limited (06/12/2006)  9,976  19,952
 -    6,649  5,000 Bank Alfalah Limited (25/11/2005)  -     33,245

 2,996  2,996  5,000 Bank Alfalah Limited (02/12/2009)  14,976  14,982
 4,995  4,999  5,000 KESC AZM Certificate (12/11/2012)  24,975  24,995

 -    998  5,000 Pakistan Mobile Communication Limited (31/05/2006)  -     4,992
 -    984  5,000 Faysal Bank Limited (10/02/2005)  -     4,922
 -    998  5,000 Soneri Bank Limited (5/05/2005)  -     4,988

 49,927  108,076
14.3.4 Others- Mutual Fund Certificates 
             Open- Ended- Mutual Funds

1,672,184  1,562,559 10 ABL Income Fund  13,938  13,938
 8,041  7,405 500 Atlas Income Fund  2,725  2,725

 38,310  35,254 100 KASB Cash Fund  3,482  3,482
 312,602  279,805 50 Meezan Islamic Income Fund  10,000  10,000

 1,416,817  1,303,057 10 NIT Government Bond Fund  10,000  10,000
 182,887  261,957 MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund  16,123  25,000
 568,899  1,003,122 ABL Government Securities Fund  5,230  10,000
 500,511  -    ABL Islamic Stock Fund  5,000  -

 66,498  75,145
14.5     Investment at fair value through profit or loss

14.5.1 Listed shares -  Related Parties
27,500  -    10 The Hub Power Company Limited  1,670  -

 11,000 -   10 D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited  943  -
 4,000  -    10 Nishat Mills Limited  509  -

 3,122     -
14.5.2 Listed shares -  Others

Commercial Banks
 1,964  7,590 10 Askari Bank Limited  27  131
 5,055  -    10 Meezan Bank Limited  199  -

Cement 
 1,300  -    10 Kohat Cement Limited  127  -
 3,000  -    10 Cherat Cement Company Limited  190  -
 8,500  -    10 Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited  233  -    

Oil and Gas Marketing Companies
 800  -    10 Pakistan State Oil Company Limited  266  -

 4,220  -    10 Pakistan Petroleum Limited 903  -    
 1,600  -    10 Pakistan Oil fields Limited  796  -

 2,000  -    10 National Refinery Limited  431  -

Chemical
 36,300  36,300 10 Arif Habib Corporation Limited  808  875

 1,000  -    10 Packages Limited  273  -
 8,000  -    10 Pakistan telecommunication Limited  228  -

4,481 1,006
14.5.3 Government securities

3 Year Pakistan Investment Bonds  100,621  -
12 Months Treasury Bills  -     1,413,285
6 Months Treasury Bills  371,862  -
3 Months Treasury Bills  3,517,171  224,649

 Ijarah Sukuks  40,320  25,245
 4,029,974  1,663,179

14.5.4 Mutual Fund Certificates -  Related parties
 2,173,564  158,290 100 MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund  217,468  15,872

 255,646  265,632 100 MCB Dynamic Stock Fund  29,045  26,977
 853  137,872 Pakistan Income Enhancement Fund - A  43  7,081

 -    347,186 MCB Dynamic Stock Fund-Class A  -    36,788
 140,397  131,351 IGI Money Market Fund  14,116  13,228
 686,367  844 MCB Islamic Income Fund  68,723  85

 2,543,073  -    Pakistan Cash Management Fund  127,217  -
 2,994  -    Metrobank-Pakistan Sovereign Fund  150  -

 456,762  100,031

Cost Cost

No. of Shares / Certificates Face
value

Company's name 31 December
2013

31 December
2012

Rupees in thousand
31 December

2013
31 December

2012
Rupees
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Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012Note

15. PREMIUMS DUE BUT UNPAID -  Unsecured

Considered good  2,673,944  3,217,207
Considered doubtful  369,231  359,147

 3,043,175  3,576,354
Less: Provision for doubtful balances 15.1  (369,231)  (359,147)

 2,673,944  3,217,207
15.1 Reconciliation of provision for doubtful balances

Opening provision  359,147  309,821
Exchange loss  10,084  8,426
Charge for the year  -    40,900
Closing provision  369,231  359,147

15.2 Premiums due but unpaid include an amount of Rupees 180 million (2012: Rupees 556 million) held with related parties.

16. AMOUNTS DUE FROM OTHER INSURERS/ REINSURERS - Unsecured

Considered good  1,094,914  606,559
Considered doubtful  322,810  326,327

 1,417,724  932,886
Less: Provision for doubtful balances 16.1  (322,810)  (326,327)

 1,094,914  606,559
16.1 Reconciliation of provision for doubtful balances

Opening provision  326,327  276,327
Charge for the year  -    50,000
Written off during the year  (3,517)  -
Closing provision  322,810  326,327

17. ACCRUED INVESTMENT INCOME

Return accrued on Term Finance Certificates  5,331  1,564
Return accrued on Treasury Bills  2,957  1,187
Return accrued on Pakistan Investment Bonds  13,555  11,278
Return on ijara sukuk  675 -
Return on policy holders loan  21 -
Dividend income
  -  associated undertakings  -    -
  -  others  20  6,840

 20  6,840
Return on bank deposit accounts
  -  associated undertakings  -    -
  -  others  7,562  5,747

 7,562  5,747
 30,121  26,616
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Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012Note

18. REINSURANCE RECOVERIES AGAINST OUTSTANDING CLAIMS
These are unsecured and considered to be good.

19. PREPAYMENTS
Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded  1,701,770  1,656,047 
Others  82,511  90,266 

 1,784,281  1,746,313 

20. SUNDRY RECEIVABLES
Considered good
Current portion of long-term loans
Executives 13  4,871  5,985 
Employees 13  12,645  10,789 
Other advances  120,260  134,809 
Security deposits  21,410  21,085 
Miscellaneous  46,119  36,108 

 205,305  208,776
21. FIXED ASSETS

Owned assets - tangible 21.1  1,044,364  952,297 
Owned assets - intangible 21.1  83,780  61,191 

 1,128,144  1,013,488 
Leased assets  33,627  52,429 
Capital work-in-progress - tangible 21.2  89,310  91,855 

 1,251,081  1,157,772
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At 01 January 2013
Cost 532,493 165,949 422,177 201,580 192,232 1,514,431 151,481 1,665,912 89,221 89,221 1,755,133
Accumulated depreciation /
amortisation 68,443 51,613 198,173 102,021 141,884 562,134 90,290 652,424 36,792 36,792 689,216
Net book value 464,050 114,336 224,004 99,559 50,348 952,297 61,191 1,013,488 52,429 52,429 1,065,917

Year ended 31 December 2013
Opening net book value 464,050 114,336 224,004 99,559 50,348 952,297 61,191 1,013,488 52,429 52,429 1,065,917
Additions 15,722 66,265 89,530 36,830 26,720 235,067 46,992 282,059  -     -     282,059

Disposals
Cost  -     101 12,138 3,063 964 16,266  -     16,266 22,121 22,121 38,387
Depreciation/ amortisation -   61 6,523 1,620 852 9,056 -   9,056 10,008 10,008 19,064

 -    40 5,615 1,443 112 7,210  - 7,210 12,113 12,113 19,323

Depreciation/ amortisation charge
for the year 34,565 24,401 35,854 18,521 22,449 135,790 24,403 160,193 6,689 6,689 166,882
Closing net book value 445,207 156,160 272,065 116,425 54,507 1,044,364 83,780 1,128,144 33,627 33,627 1,161,771

At 31 December 2013
Cost 548,215 232,113 499,569 235,347 217,988 1,733,232 198,473 1,931,705 67,100 67,100 1,998,805
Accumulated depreciation /
amortisation 103,008 75,953 227,504 118,922 163,481 688,868 114,693 803,561 33,473 33,473 837,034
Net book value 445,207 156,160 272,065 116,425 54,507 1,044,364 83,780 1,128,144 33,627 33,627 1,161,771

Depreciation rate per annum 10% 15% 15% 15%&16.67% 30% 20% 15%

Rupees in thousand

Owned assets Leased assets

Tangible Intangible Tangible

Computers
and related
accessories

Total
fixed

assetsTotal
leased

Motor
vehicles

Total
ownedComputer

software
Total

tangible
assets

Machinery
and

equipment
Motor

vehicles
Furniture

and
fixtures

Land  and
Buildings

2011

21.1 The following is a statement of operating fixed assets :

2013

At 01 January 2012
Cost 319,926  124,069 390,364 528,712 178,000 1,541,071 121,454 1,662,525 127,106 127,106 1,789,631
Accumulated depreciation /
 amortisation 48,195 47,405 172,463 314,796 120,649 703,508 62,553 766,061 39,366 39,366 805,427
Net book value 271,731 76,664 217,901 213,916 57,351 837,563 58,901 896,464 87,740 87,740 984,204

Year ended 31 December 2012
Opening net book value 271,731 76,664 217,901 213,916 57,351 837,563 58,901 896,464 87,740 87,740 984,204
Additions 217,122 54,614 53,558 24,820 16,088 366,202 30,027 396,229 -    -     396,229

Disposals
Cost 4,555 12,734 21,745 351,952 1,856 392,842  -    392,842 37,885 37,885 430,727
Depreciation/ amortisation 2,915 10,160 10,721 287,046 1,383 312,225  -     312,225 13,410 13,410 325,635

1,640 2,574 11,024 64,906 473 80,617  -     80,617 24,475 24,475 105,092

Depreciation/ amortisation charge
for the year 23,163 14,368 36,431 74,271 22,618 170,851 27,737 198,588 10,836 10,836 209,424
Closing net book value 464,050 114,336 224,004 99,559 50,348 952,297 61,191 1,013,488 52,429 52,429 1,065,917

At 31 December 2012
Cost 532,493 165,949 422,177 201,580 192,232 1,514,431 151,481 1,665,912 89,221 89,221 1,755,133
Accumulated depreciation /
amortisation 68,443 51,613 198,173 102,021 141,884 562,134 90,290 652,424 36,792 36,792 689,216
Net book value 464,050 114,336 224,004 99,559 50,348 952,297 61,191 1,013,488 52,429 52,429 1,065,917

Depreciation rate per annum 10% 15% 15% 15%&16.67% 30% 20% 15%

Rupees in thousand

Owned assets Leased assets

Tangible Intangible Tangible

Computers
and related
accessories

Total
fixed

assetsTotal
leased

Motor
vehicles

Total
ownedComputer

software
Total

tangible
assets

Machinery
and

equipment
Motor

vehicles
Furniture

and
fixtures

Land  and
Buildings

20112012
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21.1.1 Detail of tangible assets disposed during the year are as follows:

Furniture & Fixtures

Items Having Book Value
Below Rupees 50,000  101  61  40  39 

101 61 40 39 
Motor Vehicles
Owned

Honda Civic VTi (AJF-028) 1,287 900 387 650 Negotiation Shamsul Haque,Employee 
Honda Civic VTi (AUK-397) 1,935 706 1,229 1,245 Negotiation Manzar Mushtaq ,Employee 
Toyota Corolla GLi (PY-519) 1,384 630 754 730 Negotiation Musaddar Muhsin Ali ,Employee 
Toyota Corolla GLi (AJZ-837)  901 650 251 258 Negotiation Saeed Muzaffar Zuberi,Employee 
Honda Citi (ASD-079)  1,485 797 688 1,000 Insurance claimIGI Insurance Co. Ltd. 
Honda Citi (LWH-385) 931 670 261 787 Auction Naseer Ahmad 
Vehicle -  Honda Civic 1,933 1,610 323 1,878 Sold as per

company policy M Iftikhar Ahmed
Vehicle -  Honda Motorcycle 71 5 66 61 Theft Insurance recovery  
Items Having Book Value
Below Rupees 50,000 2,211 555 1,656 982

12,138 6,523 5,615 7,591
Leased
Suzuki Cultus (ASE-503) 805 348 457 433 Negotiation Hanif Aliani,Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASA-639) 534 242 292 266 Negotiation M.Abdul Rehman Khan,Employee 
Honda Civic VTi PT SR (ASS-096) 1,882 783 1,099 1,051 Negotiation Rehan Ahmed Khan,Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASA-371) 534 242 292 266 Negotiation Nazish Shafiq,Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASC-681)  537 232 305 280 Negotiation Aaliya Zia,Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASC-697)  534 230 304 278 Negotiation Muhammad Tariq,Employee 
Toyota Corolla GLi (ASN-129)  1,390 689 701 636 Negotiation Amir Nayab Ahmed,Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASC-695)  534 230 304 269 Negotiation Israr Ahmed,Employee 
Suzuki Cultus (ASB-853)  805 348 457 418 Negotiation M. Raheel Khan,Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASA-357)  534 242 292 249 Negotiation Farrukh Adnan,Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASC-532)  529 228 301 255 Negotiation Zahid Ahmed,Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (LEB-09-8976)  541 245 296 256 Negotiation Tanveer Ahmed,Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASD-452)  534 230 304 261 Negotiation Hassan Mahmood,Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASD-451)  534 230 304 261 Negotiation Aqeel Quadari,Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASC-148)  534 230 304 261 Negotiation Asif Ehtisham,Employee 
Suzuki Cultus (ASA-142)  844 364 480 518 Insurance claimIGI Insurance Co. Ltd. 
Suzuki Mehran (ASA-618)  534 269 265 252 Negotiation Shakeel Anwer,Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASC-476)  534 238 296 243 Negotiation Naima Shabab,Employee 
Honda Civic VTi PT SR (AST-325)  1,882 825 1,057 908 Negotiation Absar Burney,Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (LEB-09-8963)  541 257 284 247 Negotiation Arif Malik,Employee 
Honda Civic VTi PT SR (AST-324)  1,882 825 1,057 1,056 Negotiation Manzar Mushtaq ,Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASC-682)  534 246 288 226 Negotiation Anis Ahmed Ashrafi,Employee 
Suzuki Mehran (ASE-315)  534 250 284 217 Negotiation Raheel Rasheed,Employee 
Toyota Corolla Altis (ASM-607)  1,881 924 957 1,220 Insurance claimIGI Insurance Co. Ltd. 
Suzuki Cultus (ASE-508)  805 407 398 323 Negotiation Muhammad Rafiq,Employee 
Toyota Corolla GLi (ASM-629)  1,389 654 735 573 Negotiation Syed Muhammad Iqbal,Employee 

22,121 10,008 12,113 11,223
Machinery & Equipment
Items Having Book Value
Below Rupees 50,000 3,063 1,620 1,443 1,729

 3,063 1,620 1,443 1,729
Computer
Items Having Book Value
Below Rupees 50,000 964 852 112 69
Grand Total 38,387 19,064 19,322 20,651

21.2 Capital Work In Progress represents capital expenditure in respect of IT infrastructure.

Rupees in thousand

Description Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Book
value

Sale
proceeds

Mode of
disposal Particulars of purchaser
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22. EXPENSES

Salaries and wages 24.1 944,967 804,396
Rent, rates and taxes 69,753 77,652
Utilities 37,231 37,978
Communication 25,267 44,303
Printing and stationery 38,597 43,538
Traveling and entertainment 65,746 60,255
Repairs and maintenance 154,808 179,939
Advertisement and sales promotion 45,980 43,845
Depreciation 21.1 128,342 170,363
Tracking and monitoring charges 93,886 127,437
Legal and professional expenses 75,844 20,978
Others 132,217 178,587

1,812,638 1,789,271
23. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Return on bank deposits    98,516                       111,590
Interest on loans to employees 358 373
Income from non financial assets
Gain on sale of fixed assets 1,329 19,708
Miscellaneous 49,556 33,735

149,759 165,406
24. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

 (Restated)

Salaries and wages - restated 24.1 106,112 60,646
Rent, rates and taxes 14,904 4,350
Depreciation 21.1 20,530 16,770
Communication 11,774 942
Utilities 4,247 1,648
Repairs and maintenance 40,894 6,939
Advertisement and sales promotion 16,459 4,059
Traveling and entertainment 20,180 25,935
Directors' fee 440 310
Legal and professional expenses 98,659 83,764
Auditors' remuneration 24.2 5,920 5,571
Donations 24.4 6,481 294
Provision for doubtful balances -    99,326
Amortization of intangible asset 21.1 18,010 22,291
Provision for impairment on trackers -    64,151
Provision for workers' welfare fund 45,448 12,695
Others 48,313 16,486

458,371 426,177

24.1 These include Rupees 45.851 million (2012: Rupees 61.538 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits.

24.2 Auditors' remuneration

Holding Company
Audit fee 4,108 3,914
Half yearly review 450 424
Other certifications and tax advisory services 370 330
Out of pocket expenses 755 735

5,683 5,403
Subsidiary Company 24.3
Audit fee 237 168

5,920 5,571

24.3 In addition, Subsidiary Company charged audit fee amounting to Rupees 1.680 million (2012: Rupees 1.517 million) to its statutory funds.

24.4 None of the directors or their spouses had any interest in the donee.

31 December
2012

31 December
2013

Note

Rupees in thousand
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Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Current 108,986 88,544
Deferred 25.2 139,719 (45,461)

248,705 43,083

25.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

The relationship between tax expense and accounting profit cannot be given because the provision represents the final tax on dividend
income and capital gain.

25.2 Deferred tax effect due to temporary differences of:

Tax depreciation allowance (67,185) (67,669)
Provision for gratuity 13,635 10,886
Pre commencement expenses of Subsidiary Company -    2,705
Assets subject to finance lease (9,161) (9,644)
Carried forward tax losses 170,057 310,787

107,346 247,065
Less: opening balance 247,065 201,604

(139,719) 45,461

26 EARNINGS PER SHARE -  BASIC and DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect on basic earnings per share which is based on:

Net profit after tax for the year attributable to owners of the parent 1,974,820 442,354

(Restated)
Weighted average number of shares - restated 350,000,000 350,000,000

Basic earnings per share - restated 5.64 1.26

27 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged for the year for remuneration including all benefits to Chief Executive Officer, directors and executives
of the Holding Company is as follows:

Rupees in thousand

TotalExecutivesDirectors
Chief

Executive
Officer

TotalExecutivesDirectors
Chief

Executive
Officer

2013 2012

Note

25 PROVISION FOR TAXATION

Fee  - 440  - 440  - 310  - 310
Managerial remuneration 5,608  - 123,788 129,396 5,400 - 124,872 130,272
Allowances and perquisites 5,959  - 154,571 160,530 4,420  - 112,800 117,220

11,567 440 278,359 290,366 9,820 310 237,672 247,802
Number 1 10 128 139 1 10 132 143

27.1 In addition, the Chief Executive Officer and certain executives of Holding Company are also provided with free use of the company's 
cars, certain household items, furniture and fixtures and equipment in accordance with the policy of the Holding Company.

27.2 No remuneration was paid to non-executive directors of the Holding Company except meeting fees.

157

 (Number of shares)

Rupees
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Holding Company

Premium underwritten 1,040,926 1,359,920
Premium received 1,156,900 1,413,559
Claims paid 440,135 373,870
Rent paid 3,815 11,603
Dividend received 573,805 503,166
Dividend paid 138,727 72,217
Profit on bank deposits 18,241 29,711
Sale of fixed assets -     900

Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Rupees in thousand

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

Number of shares

28 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Group has related party relationships with its associated companies, subsidiary company, employee benefit
plans, key management personnel and other parties. Transactions are entered into with such related parties for
the issuance of policies to and disbursements of claims incurred by them and payments of rentals for the use
of premises rented from them, etc.

There are no transactions with key management personnel other than their terms of employment. These
transactions are disclosed in notes 8, 9 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars of transactions
with the Holding Company's staff retirement benefit schemes are disclosed in note 8 and 9. Investments in and
balances outstanding with related parties (associated undertakings) have been disclosed in the relevant consolidated
balance sheet notes. Other transactions with related parties not elsewhere disclosed are summarized as follows:

Bonus shares received 5,666,611 2,603,771
Bonus shares paid 66,540,545  -

Subsidiary Company
Premium underwritten 79,501 78,704
Profit on bank deposits 19,011 9,560
Claims expense 36,794 53,470
Commission expense in respect of Bancassurance 855,003 572,913
Technical support fee 19,948 16,703
Investment purchased 1,142,526 168,754
Investment sold 835,677 122,653
Bank charges 78 84
Investment advisor fee 8,468 2,277
Custodian fee 2,621 1,005
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30. FINANCIAL AND INSURANCE RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (including interest /
mark-up rate risk, price risk and currency risk). The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimize potentially adverse effects on the financial performance. Overall risks arising
from the Group's financial assets and liabilities are limited. The Group consistently manages its exposure to financial risk
without any material change from previous period in the manner described in notes below. The Board of Directors of the
Holding Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Group's risk management framework.
The Board is also responsible for developing the Group's risk management policies.
The individual risk wise analysis is given below:

30.1 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge its obligation
and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Group attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures
by undertaking transactions with a large number of counterparties in various industries and by continually assessing the
credit worthiness of counterparties.

Concentration of credit risk occurs when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business activities. As a result
any   change in economic, political or other conditions would affect their ability to meet contractual obligations in similar
manner. The Group's credit risk exposure is not significantly different from that reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. The management monitors and limits the Group's exposure and conservative estimates of  provisions for doubtful
assets, if any. The management is of the view that it is not exposed to significant concentration of credit risk as its financial
assets are adequately diversified in entities of sound financial standing, covering various industrial sectors.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure, as specified below:

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

Bank deposits 2,855,170 2,731,759
Investments 15,822,211 11,583,212
Premiums due but unpaid 2,673,944 3,217,207
Amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers 1,094,914 606,559
Salvage recoveries accrued 179,703 169,671
Loans 33,667 29,565
Accrued investment income 30,121 26,616
Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 5,574,428 4,330,229
Sundry receivables 187,789 192,002

28,451,947 22,886,820

Provision for impairment is made for doubtful receivables according to the Group's policy. The impairment provision is written
off when the Group expects that it cannot recover the balance due. During the year receivables of Rupees Nil (2012:  Rupees
90.900 million) were further impaired and provided for. The movement in the provision for doubtful debts account is shown
in note 15.1 and 16.1.  

Rupees in thousand

31 December 201231 December 2013

The age analysis of gross receivables from other than related parties is as follows:

Upto 1 year 2,048,532 2,087,445
1-2 years 814,293  913,114

2,862,825 3,000,559

The age analysis of gross receivables from related parties is as follows:

Upto 1 year 161,598 553,789
1 - 2 years 18,752 22,006

180,350 575,795



163

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Allied Bank Limited A-1+ AA+ PACRA  9  9
Askari Bank Limited A-1+ AA- PACRA  46  46
Bank Alfalah Limited A-1+ AA PACRA  2,859  187,331
Bank Al Habib Limited A-1+ AA+ PACRA  23,125  22,740
Barclays Bank PLC, Pakistan P-1 A2 Moody's  -     100
Citibank N.A. P-1 A2 Moody's  9,599  14,364
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AA+ JCR-VIS  142,305  301,263
HSBC Bank Middle East Limited P-1 A1 Moody's  -     -
Industrial Development Bank of Pakistan - - -  831  766
FINCA Micro Finance Bank Limited A-3 BBB- JCR-VIS  953  907
KASB Bank Limited A-2 A- PACRA  19,114  15,143
MCB Bank Limited A-1+ AA+ PACRA  1,150,634  969,966
National Bank of Pakistan A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS  4,163  10,524
Oman International Bank S.A.O.G. A-2 BBB JCR-VIS  2,537  2,353
The Punjab Provincial Cooperative Bank Limited  66,672 
Rozgar Micro Finance Bank Limited A-3 BB+ JCR-VIS  1,000  1,000
The Bank of Punjab A-1+ AA PACRA  5  64,633
Soneri Bank Limited A-1+ AA- PACRA  1  2
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA  22,471  8,660
Tameer Micro Finance Bank Limited A-1 A JCR-VIS  1,000  1,000
United Bank Limited A-1+ AA+ JCR-VIS  1,057,394  931,638
Zarai Taraqiati Bank Limited A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS  349,454  195,011
Faysal Bank Limited A-1+ AA JCR-VIS  998  4,302

 2,855,170  2,731,758

The credit quality of amount due from other insurers (gross of provision) can be assessed with reference to external credit rating
as follows:

The credit quality of Group's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings as follows:

Rupees in thousand

20122013Rating

Short term Long term

Rating
Agency

Amounts due
from other
 insurers /
reinsurers

Reinsurance and
other recoveries

against outstanding
claims

31 December
2013

31 December
2012

Rupees in thousand

A or above (including PRCL)  1,262,548  5,123,904  6,386,452  5,246,341
BBB  24,331  98,817  123,148  112,780
Others  130,845  531,410  662,255  73,665
Total  1,417,724  5,754,131  7,171,855  5,432,786

Subsidiary Company's receivable from reinsurers is Rupees 0.929 million (2012: 14.993 million)
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30.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Prudent liquidity risk
management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of adequate funds through committed
credit facilities. The Group finances its operations through equity, borrowings and working capital with a view to maintaining an
appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. The management follows an effective cash management
program to mitigate the liquidity risk.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments on an undiscounted cash
flow basis:

Financial liabilities
Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR)  7,406,692  7,406,692  7,406,692  -
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers  662,515  662,515  662,515  -
Accrued expenses  114,855  114,855  114,855  -
Unclaimed dividends  37,675  37,675  37,675  -
Others creditors and accruals 1,380,793  1,380,793  1,380,793  -
Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease  6,683  6,951  6,951  -   

9,609,213 9,609,481  9,609,481  -   

Financial liabilities
Provision for outstanding claims
(including IBNR) - restated  6,412,501  6,412,501  6,412,501  -
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers  504,732  504,732  504,732  -
Accrued expenses  119,831  119,831  119,831  -
Unclaimed dividends  35,558  35,558  35,558  -
Others creditors and accruals  1,535,955  1,535,955  1,535,955  -
Liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease  24,987  27,294  17,831  9,463

 8,633,564  8,635,871  8,626,408  9,463

30.3 Market risk
Market risk means that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. The objective is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.
The market risks associated with the Group's business activities are interest / mark-up rate risk, price risk and currency risk.

a) Interest / mark-up rate risk
"Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that value of a financial instrument or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in the market interest / mark-up rates. Sensitivity to interest / markup rate risk arises from mismatching
of financial assets and liabilities that mature or repaid in a given period. The Group manages this mismatchment through risk
management strategies where significant changes in gap position can be adjusted.  At the reporting date the interest markup
rate profile of the Group's significant interest / markup bearing financial instruments was as follows:"

Carrying amount
Contractual

cash flow Upto one year
More than
one year

Rupees in thousand

2013

Carrying amount
Contractual

cash flow Upto one year
More than
one year

Rupees in thousand

2012
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Fixed rate financial instruments

Financial assets
Investments-PIBs 8.98% - 11.50% 10.20% to 12.10%  287,368  407,978
Loans 5% 5%  33,667  29,565

Floating rate financial instruments

Financial assets
Bank deposits 5%-10.25% 5%-11.25%  2,344,538  2,293,847
Investments -TFCs 10.95%-14.75% 10.95%-14.85%  49,927  107,778

Financial liabilities
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease                                     3 month KIBOR plus 2% to 2.5 %  6,683  24,987

Decrease

Profit and loss 100 bps

Rupees in thousand

Increase

Rupees in thousand

2012201320122013

Carrying amountsEffective interest rate (in %)

As at 31 December 2013 -  Fluctuation of 100 bps

Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial liabilities  (67)  67
Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial assets  23,945  (23,945)

As at 31 December 2012 -  Fluctuation of 100 bps

Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial liabilities  (250)  250
Cash flow sensitivity-variable rate financial assets  28,395  (28,395)

b) Price risk

Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market prices
(other than those arising from interest / mark up rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factor specific
to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar financial instrument traded in the market.
The Group is exposed to equity price risk that arises as a result of changes in the levels of KSE-Index and the value of individual
shares. The equity price risk exposure arises from the Group's investments in equity securities for which prices in the future are
uncertain. The Group policy is to manage price risk through selection of blue chip securities.

The Group's strategy is to hold its strategic equity investments on long term basis. Thus, Group's management is not concerned
with short term price fluctuations with respect to its strategic investments provided that the underlying business, economic and
management characteristics of the investee remain favorable. The Group strives to maintain above average levels of shareholders'
capital to provide a margin of safety against short term equity price volatility. The Group manages price risk by  monitoring
exposure in quoted equity securities and implementing the strict discipline in internal risk management and investment policies.

The carrying value of investments subject to equity price risk are, in almost all instances, based on quoted market prices as of
the reporting date . Market prices are subject to fluctuation which may result from perceived changes in the underlying economic

 characteristics of the investee, the relative price of alternative investments and general market conditions.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore a  change
in interest rate will not effect fair value of any financial instrument. For cash flow sensitivity analysis of variable rate instruments
a hypothetical change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased / (increased) profit for the
year by the amounts shown below.  It is assumed that the changes occur immediately and uniformly to each category of instrument
containing interest rate risk. Variations in market interest rates could produce significant changes at the time of early repayments.
For these reasons, actual results might differ from those reflected in the details specified below. The analysis assumes that all
other variables remain constant.
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Sensitivity analysis

Group's investment portfolio has been classified in the available-for-sale and fair value through profit or loss categories, a 10% increase
/ decrease in redemption value and share prices at year end would have increased / decreased impairment loss of investment recognized
in profit and loss account or in revenue account of both statutory funds of life insurance business as follows:

Rupees in thousand

Impact on profit before tax Impact on equity

2013

Effect of increase in share price
Available-for-sale  49,405  44,465
Through profit or loss  -    -

Effect of decrease in share price
Available-for-sale  (80,939)  (72,845)
Through profit or loss  -    -

2012

Effect of increase in share price
Available-for-sale  50,508  32,830
Through profit or loss  -    -

Effect of decrease in share price
Available-for-sale  (43,898)  (28,534)
Through profit or loss  -    -

c) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Groups' principal transactions are carried out in Pak Rupees and its exposure to foreign exchange risk arises
primarily with respect to AED and  US dollar in respect of foreign branches. Financial assets and liabilities exposed to foreign exchange
risk amounted to Rupees 4,966.398 million (2012: Rupees 4,309.023 million) and Rupees 3,934.246 million (2012: Rupees 3,201.833
million), respectively, at the end of the year.

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

Rupees per US Dollar
Average rate  101.55 93.40
Reporting date rate  105.00 96.90

Rupees per AED
Average rate  27.65 25.43
Reporting date rate  28.59 26.38

30.4 Insurance risk

30.4.1 Holding Company

The principal risk the Holding Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments or the timing
thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent
development of long-term claims. Therefore the objective of the Holding Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available
to cover these liabilities. The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and
geographical areas. The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy guidelines,
as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements. Further, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular
detailed review of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims and similar procedures are put
in place to reduce the risk exposure of the Holding Company. The Holding Company further enforces a policy of actively managing and
prompt pursuing of claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable future developments that can negatively impact the Holding
Company.

Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in accordance
with the reinsurance contracts.

20122013
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Although the Group has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit
exposure exists with respect to ceded insurance, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed under
such reinsurance agreements. The Group’s placement of reinsurance is diversified such that it is neither dependent on a single
reinsurer nor are the operations of the Group substantially dependent upon any single reinsurance contract. Reinsurance policies
are written with approved reinsurers on either a proportionate basis or non-proportionate basis. The reinsurers, carefully selected
and approved, are dispersed over several geographical regions.

Experience shows that larger the portfolio is of similar insurance contracts, smaller the relative variability will be about
the expected outcome. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the board by a change in
any subset of the portfolio. The Group has developed its insurance underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance
risks accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability
of the expected outcome.

The Group principally issues the general insurance contracts e.g. marine and aviation, property, motor and general accidents
and life insurance policies (by Subsidiary Company) with respect to statutory funds established in accordance with the requirements
of the law i.e. for conventional business, accident and health business and non-unitised investment link business. Risks under
non-life insurance policies usually cover twelve month duration which in life insurance policies covers longer terms. For general
insurance contracts the most significant risks arise from accidental fire, atmospheric disaster and terrorist activities. Insurance
contracts at times also cover risk for single incidents that expose the Company to multiple insurance risks.

a) Geographical concentration of insurance risk

To optimize benefits from the principle of average and law of large numbers, geographical spread of risk is of extreme
importance. There are a number of parameters which are significant in assessing the accumulation of risks with reference
to the geographical location, the most important of which is risk survey.

Risk surveys are carried out on a regular basis for the evaluation of physical hazards associated primarily with the commercial
/ industrial occupation of the insured. Details regarding the fire separation / segregation with respect to the manufacturing
processes, storage, utilities, etc. are extracted from the layout plan of the insured facility. Such details are formed part of the
reports which are made available to the underwriters / reinsurers  for their evaluation. Reference is made to the standard
construction specifications laid down by IAP (Insurance Association of Pakistan). For fire and property risk a particular building
and neighboring buildings, which could be affected by a single claim incident, are considered as a single location. For earthquake
risk, a complete city is classified as a single location. Similarly, for marine risk, multiple risks covered in a single vessel voyage
are considered as a single risk while assessing concentration of risk. The Group evaluates the concentration of exposures to
individual and cumulative insurance risks and establishes its reinsurance policy to reduce such exposures to levels acceptable
to the Group.

A risk management solution is implemented to help assess and plan for risk in catastrophic scenarios. It provides a way to
better visualize the risk exposure to the Group determines the appropriate amount of reinsurance coverage to protect the
business portfolio.

b) Reinsurance arrangements
 

Keeping in view the maximum exposure in respect of key zone aggregates, a number of proportional and non-proportional
reinsurance arrangements are in place to protect the net account in case of a major catastrophe. Apart from the adequate
event limit which is a multiple of the treaty capacity or the primary recovery from the proportional treaty, any loss over and
above the said limit would be recovered from the non-proportional treaty which is very much in line with the risk management
philosophy of the Group. 

In compliance of the regulatory requirement, the reinsurance agreements are duly submitted with the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan on an annual basis. 

The concentration of risk by type of contracts is summarized below by reference to liabilities:

General Insurance:
Fire  3,103,185,747  2,709,048,038  2,547,961,089  2,164,465,797  555,224,658  544,582,241
Marine  1,543,234,345  3,018,667,882  316,216,719  676,525,320  1,227,017,626  2,342,142,562
Motor  47,200,586  40,498,649  877,325  855,654  46,323,261  39,642,995
Miscellaneous  185,264,693  169,242,965  73,917,352  72,673,026  111,347,341  96,569,939

 4,878,885,371  5,937,457,534  2,938,972,485  2,914,519,797  1,939,912,886  3,022,937,737

Gross sum insured

Rupees in thousand

Reinsurance Net

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
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c) Neutral assumptions for claims estimation

The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in neutral
estimates of the most likely or expected outcome. The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict with certainty the
likely outcome of any particular claim and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a separate, case
by case basis with due regard to claim circumstances, information available from surveyors and historical evidence of the size of
similar claims. Case estimates are reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information is available.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling claims
already notified in which case information about the claim event is available. IBNR provisions are initially estimated at a gross level
and a separate calculation is carried out to estimate the size of the reinsurance recoveries.

The estimation process takes into account the past claims reporting pattern and details of reinsurance programs. The premium
liabilities have been determined such that the total premium liability provisions (unearned premium reserve and premium deficiency
reserve) would be sufficient to service the future expected claims and expenses likely to occur on the unexpired policies as of
reporting date. The expected future liability is determined using estimates and assumptions based on the experience during the
expired period of the contracts and expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable.

d) Sensitivity analysis

The risks associated with the insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables which complicate quantitative
sensitivity analysis. The Group considers that the liability for insurance claims recognized in the balance sheet is adequate. However,
actual experience may differ from the expected outcome.

As the Group enters into short term insurance contracts, it does not assume any significant impact of changes in market conditions
on unexpired risks. However, some results of sensitivity testing are set out below, showing the impact on profit before tax net of
reinsurance.

General Insurance
10% increase in loss
Net: 
Fire  (53,062)  (84,037)  (34,490)  (54,624)
Marine  (22,151)  (28,420)  (14,398)  (18,473)
Motor  (191,630)  (182,166)  (124,560)  (118,408)
Miscellaneous  (81,843)  (119,644)  (53,198)  (77,769)

 (348,686)  (414,267)  (226,646)  (269,274)

10% decrease in loss
 Net:
Fire  53,062  84,037  34,490  54,624
Marine  22,151  28,420  14,398  18,473
Motor  191,630  182,166  124,560  118,408
Miscellaneous  81,843  119,644  53,198  77,769

 348,686  414,267  226,646  269,274

Rupees in thousand

2012201320122013

Shareholders' equityPre tax profit

e) Claims development table

The following table shows the development of claims over a period of time. The disclosure goes back to the period when the
earliest material claim arose for which there is still uncertainty about the amount and timing of the claims payments.

Accident year

Estimate of ultimate claims cost:
At the end of accident year 6,593,318 6,702,042 7,689,784 20,985,144
One year later 2,784,589 4,083,676  -   6,868,265
Two years later 925,903  -    -   925,903
Estimate of cumulative claims 925,903 4,083,676 7,689,784 12,699,363 
Less: Cumulative payments to date 375,475 2,976,813 3,099,219 6,451,507 
Liability recognized in the balances 550,428 1,106,863 4,590,565 6,247,856 

Since these are initial years of operations by subsidiary Company, the analysis in (e) above, is given only in respect of the Holding Company.

Rupees in thousand

Total201320122011
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30.4.2 Subsidiary Company

30.4.2.1 Conventional business

a) Individual Life
The risk underwritten is mainly death and sometimes disability. The risk of death and disability will vary in degree by age, gender,
occupation, income group and geographical location of the assured person. The Subsidiary Company's exposure to poor risks
may lead to unexpectedly high severity and frequency in claims experience. This can be a result of anti-selection, fraudulent
claims, a catastrophe or poor persistency. The Subsidiary Company may also face the risk of poor investment return, inflation
of business expenses and liquidity issues on amount invested in the fund. The Subsidiary Company faces the risk of under-pricing
particularly due to the fact that majority of these contracts are long term. Additionally, the risk of poor persistency may result in
the Company being unable to recover expenses incurred at policy acquisition.

The Subsidiary Company manages these risks through its underwriting, reinsurance, claims handling policy and other related
controls. The Subsidiary Company has a well defined medical underwriting policy and avoids selling policies to high risk individuals.
Which puts a check on anti-selection. Profit testing is conducted on an annual basis to ensure reasonableness of premiums
charged. Reinsurance contracts have been purchased by the Company to limit the maximum exposure on any one insured person.
The Subsidiary Company is developing and intends to eventually have a good spread of business throughout the country thereby
ensuring diversification of geographical risks. To avoid poor persistency the Company applies quality controls on the standard
of service provided to policyholders and has placed checks to control mis selling and to track improvements in the standard of
service provided to policyholders. For this, a regular monitoring of lapsation rates is conducted. On the claims handling side, the
Subsidiary Company has procedures in place to ensure that payment of any fraudulent claims is avoided. For this, the Manager
Claims and Head of  Operations reviews all claims (within variable materiality limits) for verification, and a specific and detailed
investigation of all apparently doubtful claims (particularly of high amounts) is conducted. Further, all payments on account of
claims are made after necessary approval of the Chief Executive Officer of the Subsidiary Company. The Subsidiary Company
maintains adequate liquidity in its fund to cater for a potentially sudden and high cash requirement.

i) Frequency and severity of claims

The Subsidiary Company measures concentration of risk in terms of exposure by geographical area. Concentration of risk is not
currently a factor of concern as the business is developing and aims to achieve a spread of risks across various parts of the
country. 

There is some concentration by sum assured amounts which may have an impact on the severity of benefit payments on a portfolio
basis.

The table below presents the concentration of assured benefits across five bands of assured benefits per individual life assured.
The benefit assured figures are shown gross and net of the reinsurance contracts described above.

The amounts presented are showing total exposure of the Subsidiary Company including exposure in respect of riders attached
to the main policies.

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)% %

Total benefits assured

Sum assured at the end of 2013

0-200,000  1,868 1.30  583 1.74
200,000 - 400,000  4,320 3.01 1,384 4.12
400,001 - 800,000  17,671 12.30  7,350 21.89
800,001 - 1,000,000  4,710 3.28  1,878 5.59
More than 1,000,000  115,079 80.11  22,384 66.66
Total 143,648 33,579

Rupees

Benefits assured per life



ANNUAL REPORT 2013170

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

b) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts for long-term conventional assurance contracts
arises from the unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels of mortality and morbidity incidence rates. 

The Subsidiary Company assumes the expected mortality to vary between 60% and 100% of EFU (61-66) since the current experience
for this line of business is not credible. Morbidity incidence rates are taken as a percentage of reinsurer's risk premium rate.

c) Process used to decide on assumptions

For long-term conventional assurance contracts, long-term assumptions are made at the inception of the contract. Keeping the
statutory minimum reserving basis in view, the Company determines assumptions on future mortality, morbidity, persistency,
administrative expenses and investment returns. At regular intervals, profit testing is conducted on main policies. Assumptions
used for profit testing of the main policies are as follows: 

The expected mortality is assumed to vary between 60% and 100% of EFU (61-66) since the current experience for this line of
business is not credible. 

Morbidity incidence rates for morbidity are taken as a percentage of reinsurer's risk premium rate.

Persistency: Since the Subsidiary Company has recently started business, it has no own experience to which it refer. Industry
standards for anticipated persistency rates have been used initially. Eventually, a periodic analysis of the Company's recent and
historic experience will be performed and persistency will be calculated by applying statistical methods. Persistency rates vary by
products and more importantly the sales distribution channel. An allowance will then made for any trend in the data to arrive at
best estimate of future persistency rates for each sales distribution channel. 

Expense levels and inflation: As the business is new, estimates from business projections have been used. Once established, a
periodic study will be conducted on the Subsidiary Company’s current business expenses and future projections to calculate per
policy expenses. Expense inflation is assumed in line with assumed investment return. 

Investment returns: The investment returns are based on the historic performance of the assets and asset types underlying the
fund. 

d) Changes in assumptions

As per Circular No. 17 of 2013 issued by the SECP Insurance Division on 13 September 2013, the SLIC (2001-05) Individual Life
Ultimate Mortality Table has replaced the EFU (61-66) Mortality Table as part of the Minimum Valuation Basis for the determination
of minimum actuarial reserves for Policyholder Liabilities.

e) Sensitivity analysis

After reinsurance, the overall liability for individual life conventional  business stands at less than 4% of the total policyholders'
liability held in respect of individual life business. Due to its immateriality, sensitivity analysis has not been conducted.

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)% %

Total benefits assured

Sum assured at the end of 2012

0-200,000  2,175 1.85  625 2.42
200,000 - 400,000  3,115 2.65  935 3.62
400,001 - 800,000  11,159 9.50  3,348 12.95
800,001 - 1,000,000  4,525 3.85  1,358 5.25
More than 1,000,000  96,543 82.15  19,590 75.77
Total  117,517  25,856

Rupees

Benefits assured per life
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30.4.2.2 Group Life

The main risk written by the Subsidiary Company is mortality. The Subsidiary Company may be exposed to the risk of unexpected
claim severity or frequency. This can be a result of writing business with higher than expected mortality (such as mining or other
hazardous industries), writing high cover amounts without adequate underwriting, difficulty of verification of claims, fraudulent
claims or a catastrophe. The Subsidiary Company also faces risk such as that of under-pricing to acquire business in a competitive
environment and of non-receipt of premium in due time. There also exists a potential risk of asset liability term mismatch due
to liabilities being very short term in nature.

The Subsidiary Company manages these risks through underwriting, reinsurance, effective claims handling and other related
controls. The Subsidiary Company has a well defined medical under-writing policy and avoids writing business for groups with
overly hazardous exposure. Pricing is done in line with the actual experience of the Subsidiary Company. The premium charged
takes into account the actual experience of the client and the nature of mortality exposure the Group faces. The rates are certified
by the appointed actuary for large groups having a group assurance policy with annual premium of Rs 1 million or above in
accordance with the requirements of Circular 9 of 2005 dated August 1, 2005. The Subsidiary Company also maintains a
Management Information System (MIS) to track the adequacy of the premium charged. Reinsurance contracts have been
purchased by the Company to limit the maximum exposure to any one life.  At the same time, due caution is applied in writing
business in areas of high probability of terrorism. The Subsidiary Company ensures writing business with good geographical
spread and tries to maintain a controlled exposure to large groups which generally have poor experience. Writing business of
known hazardous groups is also avoided. On the claims handling side, the Company ensures that payment of any fraudulent
claims is avoided. For this, Manager Claims and Head of  Operations reviews all large claims for verification. Strict monitoring
is in place at the Board of Directors level in order to keep the outstanding balances of premium at a minimum, especially the
ones that are due for more than 90 days. The bulk of the assets held against liabilities of this line of business are cash to money
market with short durations and high liquidity, thus mitigating the risk of asset value deterioration and liability mismatch.

a) Frequency and severity of claims

The Subsidiary Company measures concentration of risk in terms of exposure by geographical area.  Concentration of risk arising
from geographical area is not a factor of concern as the Company aims to achieve a spread of risks across various parts of the
country. 

The following table presents the concentration of assured benefits across five bands of assured benefits per individual life assured.
The benefit assured figures are shown gross and net of the reinsurance contracts described above.

The amounts presented are showing total exposure of the Subsidiary Company including exposure in respect of riders attached
to the main policies.

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)% %

Total benefits assured

Sum assured at the end of 2013

0-200,000  1,786 0.00  536 0.00
200,000 - 400,000  -   0.00  -   0.00
400,001 - 800,000  22,250 0.01  6,675 0.01
800,001 - 1,000,000  -   0.00  -   0.00
More than 1,000,000  195,837,770 99.99  100,056,022 99.99
Total 195,861,806 100,063,233

Rupees

Benefits assured per life
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b) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts

Other than conducting a liability adequacy for Unexpired Risk Reserves (URR), there is no need to estimate mortality for future
years because of the short duration of the contracts. 

c) Process used to decide on assumptions

The business is too new for any meaningful investigation into Groups' past experience. However, industry experience, the insured
group's own past experience and reinsurer risk rates are used to determine the expected level of risk in relation to the EFU (61-
66) table.

d) Changes in assumptions

As per Circular No. 17 of 2013 issued by the SECP Insurance Division on 13 September 2013, the SLIC (2001-05) Individual Life
Ultimate Mortality Table has replaced the EFU (61-66) Mortality Table as part of the Minimum Valuation Basis for the determination
of minimum actuarial reserves for Policyholder Liabilities.

e) Sensitivity analysis

After reinsurance, the net unearned premium reserve for this business stands at less than 10% of the total policyholders' liability.
This liability will be in the Subsidiary Company's books for under a year. Due to its immateriality, a sensitivity analysis has not
been conducted.

30.4.2.3  Accident & Health

The main risk written by the Subsidiary Company is hospitalisation and death by accidental means. The Subsidiary Company may
be exposed to the risk of unexpected claim frequency. This can be a result of high exposure in a particular geographical area,
fraudulent claims and catastrophic event.

The Subsidiary Company manages these risks through its underwriting, reinsurance and claims handling policy. On the claims
handling side, the Subsidiary Company ensures that payment of any fraudulent claims is avoided.

a) Frequency and severity of claims

Currently, only one product is being sold in this segment effectively which offers a fixed sum assured on hospitalisation or death
due to accident. The Subsidiary Company therefore has a limited exposure to claim severity. Since this product is marketed on
an individual basis, the risk of unexpected high frequency in claims due to accumulation is also expected to be low. 

The table below presents the concentration of assured benefits across five bands of insured benefits per individual life assured.

The amounts presented are showing total exposure of the Subsidiary Company including exposure in respect of riders attached
to the main policies.

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)% %

Total benefits assured

Sum assured at the end of 2012

0-200,000  22,811 0.01  15,968 0.02
200,000 - 400,000  144,500 0.05  72,250 0.08
400,001 - 800,000  -   0.00  -   0.00
800,001 - 1,000,000  -   0.00  -   0.00
More than 1,000,000  202,368,098 99.94  94,494,835 99.90
Total 202,535,409 94,583,053

Rupees

Benefits assured per life
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b) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts

Other than the hazard of fraudulent claims, there is no need to estimate accident rates for future years because of the short
duration of the product offered under this business.

c) Process used to decide on assumptions
Experience data is not sufficient to be statistically credible, so industry and reinsurer data has been used to fix assumptions.

d) Changes in assumptions
There has been no change in assumptions.

e) Sensitivity analysis
The net unearned premium reserve for this business stands at less than 0.1% of the total (net of reinsurance) policyholders'
liability. This liability will be in the Subsidiary Company's books for under a year. Due to its immateriality, a sensitivity analysis
has not been conducted.

30.4.2.4 Non-unitised Investment Linked Business

The risk underwritten is mainly death and sometimes disability. The risk of death and disability will vary in degree by age,
gender, occupation, income group and geographical location of the assured person. The Subsidiary Company's exposure
to poor risks may lead to unexpectedly high severity and frequency in claims' experience. This can be a result of anti-
selection, fraudulent claims, a catastrophe or poor persistency. The Subsidiary Company may also face the risk of inflation
of business expenses and liquidity issues on amount invested in the fund. The Subsidiary Company faces the risk of under-
pricing particularly due to the fact that these contracts are long term. Additionally, the risk of poor persistency may result
in the Subsidiary Company being unable to recover expenses incurred at policy acquisition.

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)% %

Total benefits assured

Sum assured at the end of 2013

0-200,000  16 100  5 100
200,000 - 400,000  - 0  - 0
400,001 - 800,000  - 0  - 0
800,001 - 1,000,000  - 0  - 0
More than 1,000,000  - 0  - 0
Total  16  5

Rupees

Benefits assured per life

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)% %

Total benefits assured

Sum assured at the end of 2012

0-200,000 1200 100 360 100
200,000 - 400,000  - 0  - 0
400,001 - 800,000  - 0  - 0
800,001 - 1,000,000  - 0  - 0
More than 1,000,000  - 0  - 0
Total  1,200  360

Rupees

Benefits assured per life
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The Subsidiary Company manages these risks through its underwriting, reinsurance, claims handling policy and other related
controls. The Subsidiary Company has a well defined medical underwriting policy and avoids selling policies to high risk individuals.
This puts a check on anti-selection. Profit testing is conducted on an annual basis to ensure reasonableness of premiums charged.
Reinsurance contracts have been purchased by the Subsidiary Company to limit the maximum exposure on any one insured person.
The Subsidiary Company is developing and intends to eventually have a good spread of business throughout the country thereby
ensuring diversification of geographical risks. To avoid poor persistency the Company applies quality controls on the standard of
service provided to policyholders and has placed checks to control mis-selling and to track improvements in the standard of service
provided to policyholders. For this, a regular monitoring of lapsation rates is conducted. On the claims handling side, the Subsidiary
Company has procedures in place to ensure that payment of any fraudulent claims is avoided. For this, the Manager Claims and
Head of Operations reviews all claims (within variable materiality limits) for verification, and a specific and detailed investigation
of all apparently doubtful claims (particularly of high amounts) is conducted. The Subsidiary Company maintains adequate liquidity
in its fund to cater for a potentially sudden and high cash requirement. Further all payments on account of claims are made after
necessary approval of Chief Executive Officer of the Subsidiary Company. The Subsidiary Company reserves the right to review the
charges deductible under the contracts, thus limiting the risk of under pricing.

a) Frequency and severity of claims

The Subsidiary Company measures concentration of risk by geographical area. Concentration of risk is not currently a factor of
concern as the business is developing and aims to achieve a spread of risks across various parts of the country.

There is some concentration by sum assured amounts which may have an impact on the severity of benefit payments on a portfolio
basis.

The Subsidiary Company charges for mortality risk on a monthly basis for all insurance contracts. It has the right to alter these
charges based on its mortality experience and hence minimises its exposure to mortality risk. Delays in implementing increase in
charges and market or regulatory restraints over the extent of the increases may reduce its mitigating effect. The Subsidiary
Company manages these risks through its underwriting strategy and reinsurance arrangements.

The table below presents the concentration of assured benefits across five bands of assured benefits per individual life assured.
The benefit assured figures are shown gross and net of the reinsurance contracts described above. The amounts presented are

 showing total exposure of the Subsidiary Company including exposure in respect of riders attached to the main policies.

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)% %

Total benefits assured

Sum assured at the end of 2013

0-200,000  229,253 2.7  28,345 1.5
200,000 - 400,000  232,228 2.7  47,536 2.5
400,001 - 800,000  1,067,239 12.6  278,804 14.7
800,001 - 1,000,000  406,464 4.8  105,068 5.5
More than 1,000,000  6,563,820 77.2  1,443,301 75.8
Total  8,499,004  1,903,054 

Rupees

Benefits assured per life

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)% %

Total benefits assured

Sum assured at the end of 2012

0-200,000 62,713 1.1 18,472 1.2
200,000 - 400,000 146,520 2.5 43,324 2.9
400,001 - 800,000 804,521 13.7 235,585 15.9
800,001 - 1,000,000 242,963 4.1 71,809 4.9
More than 1,000,000 4,611,685 78.6 1,109,522 75.0
Total  5,868,402  1,478,712

Rupees

Benefits assured per life
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b) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts for long-term Non-unitised Investment Link
 assurance contracts arises from the unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels of mortality and morbidity of the

insured population and variability in policyholders' behaviour. 

Factors impacting future benefit payments and premium receipts are as follows: 

Mortality: The Subsidiary Company assumes the expected mortality to vary between 60% and 100% of EFU (61-66) since the
current experience for this line of business is not credible. 

Morbidity: Incidence rates for morbidity are taken as a proportion of reinsurer's risk rates.

Persistency: The business is developing and actual first year persistency rates will only be measurable next year. Eventually the
Subsidiary Company intends to conduct periodic analyses on its historic book of business, using statistical methods to determine
its persistency experience. Persistency rates are expected to vary by product and more importantly the sales distribution channel.
Allowance will then be made for any trend in the data to arrive at best estimates of future persistency rates for each sales
distribution channel. 

c) Process used to decide on assumptions

For long-term Non-unitised Investment Link assurance contracts, assumptions are made in two stages. At inception of the
contract, the Subsidiary Company determines assumptions on future mortality, morbidity, persistency, administrative expenses
and investment returns. At regular intervals, profit testing is conducted on main policies. Assumptions used for profit testing of
the main policies are as follows: 

Mortality: The expected mortality is assumed to vary between 60% and 100% of EFU (61-66) since the current experience for this
line of business is not credible.                                             

Morbidity: Incidence rates for morbidity are taken as a proportion of reinsurer's risk rates.

Persistency: Since the Subsidiary Company has recently started business, it has no own experience to which it refer. 

Expense levels and inflation: As the business is new, estimates from business projections have been used. Once established, a
periodic study will be conducted on the Subsidiary Companys' current business expenses and future projections to calculate per
policy expenses. Expense inflation is assumed in line with assumed investment return. 

Investment returns: The investment returns are based on the historic performance of the assets and asset types underlying the
fund. 

d) Changes in assumptions

As per Circular No. 17 of 2013 issued by the SECP Insurance Division on 13 September 2013, the SLIC (2001-05) Individual Life
Ultimate Mortality Table has replaced the EFU (61-66) Mortality Table as part of the Minimum Valuation Basis for the determination
of minimum actuarial reserves for Policyholder Liabilities.

e) Sensitivity analysis 

The Subsidiary Company has recently commenced operations and sensitivity tests were carried out at the time of pricing products
to try and ensure robust pricing. Periodic sensitivity analyses of the Subsidiary Company's in-force business determine whether
any reserve needs to be created or product prices for new business need to be revised in light of changing or anticipated changes
in experience from that expected when pricing the existing book of business. The current nature, volume and age of in-force
business does not require a detailed sensitivity analysis at this stage.

30.4.2.5 Unit Link Business

The risk underwritten is mainly death and sometimes disability and/or critical illness. The risk of death and disability will vary
from region to region. The Company may get exposed to poor risks due to unexpected experience in terms of claim severity or
frequency. This can be a result of anti-selection, fraudulent claims, a catastrophe or poor persistency. The Subsidiary Company
may also face the risk of poor investment return, inflation of business expenses and liquidity issues on monies invested in the
fund. The Subsidiary Company faces the risk of under-pricing particularly due to the fact that these contracts are long term.
Additionally, the risk of poor persistency may result in the Company being unable to recover expenses incurred at policy acquisition.
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The Subsidiary Company manages these risks through its underwriting, reinsurance, claims handling policy and other related
controls. The Company has a well defined medical under-writing policy and avoids selling policies to high risk individuals which
puts a check on anti-selection. Profit testing is conducted on an annual basis to ensure reasonableness of premiums charged.
Reinsurance contracts have been purchased by the Company to limit the maximum exposure on any one policyholder. The Company
has a good spread of business throughout the country thereby ensuring diversification of geographical risks. To avoid poor persistency
the Company applies quality controls on the standard of service provided to policyholders and has placed checks to curb mis-selling
and improvement in standard of service provided to the policyholders. For this, a regular branch wise monitoring of lapsation rates
is conducted. On the claims handling side, the Company has procedures in place to ensure that payment of any fraudulent claims
is avoided. For this, Claims Committees with variable materiality limits review all claims for verification and specific and detailed
investigation of all apparently doubtful claims (particularly of high amounts) is conducted. The Subsidiary Company maintains
adequate liquidity in each unit fund to cater for potentially sudden and high cash requirement. The Subsidiary Company reserves
the right to review the charges deductible under the contracts, thus limiting the risk of under-pricing.

a) Frequency and Severity of Claims

The Subsidiary Company measures concentration of risk by geographical area.  Concentration of risk is not a factor of concern due
to spread of risks across various parts of the country.

However, undue concentration by amounts could have an impact on the severity of benefit payments on a portfolio basis.

The Subsidiary Company charges for mortality risk on a monthly basis for all insurance contracts without a fixed term. It has the
right to alter these charges based on its mortality experience and hence minimises its exposure to mortality risk. Delays in
implementing increases in charges and market or regulatory restraints over the extent of the increases may reduce its mitigating
effect. The Subsidiary Company manages these risks through its underwriting strategy and reinsurance arrangements.

The table below presents the concentration of insured benefits across five bands  of insured benefits per individual life assured.
The benefit insured figures are shown gross and net of the reinsurance contracts described above. At year-end, none of these
insurance contracts had triggered a recovery under the reinsurance held by the Company.

The amounts presented are showing total exposure of the Subsidiary Company including exposure in respect of riders attached
to the main policies.

Before reinsurance After reinsurance

(Rupees in thousand) (Rupees in thousand)% %

Total benefits assured

Sum assured at the end of 2013

0-200,000  279,740 0.85  61,876 0.83
200,000 - 400,000  847,210 2.56  225,346 3.03
400,001 - 800,000  3,736,965 11.30  1,046,695 14.08
800,001 - 1,000,000  3,551,921 10.74  991,304 13.33
More than 1,000,000  24,648,151 74.55  5,110,430 68.73
Total  33,063,987  7,435,651

Rupees

Benefits assured per life

b) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts for long  term unit linked insurance contracts arises
from the unpredictability of long-term changes in overall levels of mortality and variability in policyholder’s behaviour.
Factors impacting future benefit payments and premium receipts are as follows: 

Mortality: The Subsidiary Company assumes the expected mortality to vary between 60% and 100% of EFU (61-66) since the
current experience for this line of business is not credible.

Persistency: The business is developing and actual first year persistency rates will only be measurable next year. Eventually
the Subsidiary Company intends to conduct periodic analyses on its historic book of business, using statistical methods to
determine its persistency experience. Persistency rates are expected to vary by product and more importantly the sales
distribution channel. Allowance will then be made for any trend in the data to arrive at best estimates of future persistency
rates for each sales distribution channel.
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c) Process used to decide on assumptions

For long-term unit linked insurance contracts, assumptions are made in two stages. At inception of the contract, the Subsidiary
Company determines assumptions on future mortality, persistency, administrative expenses and investment returns. At regular
intervals, profit testing is conducted on main policies. Assumptions used for profit testing of the main policies are as follows: 

Mortality: The Subsidiary Company assumes the expected mortality to vary between 60% and 100% of EFU (61-66) since the
current experience for this line of business is not credible.

Persistency: Since the Company has recently started business, it has no own experience to which it can refer. Industry standards
for anticipated persistency rates have been used initially. Eventually, a periodic analysis of the Subsidiary Companys' recent and
historic experience will be performed and persistency will be calculated by applying statistical methods. Persistency rates vary
by products and more importantly the sales distribution channel. An allowance will then be made for any trend in the data to arrive
at best estimate of future persistency rates for each sales distribution channel. 

Expense levels and inflation: As the business is new, estimates from business projections have been used. Once established, a
periodic study will be conducted on the Subsidiary Companys' current business expenses and future projections to calculate per
policy expenses. Expense inflation is assumed in line with assumed investment return. 

Investment returns: The investment returns are based on the historic performance of the assets and asset types underlying the
fund. 

d) Changes in assumptions

As per Circular No. 17 of 2013 issued by the SECP Insurance Division on 13 September 2013, the SLIC (2001-05) Individual Life
Ultimate Mortality Table has replaced the EFU (61-66) Mortality Table as part of the Minimum Valuation Basis for the determination
of minimum actuarial reserves for Policyholder Liabilities.

e) Sensitivity analysis 

The Subsidiary Company has recently commenced operations and sensitivity tests were carried out at the time of pricing products
to try and ensure robust pricing. Periodic sensitivity analyses of the Subsidiary Company's in-force business determine whether
any reserve needs to be created or product prices for new business need to be revised in light of changing or anticipated changes
in experience from that expected when pricing the existing book of business. The current nature, volume and age of in-force
business does not require a detailed sensitivity analysis at this stage.

31. REINSURANCE RISK

In order to minimise the financial exposure arising from large claims, the Subsidiary Company, in the normal course of business,
enters into agreement with other reinsurers.

Reinsurance ceded does not relieve the Subsidiary Company from its obligation to policy holders and as result the Subsidiary
Company remains liable for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that reinsurer fails to meet the obligation
under the reinsurance agreements.

In order to manage this risk, the Subsidiary Company obtains reinsurance cover only from companies with sound financial
health.

32. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these consolidated financial statements approximate
to their fair values except for available-for-sale investments which are stated at lower of cost and market value in accordance
with the requirements of the SEC (Insurance) Rules, 2002. The carrying and fair value of these investments have been
disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements. 
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Fair ValueCarrying ValueFair ValueCarrying Value

2013

Government securities  467,807  467,278  272,877  275,158
Listed equities and mutual funds  44,435  59,928  53,082  59,541

TotalAvailable-for
-sale

At fair value
through profit or

loss

Loans and
receivables

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES
As at 31 December 2013

Financial assets
Cash and other equivalents  4,531  -    -    4,531

 Current and other accounts  1,698,980  -    -    1,698,980
 Deposits maturing within 12 months  1,156,190  -    -    1,156,190
 Loan to employees  33,667  -    -    33,667
 Investments  -    4,645,147  11,177,064  15,822,211
 Premiums due but unpaid  2,673,944  -    -    2,673,944
 Amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers  1,094,914  -    -    1,094,914
 Salvage recoveries accrued  179,703  -    -    179,703
 Accrued investment income  30,121  -    -    30,121
 Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims  5,574,428  -    -    5,574,428
 Sundry receivables  187,789  -    -    187,789

 12,634,267  4,645,147  11,177,064  28,456,478

Rupees in thousand

2012

As at 31 December 2013

Financial liabilities
Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR)  7,406,692

 Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers  662,515
 Accrued expenses  114,855
 Other creditors and accruals  1,380,793
 Unclaimed dividends  37,675
 Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease  6,683

 9,609,213

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

Rupees in thousand

As at 31 December 2012

Financial assets
Cash and other equivalents  1,200  -    -    1,200
 Current and other accounts  1,705,386  -    -    1,705,386
 Deposits maturing within 12 months  1,026,373  -    -    1,026,373
 Loan to employees  29,565  -    -    29,565
 Investments  -    1,803,524  9,779,688  11,583,212
 Premiums due but unpaid  3,217,207  -    -    3,217,207
 Amounts due from other insurers / reinsurers  606,559  -    -    606,559
 Salvage recoveries accrued  169,671  -    -   169,671
 Accrued investment income  26,616  -    -    26,616
 Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims  4,330,229  -    -    4,330,229
 Sundry receivables  192,002  -    -    192,002

 11,304,808  1,803,524  9,779,688  22,888,020

TotalAvailable-for
 -sale

At fair value
through profit or

loss

Loans and
receivables

Rupees in thousand

As at 31 December 2013, the fair values of all major financial assets are estimated to be not significantly different from their
carrying values except for the following:
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As at 31 December 2012

Financial liabilities
Provision for outstanding claims (including IBNR)  6,412,501
Amounts due to other insurers / reinsurers  504,732
Accrued expenses  119,831
Other creditors and accruals  1,535,955
Unclaimed dividends  35,558
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease  24,987

 8,633,564

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

Rupees in thousand

34 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company in their meeting held on March 20, 2014 proposed a final cash dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2013 @ 10% i.e. Rupee 1/- share (2012: @ 10% i.e. Rupee 1/- share). This is in addition to the interim
cash dividend @ 25% i.e. Rupees 2.5/- share (2012: @ 15% i.e. Rupees 1.5/- share) resulting in a total cash dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2013 of Rupees 3.5/- share (2012: Rupees 2.5/- share) and interim bonus shares issued @ 182.932212%. The
approval of the members for the final dividend will be obtained at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. The financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2013 do not include the effect of final dividend which will be accounted for in the financial
statements for the year ending 31 December 2014.

35. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Group's goals and objectives when managing capital are :

- to be an appropriately capitalised institution in compliance with the paid-up capital requirement set by the SECP. Minimum
paid-up capital requirement for non-life insurers is Rupees 300 million while for life insurance it is Rupees 500 million. The
Group is well in excess of the limits prescribed by the SECP and is also complying with other solvency requirements prescribed
by the SECP;

- to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for the other stakeholders;

- to provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing insurance contracts commensurately with the level of risk;

- to maintain strong ratings and to protect the Group against unexpected events / losses; and

- to ensure a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development
of the business.

36. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DICLOSURE

The following information is based on un-audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 and audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December  2012 of  provident fund of the Holding Company:

2012

Rupees in thousand

2013

Size of the fund - Total assets  849,653  736,558
Cost of investments  685,560  619,400
Percentage of investments made 97% 94%
Fair value of investments  824,131  691,449
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Deposits and bank balances 20.6% 34.6%  169,694  239,266
Term finance certificates 5.6% 9.9%  46,346  68,595
Treasury bills 43.0% 17.8%  354,390  122,822
Mutual funds 18.4% 26.3%  151,556  181,664
Listed securities 12.4% 11.4%  102,145  79,102

100% 100%  824,131  691,449

Rupees in thousand

2012201320122013

Percentage

36.1 The break-up of fair value of investments is as follows:

36.2 The above investment / placement of funds in special bank account has been made in accordance with the provisions of section
227 of the Companies Ordinance, 1984 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

2012

Number

2013

37. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES AS AT 31 DECEMBER

At year end
Holding Company  782   748

Subsidiary Company  111  79

Average during the year
Holding Company 765 788

Subsidiary Company 95 71

38. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorized for issue on March 20, 2014 by the Board of Directors of
the Holding Company.

39. GENERAL

- Figures in these consolidated financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of rupees, unless otherwise
stated.

- No significant reclassification / rearrangement of the corresponding figures have been made except as disclosed in Note 2.5.1
(b) and Note 9 to these consolidated financial statements.

Umer Mansha
Chairman

Kamran Rasool
Director

Muhammad Umar Virk
Director

Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
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PATTERN OF HOLDING OF THE SHARES
HELD BY THE SHAREHOLDERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER  2013

1040 Shareholding From 1 To 100 29,429

1417 Shareholding From 101 To 500 468,935

1090 Shareholding From 501 To 1000 931,127

2814 Shareholding From 1001 To 5000 7,283,347

881 Shareholding From 5001 To 10000 6,470,193

364 Shareholding From 10001 To 15000 4,595,558

175 Shareholding From 15001 To 20000 3,120,064

124 Shareholding From 20001 To 25000 2,828,711

102 Shareholding From 25001 To 30000 2,857,748

77 Shareholding From 30001 To 35000 2,517,677

58 Shareholding From 35001 To 40000 2,192,216

43 Shareholding From 40001 To 45000 1,811,989

29 Shareholding From 45001 To 50000 1,397,480

28 Shareholding From 50001 To 55000 1,462,203

24 Shareholding From 55001 To 60000 1,377,436

28 Shareholding From 60001 To 65000 1,752,124

16 Shareholding From 65001 To 70000 1,090,245

15 Shareholding From 70001 To 75000 1,086,194

7 Shareholding From 75001 To 80000 541,177

14 Shareholding From 80001 To 85000 1,163,576

14 Shareholding From 85001 To 90000 1,222,154

9 Shareholding From 90001 To 95000 824,815

17 Shareholding From 95001 To 100000 1,681,586

11 Shareholding From 100001 To 105000 1,125,085

8 Shareholding From 105001 To 110000 864,172

7 Shareholding From 110001 To 115000 791,826

3 Shareholding From 115001 To 120000 354,588

2 Shareholding From 120001 To 125000 245,574

7 Shareholding From 125001 To 130000 895,514

3 Shareholding From 130001 To 135000 395,966

4 Shareholding From 135001 To 140000 549,837

10 Shareholding From 140001 To 145000 1,421,418

3 Shareholding From 145001 To 150000 443,332

2 Shareholding From 150001 To 155000 303,004

3 Shareholding From 155001 To 160000 470,081

1 Shareholding From 160001 To 165000 162,199

2 Shareholding From 165001 To 170000 333,433

5 Shareholding From 170001 To 175000 861,102

2 Shareholding From 175001 To 180000 357,908

4 Shareholding From 180001 To 185000 733,205

3 Shareholding From 185001 To 190000 563,438

3 Shareholding From 195001 To 200000 595,737

No. of Shareholders Shareholdings Total Shares Held



PATTERN OF HOLDING OF THE SHARES
HELD BY THE SHAREHOLDERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER  2013

2 Shareholding From 200001 To 205000 402,347

2 Shareholding From 205001 To 210000 417,552

2 Shareholding From 210001 To 215000 424,157

3 Shareholding From 215001 To 220000 654,633

3 Shareholding From 220001 To 225000 669,363

1 Shareholding From 225001 To 230000 228,249

3 Shareholding From 235001 To 240000 713,319

2 Shareholding From 240001 To 245000 482,574

2 Shareholding From 245001 To 250000 497,421

2 Shareholding From 250001 To 255000 509,276

1 Shareholding From 255001 To 260000 256,000

1 Shareholding From 260001 To 265000 263,126

2 Shareholding From 265001 To 270000 539,421

2 Shareholding From 270001 To 275000 544,239

2 Shareholding From 275001 To 280000 555,980

3 Shareholding From 280001 To 285000 846,104

2 Shareholding From 285001 To 290000 574,000

2 Shareholding From 295001 To 300000 596,225

2 Shareholding From 300001 To 305000 604,440

3 Shareholding From 355001 To 360000 1,072,279

2 Shareholding From 380001 To 385000 763,916

1 Shareholding From 400001 To 405000 401,777

1 Shareholding From 415001 To 420000 419,070

1 Shareholding From 420001 To 425000 424,203

1 Shareholding From 425001 To 430000 427,227

1 Shareholding From 435001 To 440000 438,544

1 Shareholding From 445001 To 450000 447,454

1 Shareholding From 460001 To 465000 460,353

1 Shareholding From 485001 To 490000 487,788

1 Shareholding From 500001 To 505000 500,790

1 Shareholding From 505001 To 510000 509,277

1 Shareholding From 550001 To 555000 554,764

2 Shareholding From 555001 To 560000 1,110,794

3 Shareholding From 565001 To 570000 1,697,728

1 Shareholding From 570001 To 575000 573,002

1 Shareholding From 580001 To 585000 580,011

1 Shareholding From 650001 To 655000 650,705

2 Shareholding From 660001 To 665000 1,325,561

1 Shareholding From 665001 To 670000 666,644

1 Shareholding From 700001 To 705000 704,001

2 Shareholding From 705001 To 710000 1,414,660

1 Shareholding From 740001 To 745000 742,576

No. of Shareholders Shareholdings Total Shares Held
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PATTERN OF HOLDING OF THE SHARES
HELD BY THE SHAREHOLDERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER  2013

1 Shareholding From 775001 To 780000 776,558

1 Shareholding From 815001 To 820000 816,825

2 Shareholding From 895001 To 900000 1,796,687

2 Shareholding From 950001 To 955000 1,904,787

1 Shareholding From 960001 To 965000 964,798

1 Shareholding From 975001 To 980000 976,232

1 Shareholding From 1040001 To 1045000 1,041,000

1 Shareholding From 1050001 To 1055000 1,053,328

1 Shareholding From 1130001 To 1135000 1,134,592

1 Shareholding From 1140001 To 1145000 1,143,894

1 Shareholding From 1250001 To 1255000 1,251,191

1 Shareholding From 1310001 To 1315000 1,313,244

1 Shareholding From 1340001 To 1345000 1,340,807

1 Shareholding From 1385001 To 1390000 1,386,656

1 Shareholding From 1395001 To 1400000 1,398,536

2 Shareholding From 1410001 To 1415000 2,829,322

1 Shareholding From 1825001 To 1830000 1,826,191

1 Shareholding From 1960001 To 1965000 1,960,026

1 Shareholding From 1990001 To 1995000 1,992,403

1 Shareholding From 2035001 To 2040000 2,038,382

1 Shareholding From 2130001 To 2135000 2,130,502

1 Shareholding From 2315001 To 2320000 2,319,889

1 Shareholding From 2430001 To 2435000 2,433,217

1 Shareholding From 4000001 To 4005000 4,003,398

1 Shareholding From 4055001 To 4060000 4,056,229

1 Shareholding From 4110001 To 4115000 4,111,440

1 Shareholding From 4285001 To 4290000 4,288,279

1 Shareholding From 6355001 To 6360000 6,355,238

1 Shareholding From 7685001 To 7690000 7,689,472

1 shareholding From 8085001 To 8090000 8,087,907

1 Shareholding From 8715001 To 8720000 8,716,387

1 Shareholding From 10015001 To 10020000 10,019,735

1 shareholding From 14420001 To 14425000 14,424,087

1 Shareholding From 16210001 To 16215000 16,211,396

1 Shareholding From 16345001 To 16350000 16,346,869

1 Shareholding From 20720001 To 20725000 20,723,378

1 Shareholding From 102810001 To 102815000 102,812,165

8,579 350,000,000 

No. of Shareholders Shareholdings Total Shares Held
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Muhammad Ali Zeb
Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer

Directors
Ahmed Ebrahim Hasham  90,609  0.0259
Ali Munir  16,101  0.0046
Fredrik Coenrard De Beer  7,073  0.0020
Ibrahim Shamsi  16,797  0.0048
Imran Maqbool  7,073  0.0020
Kamran Rasool  8,487  0.0024
Mian Umer Mansha  60,335  0.0172
Muhammad Umar Virk  7,073  0.0020
Shaikh Muhammad Jawed  17,117  0.0049

 Shahid Malik  8,487  0.0024
Chief Executive Officer

Muhammad Ali Zeb  7,073  0.0020

Directors / CEO's  spouse -    -

Executives / Executives' spouse  52,024  0.0149

Associated Companies, Undertakings & Related parties
MCB Bank Limited  102,812,165 *  29.3749
Trustee - MCB Provident Fund Pak Staff  16,211,396  4.6318
Trustee-MCB Employees Pension Fund  16,346,869  4.6706
Nishat Mills Limited  102,809  0.0294

 Trustee-Nishat Mills Limited Provident Fund  573,002  0.1637

NIT and ICP  2,628  0.0008

Banks, DFIs and NBFIs  9,311,800  2.6605

Insurance Companies  19,993,570  5.7124

Modaraba  13,216,678  3.7764

Mutual Funds
CDC - Trustee First Capital Mutual Fund 50,074  0.0143
Al-Meezan Mutual Fund Limited 2,062  0.0006
Confidence Mutual Fund Limited 3,601  0.0010
First Capital Mutual Fund Limited 67  -
Growth Mutual Fund Limited 1,901  0.0005
KASB Premier Fund Limited 2,778  0.0008
Pak Asian Fund Limited 5,000  0.0014
       

General Public
    a) Local ( Individuals ) 125,355,216 **  35.8158
    b) Foreign Companies / Organizations / Individuals  16,592,077  4.7406

( on repatriable basis )

Others
Joint Stock Companies  23,180,502  6.6230
Pension Fund, Provident Fund etc.  5,937,556   1.6964

 350,000,000   100.0000
Shareholders holding 5% or more voting interest

MCB Bank Ltd.  102,812,165 *
Mian Nisar Elahi  20,723,378 **

PATTERN OF HOLDING OF THE SHARES
HELD BY THE SHAREHOLDERS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER  2013

Categories of Shareholders   Shares held        Percentage
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Stamp

PROXY FORM

I/We of   being a member of

Adamjee Insurance Company Limited hereby appoint Mr.  

of  or failing him Mr. 

of  as my/our Proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf

at the Fifty Third Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, April 28, 2014 at 11.00 a.m.

at the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), Thoker Niaz Baig, Raiwind Road, Lahore, and

at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this   day of  2014

WITNESSES:

1- Signature 

Name

Address

CNIC No.

2- Signature

Name

Address

CNIC No.

Signature

Holder of              Ordinary Shares

                   Share Register Folio No.

’’CDC’’ Participant’s ID No.  A/c. No.

(Please See Notes on reverse)

ADAMJEE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Registered Office: 4th Floor, 27-C-III, Tanveer Building, M.M. Alam Road, Gulberg-III, Lahore.



NOTES

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint another
member as a proxy to attend and vote instead of him / her. A corporation or a company being a
member of the Company may appoint any of its officers, though not a member of the Company.

2. Proxies must be received at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before
the time appointed for the Meeting.

3. The signature on the instrument of proxy must conform to the specimen signature recorded with
the Company.

4. CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under-mentioned guidelines as laid down in
Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

A. For attending the Meeting

a) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder shall authenticate his / her identity
by showing his / her original Computerized National Identity Card or original Passport at the time
of attending the Meeting.

b) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the
Meeting.

B. For appointing Proxies

a) In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder shall submit the proxy form as 
per the above requirement.

b) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

c) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and of the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

d) The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the Meeting.

e) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signatures shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.




